
'rown of Simsbury 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

Watch Board of Selectmen meetings LIVE and rebroadcast on Comcast Channel 96, on 
Frontier Channel 99 and LIVE streamed or on-demand at www.simsburytv.org 

SIMSBURY BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
Main Meeting Room - Simsbury Town Hall-933 Hopmeadow Street, Simsbury 

Regular Meeting - February 26, 2018 - 6:00 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PUBLIC AUDIENCE 

PRESENT A TI ON 

a) Town Manager's Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Proposed Budget 

FIRST SELECTMAN'S REPORT 

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 

SELECTMEN ACTION 

a) Tax Refund Requests 

b) Proposed Purchase and Sale Agreement for 23 Mountain Road, Tariffville 

c) Recommended Appointment of Captain Nicholas Boulter as Interim Police Chief effective 
March 1, 2018 

d) Meeting Room Set-up 

APPOINTMENTS AND RESIGNATIONS 

a) Proposed Appointment of Regina Pynn (D) as a Temporary Regular Member to the Board of 
Assessment Appeals with an Expiration Date of September 30, 2018 

REVIEW OF MINUTES 

a) Regular Meeting of February 15, 2018 

SELECTMEN LIAISON AND SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a) Personnel 
b) Finance 
c) Welfare 
d) Public Safety 
e) Board of Education 



Board of Selectmen 
February 26, 2018 

COMMUNICATIONS 

a) Aquarion Environmental Champion Awards Program 

b) 2018 Connecticut Council of Small Towns (COST) Legislative Priorities 

c) 2018 Capitol Region Council of Governments (CRCOG) Legislative Priorities 

Page2 

d) Simsbury Chamber of Commerce Budget Request for Visitors Center received February 15, 
2018 

e) Memorandum from Town Clerk regarding Notification of Number of Voting Tabulators dated 
February, 2018 

f) FY 2016/2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

a) Pursuant to CGS § 1-200(6)(B) concerning Pending Claims and Litigation - Deepwater Wind 
Appeal, Petition 1313 

ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Possible action 

ADJOURN 

Most of the documents reviewed by the Board of Selectmen at this meeting can be located at: 
http://www.simsbury-ct.gov/board-of-selectmen 



'iown of Simsbur!J 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 
AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 

1. Title of Submission: 

2. Date of Board Meeting: 

Town Manager's Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Proposed 
Budget 

February 26, 2018 

3. Individual or Entity Making the Submission: 
Maria E. Capriola, Town Manager; Sean Kimball , Finance Director 
~£. ('~ 

4. Action Requested o# the Board of Selectmen: 
This item is informational; no action is needed at this meeting . 

An in-depth budget workshop has been scheduled for Saturday, March 1 oth_ By Charter 
the Board of Selectmen must forward a recommended budget to the Board of Finance 
no later than March 31 5

t . The Board of Selectmen is tentatively scheduled to take up 
the matter of budget adoption on either March 1 ih or March 15th. 

5. Summary of Submission: 
A presentation will be given at the February 26, 2018 meeting regarding the Town 
Manager's FY 18/19 proposed operating and capital budgets. Budget books will be 
distributed that evening . 

6. Financial Impact: 
Details of the financial impact of the Town Manager's FY 18/19 proposed operating and 
capital budgets will be covered during the presentation . 

7. Description of Documents Included with Submission: 
None 



'Town of Simsbur!J 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 
AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 

1. Title of Submission: Tax Refund Requests 

2. Date of Board Meeting: February 26, 2018 

3. Individual or Entity Making the Submission: 
Maria E. Capriola , Town Manager; Colleen O'Connor, Tax Collector 
~€ . ('~ 

4. Action Reguested~fth; Board of Selectmen: 
If the Board of Selectmen supports approving the tax refunds as presented, the 
following motion is in order: 
Move, effective February 26, 2018 to approve the presented tax refunds in the amount 
of $15,870.20, and to authorize Town Manager, Maria E. Capriola, to execute the tax 
refunds. 

5. Summary of Submission: 
Tax refunds need to be issued from time to time for motor vehicles, real property, and 
personal property. Some of the most common reasons tax refunds need to be issued for 
motor vehicles include: sale of the vehicle; the vehicle is destroyed ; the vehicle is 
donated; the owner has moved out of state; or, the owner has successfully appealed the 
taxes. Real estate refunds are typically due to the fact that during the sale or refinancing 
of a property, both a bank and an attorney's office have paid taxes owed, resulting in an 
overpayment to the Town. Overpayments of personal property taxes are rare; often 
overpayments of personal property are due to a person or entity forgetting that they paid 
in full in July, then also sending the January installment. 

In a legal opinion from the Town Attorney dated May 22, 2001 , he stated that CGS §12-
129 "requires that all applications for tax refunds be referred to the Board (of 
Selectmen) for their consideration and action." Once approved by the Board of 
Selectmen, the Town Manager will sign off on tax refund applications. 

As a reminder, the Tax Collector's Office is responsible for collecting revenue for the 
Fire District pursuant to Special Act #264 of the Legislature in 1945. However, tax 
refunds for the Fire District are not under the jurisdiction of nor approved by the Board 
of Selectmen and are therefore not included in the requested tax refunds presented . 

6. Financial Impact: 
The aggregate amount of all tax refunds as presented is $15,870.20. The attachment 
dated February 16, 2018 has a detailed listing of all requested tax refunds. 

7. Description of Documents Included with Submission: 
a) Requested Tax Refunds, dated February 16, 2018 



REQUESTED TAX REFUNDS
FEBRUARY 26, 2018

BILL NUMBER TAX INTEREST TOTAL

List 2016
Gregoire Francis C 16-1-03122 $162.52 $162.52
Kelley Laurie A 16-1-04021 $14,869.11 $14,869.11
Lucas Barrett R Trst 16-1-04724 $63.96 $63.96
Cameron Andrew L Jr 16-3-52593 $31.59 $31.59
Cameron Andrew L Jr 16-3-52594 $93.06 $93.06
Degasero, Christopher E 16-3-54422 $16.99 $16.99
Honda Lease Trust 16-3-58554 $90.74 $90.74
Honda Lease Trust 16-3-58571 $80.20 $80.20
Cirilli Michael R 16-4-80579 $132.16 $132.16
Enterprise FM Trust 16-4-80981 $182.50 $182.50
Sullivan Brendan J 16-4-83193 $147.37 $147.37

Total 2016 $15,870.20 $0.00 $15,870.20



'iown of Simsbury 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 
AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 

1. Title of Submission: Proposed Purchase and Sale Agreement for 23 
Mountain Road, Tariffville 

2. Date of Board Meeting: February 26, 2018 

3. Individual or Entity Making the Submission: 
Maria E. Capriola , Town Manager~ €. ~~ 

4. Action Requested of the Board of Selectmen: 
If the Board of Selectmen supports approving the proposed purchase and sale 
agreement for 23 Mountain Road, the following motion is in order: 

Move, effective February 26, 2018 to approve the purchase and sale agreement for the 
Town-owned property at 23 Mountain Road as presented, and to authorize Town 
Manager, Maria E. Capriola, to execute the agreement. Further move to authorize the 
Town Attorney to execute the transaction. 

5. Summary of Submission: 
The Town assumed ownership of 23 Mountain Road in Tariffville through foreclosure in 
March of 2015. In January of 2017, the Board of Selectmen approved the proposed 
sale of this property and authorized the Director of Administrative Services to issue an 
RFP for real estate firms in connection with the sale of Town property. 

In late August 2017, the Board of Selectmen was informed that the Town would be 
working with Coldwell Banker on the sale of this property (firm was chosen at random 
from a pre-approved list). The house is in very poor condition and requires either 
complete rehabilitation or, more likely, that it will need to be demolished and rebuilt. 
Therefore, the property was marketed as a single family house as well as a buildable 
lot. It was listed on November 2, 2017 for $49,900. 

The Town has received an offer in the amount of $30,000 for the property from an 
interested buyer. Prior verbal offers for the property were between $10,000-$20,000. 
Town staff, our realtor, and Town Counsel recommend approval of the $30,000 sale 
price. Because of the liability associated with Town-ownership and at least fifteen years 
of lost property tax revenue, this sale would be a favorable outcome for the town . If the 
Board approves this sale, the property will be sold in "as is" condition . 

6. Financial Impact: 
Between 2002 and 2015, the Town lost $90,670 in revenue due to non-payment of 
taxes by the prior owner. This sale will not only generate $30 ,000 in one-time revenue 



for the General Fund, it will also return this property to the grand list. Realtor 
commissions will be $1 ,500 for a net gain to the Town of $28,500. 

7. Description of Documents Included with Submission: 
a) Proposed Purchase and Sale Agreement - 23 Mountain Road 1 

1 Anticipated closing date will occur by March 2nd, not February 22nd as listed in the attachment. Staff is awaiting 
the corrected version which will be available Monday evening . 













'lown of Simsbury 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 
AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 

1. Title of Submission: 

2. Date of Board Meeting: 

Recommended Appointment of Captain Nicholas 
Boulter as Interim Police Chief Effective March 1, 
2018 

February 26, 2018 

3. Individual or Entity Making the Submission: 
Maria E. Capriola , Town Manager ~ c. ~A 

4. Action Requested of the Board of Selectmen: 
If the Personnel Sub-Committee supports the recommendations of the Town Manager 
and Police Commission, and the Board of Selectmen concurs with those 
recommendations, the following motion is in order: 

Move, to appoint Captain Nicholas Boulter to the position of Interim Police Chief 
effective March 1, 2018 until the date upon the permanent Police Chief officially begins 
work in Simsbury. Further move to increase Captain Boulter's salary by 5% during his 
interim appointment as Police Chief and that his other employment-related benefits as a 
nonunion employee remain in place. At the conclusion of his service as Interim Police 
Chief, and if he is not appointed to the permanent Police Chief's position, Captain 
Boulter shall be permitted to return to his position as Captain with the salary and 
employment-related benefits assigned to that position. 

5. Summary of Submission: 
As you know, Chief lngvertsen is retiring effective March 1, 2018, with his last day of 
work being February 28, 2018. A recruitment for his replacement has been initiated , but 
it will not be completed prior to his retirement. As a result, the appointment of an Interim 
Police Chief is critical to ensure stability for the department during the staffing transition . 
During late winter and spring there are a number of critical items that need to be 
handled in order for the department to keep moving forward - preparation and 
development of the FY 18/19 budget and negotiations for a successor CBA for the 
International Brotherhood of Police Officers, Local N.458. Additionally, for chain of 
command, supervision, and leadership purposes it is important for an individual to be 
named Interim Chief. I consulted with Chief lngvertsen regarding a transition plan 
following his retirement. 

Given the recent transition in form of government, and that the Charter is silent 
regarding an interim appointment of Police Chief, I consulted with the Town Attorney. 
The Town Attorney has suggested that for the appointment of an Interim Police Chief 
that both I and the Commission make a recommendation to the Board of Selectmen, 
and that final appointing authority lay with the Board. 



I recommend appointment of Captain Nick Boulter as Interim Police Chief effective 
March 1, 2018, until the date upon the permanent Police Chief officially begins work in 
Simsbury. Captain Boulter has been with the Town since 1999 and possesses nineteen 
(19) years of law enforcement experience. Given Captain Boulter's qualifications and 
experience, I believe he is the best person to serve as Interim Police Chief and lead the 
department during the staffing transition. 

Should he be appointed as Interim Police Chief, I am also recommending that Captain 
Boulter's salary be increased by 5% during his tenure as Interim Police Chief to 
compensate him for duties associated with the increased scope and responsibilities of 
the Chief position . 

At its February 9, 2018 meeting , the Police Commission reviewed the matter of 
appointment of an Interim Police Chief. The Commission unanimously passed the 
following motion, recommending that Captain Boulter be appointed Interim Police Chief: 

"Move, to recommend to the Board of Selectmen the appointment of Captain 
Nick Boulter to the position of Interim Police Chief effective on the date of Police 
Chief lngvertsen 's retirement, until the date upon the permanent Police Chief 
officially begins work in Simsbury. Further move to recommend that Captain 
Boulter's salary be increased by 5% during his interim appointment as Police 
Chief and that his other employment-related benefits as a nonunion employee 
remain in place. At the conclusion of his service as Interim Police Chief, and if 
he is not appointed to the permanent Police Chief's position, Captain Boulter 
shall be permitted to return to his position as Captain with the salary and 
employment-related benefits assigned to that position. This resolution shall be 
forwarded to the Board of Selectmen with a copy to the Town Manager. " 

The Personnel Sub-Committee is reviewing the matter at its special meeting on 
February 26, 2018 and will report to the full Board at your meeting later that same 
evening . 

6. Financial Impact: 
Captain Boulter's current salary on an annualized basis is $120,506. A 5% increase on 
an annualized basis is $126,531, or a difference of $6,025/yr1

. Assuming an interim 
period of approximately 10 weeks, the increase in compensation would reflect $1 ,1542

. 

There are sufficient savings generated between Chief lngvertsen's current salary and 
the Interim Chief's recommended salary to support a 5% increase in compensation 
during the interim appointment of Police Chief. 

7. Description of Documents Included with Submission: 
a) Copy of draft Police Commission minutes, dated February 9, 2018 
b) Resume of Captain Nicholas Boulter 

1 $6,486/yr when the impact of payroll taxes are included 
2 $1 ,242 when the impact of payroll taxes are included 



POLICE COMMISSION   
SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

SPECIAL MEETING 
FEBRUARY 9, 2018 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Special Meeting of the Police Commission was called to order at 5:30 P.M. in the Police 
Department Training Room of the Simsbury Town Offices.  Present were Chairman James 
Fleming, Commissioner Michael Long, Commissioner Brendan Walsh, Commissioner Peter 
Tedone, Chief Peter Ingvertsen, Captain Nicholas Boulter, Lt. Fred Sifodaskalakis and Town 
Manager Maria Capriola.  Commissioner Edward Cosgrove was not in attendance.   
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Commissioner Long read the Summary of Letters received since the last Special Meeting of the 
Commission on January 8, 2018.  
 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Commissioner Tedone made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Walsh and passed 
unanimously to approve the minutes of the January 8, 2018 Special Meeting.  
 
5. PUBLIC AUDIENCE 
 
Present for public audience were Joan Coe and PFC Gary Gray.  Ms. Coe stated that she was 
concerned about the selection process for Police Chief.  She hopes that it will be fair and open 
and that the search will include outside candidates, which should allow the best person to rise to 
the top.   
 
6. OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
  
7. REPORTS 
 

a.  Chairman’s Report 
 
None 
 

b. Chief’s Report 
 
None 

 
c. Consolidated Monthly Report for December 2017  

 
No significant issues were noted. 
 
 



Police Commission 
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February 9, 2018 
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8. NEW BUSINESS 

 
Commissioner Long made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Walsh and passed 
unanimously to add Town Manager, Maria Capriola, First Selectman, Eric Wellman and 
Selectman Sean Askham as ex-officio members of the Police Chief Executive Search 
Committee, and JoAnn Martin as the committee’s support staff. 
 
Captain Boulter provided the Commission with an overview of the Department’s FY19 budget 
submission.  After brief discussion Commissioner Tedone made a motion, seconded by 
Commissioner Long and passed unanimously to endorse the Department’s budget as presented 
by Chief Ingvertsen. 

 
9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
Commissioner Long made a motion to enter into Executive Session pursuant to CGS Sec 1-
200(6)(B) at 5:58 P.M.  Commissioner Tedone seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the 
motion passed.  Initially in attendance for Executive Session in addition to the members of the 
Commission were Chief Peter Ingvertsen, Captain Nicholas Boulter, Lt. Fred Sifodaskalakis and 
Town Manager, Maria Capriola.  
 
Return to Regular Session 
 

• Commissioner Walsh made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Long and passed 
unanimously to deny grievance 18-1. 

 
• Commissioner Tedone made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Walsh and passed 

unanimously to recommend to the Board of Selectmen the appointment of Captain Nick 
Boulter to the position of Interim Police Chief effective on the date of Police Chief 
Ingvertsen’s retirement, until the date upon which the permanent Police Chief officially 
begins work in Simsbury.  Further move to recommend that Captain Boulter’s salary be 
increased by 5% during his interim appointment as Police Chief and that his other 
employment-related benefits as a nonunion employee remain in place.  At the 
conclusion of his service as Interim Police Chief, and if he is not appointed to the 
permanent Police Chief’s position, Captain Boulter shall be permitted to return to his 
position as Captain with the salary and employment-related benefits assigned to that 
position.   
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ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Long made a motion to adjourn at 6:36 P.M. Commissioner Walsh seconded the 
motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
James Fleming, Chairman 
 
/trl 
 
 



February 2018 

Nicholas J. Boulter 
 

EXPERIENCE  
 

SIMSBURY, CT POLICE DEPARTMENT                                              March 1999 to Present 
 

Captain/Administrative Commander (August 13, 2012 to present) 
• Executive Officer 
• 2nd in Command of Department 
• CALEA and State of CT Accreditation Manager 
• Commander of Detectives, Training, Community Services, Traffic, Animal 

Control, Records Divisions and Special Projects 
• Personnel Manager, Internal Affairs Officer, Public Information Officer, Department 

Planner and Liaison to Public Schools, Annual Budget Analysis and Preparation 
 
Lieutenant /Administrative Commander (September 23, 2010 to August 13, 2012) 

• Shared 2nd in Command status 
• CALEA and State of CT Accreditation Manager 
• Commander of Detectives, Training, Community Services, Traffic, Animal 

Control, Records Divisions and Special Projects 
• Personnel Manager, Internal Affairs Officer, Public Information Officer, Department 

Planner and Liaison to Public Schools 
 

Training/Administrative Sergeant (May 28, 2008 to September 23, 2010) 
• Supervision of Communications, Community Services, Traffic, Animal Control and 

Special Projects 
• Responsible for Department Training 
• CALEA and State of CT Accreditation Manager 
• Field Training and Evaluation Coordinator and Victim/Witness Coordinator 
• Quality Assurance, Inventory and Control, Professional Standards 

 
Patrol Sergeant (July 6, 2007 – May 28, 2008) 

• Supervision of Patrol squad (five to seven members) 
• Responsible for delivery of emergency and non-emergency services 

 
Detective (January 2007 – July 6, 2007) 

• Lengthy and complex investigations 
• Crime scene processing 

 
Patrol Officer (March 4, 1999 – January 2007) 

• Assigned to Patrol (various shifts) 
• Baton, OC spray, handcuff and field training instructor 
• Field Training Officer and Hostage Negotiator (Regional Crisis Negotiation Team)   



February 2018 

Nicholas J. Boulter 
 
 

MIDDLESEX COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 
Adjunct Instructor (August 2014 - Present) 

• Instructed CJS 220 Criminal Investigations and CJS250 Police Organization and 
Administration 

 
CENTRAL CONNECTICUT STATE UNIVERSITY 

 
Adjunct Instructor (Fall Semester 2013) 

• Co-Instructed CRM 478 Current Topics on Criminal Justice (Contemporary Policing) 
 
 

AWARDS/RECOGNITIONS 
• Recipient of Connecticut’s First 100 Plus CCADV male leaders Class of 2014 
• Chief Samuel J. Luciano Award (graduated 1st in POSTC 273 Academy class) 
• T.F.C. Allan J. Tuskowski Award (best overall performance in POSTC Academy class) 
• Shooting Award (perfect shooting score in POSTC Academy class) 
• Mothers Against Drunk Driving Awards (2001 – 2004) 
• SPD Professional Policing Award (7 time recipient) 
• SPD Medal For Outstanding Service (2007) 

 
 

EDUCATION 
• Federal Bureau of Investigations National Academy (FBI NA) – Session 263 (2016) 
• Connecticut Municipal Legal Traffic Authority Program (2015) 
• Multiple Executive Level, Management, Supervision and  
• Central Connecticut State University - Master of Science in Criminal Justice (2010)  
• University of New Hampshire - Bachelor of Arts in Sociology/Minor Justice Studies 

(1995) 
 

 
COMMITTEES/GROUPS 

• CIRMA Law Enforcement Task Force (April 2012 – Present) 
• CT Racial Profiling prohibition Project Advisory Board (October 2012 -2015)  

 
 

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS 
• FBINAA – Federal Bureau of Investigations National Academy Associates 
• IACP – International Association of Chiefs of Police 

 



'iown of Simsbury 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 
AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 

1. Title of Submission: Meeting Room Set-Up 

2. Date of Board Meeting: February 26, 2018 

3. Individual or Entity Making the Submission: 
Maria E. Ca..e.riola , Town Manager; Eric Wellman , First Selectman 
~t·-~·~ 

4. Action Requested of the Board of Selectmen: 
Discussion and consensus regarding seating arrangements for the Town Manager 
during Board of Selectmen meetings. Additional feedback on style of table/dais and 
general room set up. 

5. Summary of Submission: 
At the direction of First Selectman Wellman I have added room set-up for the Main 
Meeting Room to the agenda. Since the transition in form of government is still recent , 
we will need to experiment with where the Town Manager sits during meetings of the 
Board of Selectmen. Town Manager Capriola conducted a benchmarking survey of 
nine towns with a town manager or town administrator form of government. In all 
instances, the Town Manager or Town Administrator sits at the dais with the Board or 
Council. Of those towns, approximately 2/3 have the Manager sit immediately next to 
the First Selectman/Chair/Mayor and the remaining 1 /3 have the Manager sit at the end 
of the dais next to the full Board/Council. 

Discussion and consensus on seating arrangements for the Town Manager during 
Board of Selectmen meetings would be helpful. Additional feedback on style of 
table/dais and general room set up are also appreciated. 

6. Financial Impact: 
If the Board would like to experiment with more of a "U" shaped table, Public Works staff 
can create a temporary table top for approximately $200-$300 in materials costs plus a 
nominal amount of costs associated with staff time to make and install the temporary 
table top. 

7. Description of Documents Included with Submission: 
None 



7own of Simsbury 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 
AGENDA SUBMISSION FORM 

1. Title of Submission: 

2. Date of Board Meeting: 

Proposed Appointment of Regina Pynn (D) as a 
Temporary Regular Member to the Board of 
Assessment Appeals with an Expiration Date of 
September 30, 2018 

February 26 , 2018 

3. Individual or Entity Making the Submission: . 
Maria E. Capriola , Town Manager ~ f . ~ 

4. Action Requested of the Board of Selectmen: 
If the Personnel Sub-Committee supports the proposed recommendation from Ms. 
Fernand to appoint Ms. Pynn as a temporary regular member to the Board of 
Assessment Appeals, and the Board of Selectmen concurs with that recommendation , 
the following motion is in order: 

Move, effective February 26, 2018 to appoint Regina Pynn (0) as a temporary regular 
member to the Board of Assessment Appeals with a term expiring September 30, 2018. 

5. Summary of Submission: 
A new ordinance, Assessment Appeals Board , took effect April 22 , 2016 . Chapter 5-2 
provides that, 'The Board of Selectmen may, upon the request of the Simsbury Board of 
Assessment Appeals , appoint additional regular members to the Simsbury Board of 
Assessment Appeals to serve on the Board for any assessment year." Chapter 5-1 
further provides that, "The Board of Selectmen may appoint an alternate for each 
member of the Board of Assessment Appeals. Each alternate member shall be an 
elector of the Town of Simsbury. When seated , an alternate member shall have all the 
powers and duties of a member of the Board of Assessment Appeals. " 

At your November 13, 2017 Board of Selectmen meeting, it was decided that temporary 
regular appointments and alternate appointments to the Board of Assessment Appeals 
would be vetted through the Personnel Sub-Committee. It was further discussed that 
two temporary regular members, with terms expiring September 30, 2018, two alternate 
members with terms expiring December 2, 2019 , and one alternate member with a term 
expiring December 6, 2021 would be sought. 

Ms. Lori Fernand , Chair of the Board of Assessment Appeals has brought forward a 
recommendation to appoint Ms. Regina Pynn (D) as a temporary regular member to the 
Board of Assessment Appeals with a term expiring September 30, 2018. The Personnel 
Sub-Committee has this matter listed as an item of business for its special meeting on 
February 26, 2018. If Ms. Pynn is appointed to the Board of Assessment Appeals, one 



temporary regular appointment vacancy and three alternate vacancies will remain; staff 
has been asked to notify the Town Committee chairs and/or nominating committee 
chairs of these remaining vacancies. 

The Board of Assessment Appeals will begin conducting appeals hearings on 
assessment values during March 2018. 

6. Financial Impact: 
None 

7. Description of Documents Included with Submission: 
a) Submission from Lori Fernand, Chair, Board of Assessment Appeals re: 

Appointment of Regina Pynn 



1

Martin JoAnn

Subject: R Pynn

______________________________________ 

From: Lori Fernand [lori_fernand@yahoo.com] 

Sent: Thursday, February 15, 2018 10:18 PM 

To: Gardner David 

Subject: R Pynn 

 

HI David, 

 

Here is Regina's resume. She knows this is for the one-year term. Also, for these apppointments, it was my understanding that 

we don't need to go through the Town Committees. Instead, we are forwarding a name to the Personnel Subcommittee of the 

BOS. Once they approve the nominee, then the BOS can approve the nomination that night at their meeting. 

 

I hope that is helpful! 

 

Best, 

Lori 

 

----- Forwarded Message ----- 

From: Regina Pynn <regina.pynn@gmail.com> 

To: Lori Fernand <lori_fernand@yahoo.com> 

Sent: Sunday, February 11, 2018, 10:01:53 AM EST 

Subject: Resume 

 

Hi Lori- 

Current resume attached! 

 

-Regina 



Regina K. Pynn 
 

www.linkedin.com/in/rkpynn 
 

 

 
CORE SKILLS      Program management for complex aerospace applications and additively manufactured components 
  Supplier management including ensuring compliance to technical requirements, tracking delivery 
progress 
 
EDUCATION    Stevens Institute of Technology, Hoboken, NJ      09/06-
05/11 
                          Master of Engineering in Systems Engineering   Concentration: Space Systems 

Bachelor of Engineering in Mechanical Engineering     Minor: Law and Public Policy 
 
AWARDS       UTC Level 2 (2017), Level 1 Awards (2015) for project execution and focus on results 
  ASME National Leadership Conference- Outstanding Attendee Award (2012) 

NJ Space Grant Consortium Academic Fellowship (2011), Space Grant recipient (2009, 2010) 
 
MAJOR WORK  Hexcel (formerly Oxford Performance Materials)- South Windsor, CT 
EXPERIENCE Additive Manufacturing Program Manager      06/17-Present 

° Owns program execution for all deliverables for Hexcel’s Additive Manufacturing division 
° Responsible for on-time-delivery, sales margins, resource planning, and key customer relationships 

 
United Technology Aerospace Systems (formerly Hamilton Sundstrand)- Windsor Locks, CT 

  Lead Project Engineer for Electromechanical Actuator (S70 OPV development program) 11/14-
5/17 

° Managed new product development of EMA system for rotorcraft primary flight control 
° Responsible for $15 million budget including manpower forecasting and capital procurement 
° Led multi-site, multidisciplinary team of 30 from requirements development through flight test 

program 
   

  Project/Test Engineer for Fuel Metering Unit (PW800 PurePower engine program)  06/11-
11/14 

° Assisted in schedule, and technical execution of a $10 million jet engine fuel control development 
program 

° Negotiated system requirements scope, change, and expectations with engine manufacturer 
° Created and executed test plans to meet engine qualification by aviation authorities  
° Troubleshot hardware, test rig shortfalls and lead Root Cause Corrective Action (RCCA) 

investigations 
 

Co-Op: Orion Environmental Control System, Systems Engineering Group   04/10-08/10 
° Derived requirements for Orion’s life support equipment from NASA program requirements 
° Coordinated flow down of subsystem-specific technical requirements for design, manufacturing and 

testing 
° Managed system modeling and analysis processes, including memo creation and team 

communication 
° Developed and maintained models of subsystems to provide feedback and guidance to design 

decisions 
 

National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA)- Kennedy Space Center, FL  
  

  Co-Op: Safety and Mission Assurance Directorate      08/09-12/09 
° Led Center-wide OSHA compliance review, including team formation and direction, of fixed ladders 
° Assessed risks involved in experimental procedures and made mitigation recommendations 

 



United Technology Aerospace Systems (formerly Hamilton Sundstrand)- Windsor Locks  CT 
  Co-Op: Space Systems, Advanced Technology Group     1/09-
5/09 

° Served as lead test engineer for part of the review for NASA flight equivalent hardware (Sabatier) 
° Conducted thermal engineering analysis and design for CO2 removal system  

 
CREDENTIALS Engineer in Training (EIT), NASA Safety and Technical Excellence Program certified (STEP lv. 1),  

UTC ACE certified 
 
OUTREACH Town of Simsbury Clean Energy Task Force: Commissioner (2017) 

FRC FIRST Robotics: Co-Lead Mentor, Team 5686 (2015-2017) 
Stevens Institute of Technology: Mechanical Engineering Department Advisory Board (2005-2016) 
ASME: Hartford Chapter: Chair (2014), Dir. of Communications (2012-2013) 
Macy’s Thanksgiving Day Parade Volunteer: Balloon Inflation Team, Flight Team (2007-2016) 
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CALL TO ORDER 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order at 6:02 P.M. in the Main Meeting 
Room of the Simsbury Town Offices.  Present were: First Selectman Eric Wellman; Board members Sean 
Askham, Cheryl Cook, Christopher Kelly, Michael Paine and Chris Peterson.  Others in attendance 
included: Melissa Appleby, Deputy Town Manager; Maria Capriola, Town Manager; Michael Glidden, 
Assistant Town Planner; Lisa Karim, Library Director; Sean Kimball, Finance Director; David Murphy, 
Milone & MacBroom and other interested parties. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
All present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mr. Wellman formally welcomed Town Manager Maria Capriola. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Cook made a motion to add two additional appointments to the Appointments and 
Resignations part of the Agenda.  Mr. Askham seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the 
motion passed. 
 
PUBLIC AUDIENCE 
Joan Coe, 26 Whitcomb Drive, spoke about two FOI complaints she made, Storyteller’s Cottage, and 
other issues. 
 
PRESENTATION 
a) Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
Mr. Glidden introduced David Murphy, Associate Manager of Water Resources Planning for Milone & 
MacBroom.  Mr. Murphy, a consultant for CRCOG, (Capital Region Council of Governments), provided 
the Board with an update on the Hazard Mitigation Plan for the Capitol Region.  He explained that 
CRCOG is in the process of updating the hazard mitigation plan for the region.  FEMA requires that 
hazard mitigation plans be updated every five years.  The current plan is set to expire in 2019.  Work 
associated with the plan is underway to ensure that the region will not have an expired plan.  Since 
eligibility for mitigation grant funding directly ties to hazard mitigation plans, it is important to not let the 
plan expire.  Mr. Glidden is the local plan coordinator for the Town of Simsbury.  Mr. Murphy explained 
the purpose and need for a hazard mitigation plan, how the plan can be used, hazards to include in the 
plan, mitigation strategies and actions, a schedule and next steps.  He noted Simsbury is using Flood 
Mitigation Assistance presently.  He also noted grants can now be used for standby power 
supplies(generators) for critical facilities.  He added that he encourages communities to apply for grants if 
there is a case for working with FEMA.  Mr. Murphy noted several examples of mitigation happening 
locally in the Capital Region.  A survey will be distributed online very soon.  Mr. Murphy then fielded 
questions and discussion ensued regarding dam failure. 
 
FIRST SELECTMAN’S REPORT 
Mr. Wellman extended a warm welcome to Simsbury’s new Town Manager, Ms. Capriola.  She will be 
presenting her budget at the next Board of Selectmen Meeting on February 26.  He noted the public is 
welcome at the budget workshop on March 10 at 8:00 A.M. and another on March 15 if needed.  Mr. 
Wellman noted Simsbury is budgeting during uncertain times based on the projected State revenue 
shortfall.  Governor Malloy has proposed additional cuts in municipal aid to towns.  Under his proposal, 
Simsbury will receive approximately $200,000 less than initially budgeted.  He emphasized that this 
number is far from final and he thanked Senator Witkos and Representative Hampton for their efforts.  He 
updated the Board on the Deepwater Wind Solar Farm.  On January 22 the Board of Selectmen voted 
unanimously to appeal the CT Siting Council’s ruling to allow the proposed twenty-six megawatt solar 
farm to move forward. The purpose of the appeal is to ensure that specific concerns are adequately 
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addressed.  The Town is currently in talks with the developer, Deepwater Wind.  The discussions are 
centering around six keys issues, including, ensuring public health before, during and after construction, 
removing from the project the fifty-four acre field south of Hoskins Road that is most visible, providing 
appropriate screening that fits with the natural landscape, developing and funding a comprehensive 
decommissioning plan, preserving historic barns on the property, and the option for the Town to obtain 
the development rights for the property after the project is decommissioned.  He added that given the CT 
Siting Council’s unanimous approval of the project, it is most likely the solar farm is coming to Simsbury.  
He noted the opportunity for the Town is to make sure the project is done right.  Mr. Wellman said he and 
Representative Hampton will be hosting a Policy and Pints at Red Stone Pub on February 22 at 7:00 P.M.  
He said it should be considered office hours and an opportunity to chat with them in a casual setting about 
issues.  He also noted the Farmington Valley Trails Council will present its first annual trail safety expo at 
Simsbury Library on March 17.  Lastly, he welcomed Ana and Jeff, the new owners of Peaberry’s Cafe, 
and he welcomed Cardinal Gerontology, which will have a ribbon cutting on March 1 at 5:30 P.M. 
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
Ms. Capriola referenced her Town Manager’s Report.  Regarding meeting packet preparation and 
distribution, she asked Board members to let her know if they have any suggestions regarding format, 
content or how attachments or information are presented moving forward.  She also asked members to 
indicate their preferred method of packet delivery as outlined in her report.  She noted she has hit the 
ground running, meeting with staff, Board members and community members.  She added she would like 
to present a draft list of goals and potential future projects to the Personnel Subcommittee for review and 
discussion, ultimately working towards a plan that would be brought to the full Board of Selectmen.  Ms. 
Capriola made a suggested correction to the Draft of the January 22, 2018, Special Meeting Minutes to 
include the Deepwater Wind executive session attendees that provided technical support to the Board.  
Further, she suggested adding two appointments and a resignation, which she received today, to the 
agenda.  Under Departmental News and Notes, she extended a warm welcome to Christopher Carney, 
who joined the Library Staff this week as the new full-time Adult Services Librarian.  In Public Works, 
she noted the Town has received a $9500 Bright Ideas Grant to better monitor energy usage.  Also in 
Public Works, she noted Tom Roy recently became a Certified Energy Manager.  And Public Works was 
recently the recipient of the CIRMA Excellence in Risk Management Award for New and Innovative 
Risk Management Initiatives, which comes with a $2500 grant to be used towards ongoing safety and risk 
management efforts.  In the Town Manager’s Office, recruiting for three department head positions will 
take place this spring: Director of Finance; Director of Culture, Parks and Recreation; and Police Chief.  
Under Special Events, she noted Social Services will be offering a presentation on the dangers of vaping 
on March 14 at 6:30 P.M., in the Simsbury Public Library Program Room. 
  
SELECTMEN ACTION 
 
a) Tax Refund Requests 
MOTION: Mr. Askham made a motion to approve tax refunds in the amount of $529,105.94, and 
to authorize Town Manager, Maria Capriola, to execute the tax refunds.  Ms. Cook seconded the 
motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
b) Proposed Public Gathering Permits for 2018 Events 
Mr. Toner referenced the following public gathering applications, noting they are all ready for approval: 
• SMPAC - Simsbury Flea Market 
• Simsbury Library - Mini Maker Faire 
• The Shepherd of the Hills Lutheran Church - My Best Friends 5K 
• Tootin Hills PTO -  Duck Race, Flower Bridge 
• SMPAC - Talcott Mountain Music Festival 
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• Valley Car Club - Car Show 
• Simsbury Woman’s Club - Arts and Crafts Festival 
• Parks & Recreation (co-sponsor) - Simsbury Try-athlon, (pending final running route confirmation and 

approval) 
 
MOTION: Mr. Askham made a motion, effective February 15, 2018, to approve the public 
gathering permit applications as presented in the agenda submission form and to authorize 
issuance of those public gathering permits.  Mr. Peterson seconded the motion.  All were in favor 
and the motion passed. 
 
c) Proposed 2018 Fee Schedule for Simsbury Farms Golf Course, Aquatic Facilities and Summer 
Camps 
Mr. Toner referenced the proposed fee schedule for Simsbury Farms Golf Course, Aquatics Facilities and 
Summer Camps.  He noted there is lengthy discussion and surveying done each year to prepare the fee 
schedule.  He added there have not been any fee increases in the last three years.  In addition, he noted 
they are trying to add some programs to the maintenance operation to remain competitive.  He pointed out 
a few new categories, including a new six-hole fee and an adult limited pass.  Several members liked the 
idea of the six-hole option and there was discussion on the adult limited fee.  Mr. Toner noted that Parks 
and Recreation unanimously approved the fee schedule. 
 
Ms. Cook made a motion to approve, effective February 15, 2018, the 2018 fee schedule for the 
Simsbury Farms Golf Course, Aquatics Facilities and Summer Camps as presented.   Mr. Kelly 
seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
d) Request for Building Permit and Zoning Compliance Fee Waivers for Simsbury Meadows 
Performing Arts Center Ticket Booth 
Mark Deming, 3 Ryan Circle, requested the Board waive the building permit and zoning compliance fees 
for construction of a ticket booth this spring.  He noted the booth will be owned by the Town.  The 
current trailer costs $6,000-8,000 per year to rent.  He also noted the new booth will be very attractive and 
will have a train theme.  Ms. Capriola added there will be some modest costs once the Town takes 
ownership, including an estimated $100 per year for insurance and occasional maintenance fees.  She also 
noted there is a need for a standardized form for fee waiver requests and recommends that this be looked 
at as a future project.   
 
MOTION: Mr. Peterson made a motion, effective February 15, 2018, to approve a building permit 
and zoning compliance fee waiver for the Simsbury Meadows Performing Arts Center in the 
aggregate amount of $655 for the purposes of construction of its ticket booth.  Mr. Paine seconded 
the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
None 
 
APPOINTMENTS AND RESIGNATIONS 
 
a) Proposed Reappointment of Brendan Walsh (U) as a Regular Member of the Police Commission 

with an expiration date of January 1, 2021 
 
MOTION: Ms. Cook made a motion, effective February 15, 2018, to reappoint Brendan Wash (U) 
to the Police Commission as a Regular Member, with an expiration date of January 1, 2021.  Mr. 
Peterson seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
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b) Proposed Appointment of Jacqueline S. Battos (R) to the Simsbury Zoning Commission as a 
Regular Member with an expiration date of December 2, 2019 
 
MOTION: Mr. Paine made a motion, effective February 15, 2018, to approve the appointment of 
Jacqueline S. Battos (R) to the Simsbury Zoning Commission as a Regular Member with an 
expiration date of December 2, 2019.  Mr. Askham seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the 
motion passed. 
 
c) Proposed Appointment of Susan C. Ray (R) to the Recycling Commission as a Regular Member 
with an expiration date of December 2, 2019. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Cook made a motion, effective February 15, 2018, to approve the appointment of 
Susan C. Ray (R) to the Recycling Commission as a Regular Member with an expiration date of 
December 2, 2019.  Mr. Paine seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
Mr. Wellman thanked Gerald Post, who resigned as regular member of the Zoning Commission.   
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES 
 
a) Special Meeting of January 22, 2018 
The Special Meeting Minutes of January 22, 2018, include the following change: 
• Under Adjourn to Executive Session, the portion of text that reads, “Mr. Askham made a motion to 

adjourn to Executive Session to discuss matters concerning the Deepwater Wind Proposed Solar 
Project…” should read, “Mr. Askham made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session along with Jamie 
Rabbitt, Bob DeCrescenzo, Bob Carr, Sean Kimball and Melissa Appleby to discuss matters concerning 
the Deepwater Wind Proposed Solar Project…” 

 
MOTION: Mr. Kelly made a motion to approve the Special Meeting Minutes of January 22, 2018, 
as amended.  Mr. Peterson seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
b) Regular Meeting of January 22, 2018 
There were no changes to the Regular Meeting Minutes of January 22, 2018, and, therefore, the minutes 
were adopted. 
 
SELECTMEN LIAISON AND SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
a) Personnel: 
 1) Proposed (Library) Head of Borrowing & Technical Services Position Classification,  
  Compensation and Job Description 
Mr. Wellman noted the Personnel Subcommittee was asked to reclassify the Head of Circulation position 
at the Library to bring it more in line with the actual responsibilities of the job.  The current Head of 
Circulation is scheduled to retire on March 1.  The financial impact would be about $20,000 in the FY19 
budget.  The proposal was unanimously approved by the Personnel Subcommittee.  Ms. Karim addressed 
the Board and noted the Library is unable to replace the Head of Circulation as it is currently classified.  
For the sustainability of the Library, this is imperative.  In addition, this position will supervisethe 
Technical Services staff, which has been directly supervised by the Library Director since 2012 when the 
Head of Technical Services retired. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Askham made a motion, effective February 15, 2018, to approve the position 
classification of Head of Borrowing & Technical Services and the job description as presented.  
Further move to approve an annual salary range for the Head of Borrowing and Technical Services 
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position of $72,702 to $89,597, which may be amended from time to time through the collective 
bargaining process.  Mr. Kelly seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
b) Finance 
No Report 
 
c) Welfare 
Ms. Cook noted Community for Care will be sponsoring a program on the Dangers of Vaping on March 
14.  The program is open to all members of the public and she encouraged parents to attend, as the school 
resource officers will be bringing paraphernalia so parents can actually see what this looks like.  She also 
thanked the Valley Press for their write-up about Community for Care.  In addition, she spoke about a 
joint program with the Library on May 9 focused on opioid use and children.  Lastly, she noted the Aging 
and Disability Commission will have a guest speaker from AARP on February 20 regarding developing 
an age-friendly community. 
 
d) Public Safety 
No Report 
 
e) Board of Education 
No Report 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
a) Pursuant to CGS § 1-2000(6)(D) concerning the Purchase and Sales Agreement - 23 Mountain 

Road, Tariffville 
 
b) Pursuant to CGS § 1-200(6)(B) concerning Pending Claims and Litigation - Deepwater Wind 

Appeal, Petition 1313 
 
Ms. Cook made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session along with Bob DeCrescenzo, Maria 
Capriola and Melissa Appleby to discuss matters concerning the Purchase and Sales Agreement of 
23 Mountain Road, Tariffville pursuant to CGS § 1-2000(6)(D); and with Bob DeCrescenzo, Jesse 
Langer, Maria Capriola, Melissa Appleby and Mike Glidden to discuss matters concerning the 
Pending Claims and Litigation of Deepwater Wind Appeal, Petition 1313 pursuant to CGS § 1-
200(6)(B) at 7:05 P.M.  Mr. Askham seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed. 
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Mr. Askham made a motion to adjourn from Executive Session.  Ms. Cook seconded the motion 
and it passed unanimously. Executive Session adjourned at 7:58 pm. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
   
Ms. Askham made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Ms. Cook seconded the motion and it passed 
unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 7:58 pm. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Karen Haberlin 
Commission Clerk 
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Water Company 

Stewards of the Environment™ 

January 3 1, 20 18 

Eric Sean Wellman 
First Selectman 
Town of Simsbury 
933 Hopmeadow Street 
P 0 Box 495 
Simsbury, CT 06070-0495 

Dear First Selectman Wellman: 

RECEIVED 
FEB 1 5 2018 

Town of Simsbury 
Town Manager's Office 

Charles V. Firlotte 
President & Chief Executive Officer 

203.336.7628 phone 
203.336.5639 fax 

cfirlotte@aquarionwater.com 

As proud Stewards of the Environment, Aquarion Water Company has a special appreciation for 
our state's environmental volunteers. Their passion for their local environment and the planet as 
a whole translates into cleaner water and air, fertile soils providing fresh, local farm goods , and 
safe habitat for the plants and wildlife that help keep everything in balance. 

To recognize this work, Aquarion is pleased to announce the eighth annual Aquarion 
Environmental Champion Awards program, an opportunity for adults, high school students, non­
profits, and small and large businesses in the Town of Simsbury and across Connecticut to 
receive statewide honors for their efforts. Winners in the program' s adult, non-profit, and small 
and large business categories have the opportunity to select an environmental non-profit to 
receive a $2,500 grant given in their name by Aquarion. The winning student (grades 9-12) will 
receive a $1,000 award. 

The awards will be presented during a special celebration at Connecticut's Beardsley Zoo on 
June 2, 2018. U.S. Senator Richard Blumenthal and other dignitaries will be in attendance to 
present the awards. 

The deadline for nominations is May 1, 2018. We encourage you to help us promote the awards in 
your community. Enclosed you will find a poster with more information about the program so you 
can promote the awards among your constituents. You can also download our communications 
toolkit at www.aquarionwater.com/downloads/toolkit.zip. 

You ' 11 find complete detail s about the program, awards and nomination procedure at 
aquarionwater.com or facebook.com/aquarionwater. 

Thank you for your support of the 2018 Aquarion Environmental Champion Awards. If you have 
any questions, please don't hesitate to contact me. 

saLcdZk= 
Charles V. Firlotte 
President and CEO 

Aquarion Water Company 835 Main Street Bridgeport, CT 06604 aquarionwater.com 
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Help Aauarion Water Companv 
Find Connecticut's 

Environmental Champions 
The 2018 Aquarion Environmental Champion Awards 

As the largest investor-owned water utility in New England, Aquarion not only provides clean and 
safe drinking water to more than 625,000 people in Connecticut, but we also manage and protect 
the natural resources on more than 20,000 acres of land. As a result, we feel a special appreciation 
for the thousands of volunteers across the state who dedicate their time and energy to protecting 
and improving the health of our environment. 

Now we're inviting you to help honor those efforts by nominating an adult, student, small or 
large business, or non-profit organization for the Aquarion Environmental Champion Award. 
Awards will again go to outstanding volunteer projects that have improved and protected ~ 
Connecticut's natural resources-its air, water, soils, or plant and wildlife communities. . ...;:;..:_,j)~~.,.;:-
Wmners will be named at a special event on June 2, 2018, at Connecticut's Beardsley Zoo. ~~l~l "' 

So nominate someone today (self-nominations and renominations are welcome). \ \ ' 
And help Aquarion put even more green into Connecticut's best environmental efforts. 
Nomination deadline: May 1, 2018 , 

For Award Details & Nomination Form 
Visit aquarionwater.com or facebook.com/aquarionwater 

Or write in care of Aquarion Environmental 
Champion Award: Aquarion Water Co., 

835 Main St., Bridgeport, CT 06604 

AWARDS '~., r 
• Adult, small and large 

business, and non-profit: 
$2,500 grant to the 
environmental non-profit 
of each winner's choice 

• Student: $1,000 award 

@Pri nted On Recycled Paper. 















 
CRCOG Weekly Legislative Report 
2018 Legislative Session 
February 15, 2018 
Weekly Legislative Feature Issues: 
 
In the first full week of the 2018 regular legislative session, the Connecticut General Assembly hit the 
ground running. As this is an even-numbered year, the legislative session will run from Wednesday, 
February 7, 2018 through May 9, 2018, which is commonly known as the short session.  Almost 
immediately after convening the session, Connecticut’s legislators got back to work on biennial budget 
adjustments and other legislative business. 
 
In a unique development, Governor Malloy released his biennial budget adjustment proposal on 
Monday, February 5, 2018, which was a break from the tradition of giving his budget address to a joint 
session of the Connecticut General Assembly on the opening day of the legislative session in even-
numbered years. Instead, Governor Malloy gave his State of the State address to the joint session 
focusing on the theme of Connecticut Fairness, which included more than ten specific policy initiatives 
that he will support this session. These policy initiatives, include:  

• Redoubling Connecticut’s clean energy and environmental protection efforts. The Governor’s 
plan calls for the creation of a new comprehensive resiliency plan to give towns and cities the 
resources necessary to adapt to the realities of a changing climate and for the adoption of a 
renewable energy standard in which 75 percent of Connecticut’s energy comes from clean 
sources by 2030. 

• Raise Connecticut’s minimum wage. In 2014, Connecticut became the first state in the country 
to raise the minimum wage to $10.10 per hour. The Governor is committed to working with 
legislators to once again raise the minimum wage this year. 

• Funding Transportation Infrastructure Projects.   The governor proposed stabilizing the special 
transportation fund using the following measures(1) A seven-cent increase in the gas tax, 
gradually implemented over a four-year period. (2) Implementation of statewide electronic tolling 
beginning in fiscal year 2023. (3) Acceleration of the transfer of car sales tax by two years, and (4) 
Establishment of a $3.00 per tire fee on tire purchases. 

In the last few days, there have been a number of committee meetings in which legislators have voted 
to raise concepts that will be drafted as bills. Once these bills are drafted, the committees will decide 
whether to reserve them for a public hearing. We will be sure to keep you apprised as public hearings 
are scheduled.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



This past week has revealed new developments of particular interest to you:  
 
Partisan Rifts Threatens Efforts to Close CT Budget Deficits 
 
There is a partisan rift based around taxes and state employee benefits that threaten to derail legislative 
efforts to balance the state biennial budget. Democratic and Republican leaders have acknowledged 
that there is a sharp divide between them regarding a solution to wipe out more than $400 million in 
red ink off Connecticut’s books.  
 
According to Comptroller Kevin Lembo and Governor Malloy, the current fiscal year set to close on June 
30th is on pace for a $245 million deficit. The upcoming fiscal year already has a projected shortfall of 
$165 million.  
 
In an election year, legislators from both parties have been reluctant to consider tax hikes. Yet many of 
Governor Malloy’s proposals for closing the deficits in the current biennium involve revenue increases. 
This has drawn criticism from both parties in the Legislature.  
 
CT Mirror- Partisan Rift Threatens Efforts to Close CT Budget Deficits- 2-8-2018. 
 
 
Barnes Says Malloy Took “Light Touch” to Legislature’s Two- Year Budget 
 
Ben Barnes, the Secretary of Office of Policy and Management, said that Malloy's budget would reduce 
deficits by half through a variety of measures including raising tax hikes and spending cuts including 
reducing municipal aid. He said that not all the transportation revenue was used to pay other state bills. 
Additionally, he noted Malloy's plan to solve the issues impacting the Teacher's Retirement System is to 
lower the assumed rate of return from 8 percent to 6.9 percent and the adoption of a new amortization 
schedule to avoid the cliff, but State Treasurer Denise Nappier said it would not work. 
 
Moreover, Governor Malloy offered a number of ideas for closing the 2018 budget deficit in December 
and dozens more as part of the document he released Monday, including: 
• Increasing the 6.35 percent sales tax rate 
• Allowing grocery stores to sell wine 
• Increasing excise taxes on liquor and beer 
• Reducing hospital Medicaid rate 
• Re-closing Care 4 Kids 
• Reducing services for behavioral health care 
• Eliminating the renters rebate program 
• Requiring towns to contribute to the Teachers’ Retirement System 
• Further reducing municipal aid, and; 
• Legalizing and taxing the recreational use of marijuana. 

It is worth noting The General Assembly doesn’t have to adjust the budget before they adjourn on May 
9th, because they adopted a two-year budget last October. The last time they decided not to adjust the 
second year of a biennium budget was back in 2008. 
 
CTNewsJunkie- Barnes Says Malloy Took “Light Touch” to Legislature’s Two- Year Budget 2-15-2018. 
 

https://ctmirror.org/2018/02/08/partisan-rift-threatens-efforts-to-close-ct-budget-deficits/
http://www.ctnewsjunkie.com/archives/entry/20180212_barnes_malloy_takes_light_touch_to_legislatures_two-year_budget/


Speaker: Legislature Should Turn Transportation Over to a New Authority 
 
While speaking at the Connecticut Council of Small Towns’ annual legislative forum, Speaker 
Aresimowicz remarked that after failing for years to properly invest in highways, rail and bridges, the 
legislature should relinquish oversight to a transportation authority immune from the pressure of 
election-year politics. This organization would be similar to the Public Utilities Regulatory Authority, 
which has been empowered to handle energy-related matters within Connecticut. Speaker Aresimowicz 
also renewed his proposal to eliminate local taxes on motor vehicles.  
 
Republican lawmakers at the forum did not agree with either proposal. Senator Kevin Witkos said that 
the transportation fund is in tough fiscal straits, because the Malloy administration accelerated 
transportation projects in recent years without a plan to cover the cost.  
 
Currently, the state will have to scrap some rail services, increase fares, and suspend 40 percent of 
planned capital projects including major highway rebuilds like the Hartford viaduct without additional 
funding according to the Office of the Governor.  
 
CT Mirror- Speaker: Legislature Should Turn Transportation Over to a New Authority 2-14-2018. 
 
Tracked Bills:  
 

Bill 
Number 

Priority BA Title & Synopsis History 

HB 5004 
 

3   

An Act Increasing The Sales And Use Taxes 
Exemption For Items Sold For School Fundraising 

And School-related Activities. 
 
 
 

To increase, from twenty dollars to fifty dollars, 
the exemption from sales and use taxes of items 

sold by certain charitable organizations and 
schools for fundraising and school-related 

activities. 

Committees: FIN 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Finance, 
Revenue and Bonding (2/7) 

HB 5007 
 

3   

An Act Exempting Pension Income From The 
Personal Income Tax. 

 
 
 

To exempt pension income from the personal 
income tax, effective from passage and in lieu of 

the phase-out. 

Committees: FIN 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Finance, 
Revenue and Bonding (2/7) 

HB 5045 
 

3   

An Act Establishing Accountability For Fair And 
Affordable Housing Through Zoning Regulations. 

 
 
 

To implement the Governor's budget 
recommendations. 

Committees: PD 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Planning and 
Development (2/8) 

https://ctmirror.org/2018/02/14/speaker-legislature-should-turn-transportation-over-to-a-new-authority/
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5004
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5004
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5007
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5007
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5045
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5045


HB 5046 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Sustainability Of 
Transportation Projects. 

 
 
 

To implement the Governor's budget 
recommendations. 

Committees: TRA 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on 
Transportation (2/8) 

HB 5051 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Deposit Of Motor Vehicle 
Sales And Use Taxes Into The Special 

Transportation Fund. 
 
 
 

To accelerate the rate of deposit of motor 
vehicle sales and use taxes into the Special 

Transportation Fund and eliminate the phase-in. 

Committees: FIN 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Finance, 
Revenue and Bonding (2/9) 

HB 5069 
 

3   

An Act Reimbursing Certain Municipalities For 
The Loss Of Motor Vehicle Tax Revenue. 

 
 
 

To reimburse three municipalities that 
conducted revaluations after 2015 for lost motor 

vehicle tax revenue. 

Committees: APP 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on 
Appropriations (2/14) 

HB 5072 
 

3   

An Act Reimbursing Certain Municipalities For 
The Loss Of Motor Vehicle Tax Revenue. 

 
 
 

To reimburse three municipalities that 
conducted revaluations after 2015 for lost motor 

vehicle tax revenue. 

Committees: APP 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on 
Appropriations (2/14) 

HB 5073 
 

3   

An Act Restoring Holdbacks To The State Budget. 
 
 
 

To restore budget holdbacks made by the 
Governor during the current fiscal year. 

Committees: APP 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on 
Appropriations (2/14) 

HB 5079 
 

3   

An Act Reducing The Subsidy For Ct Fastrack. 
 
 
 

To reduce the subsidy for CT Fastrack. 

Committees: APP 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on 
Appropriations (2/14) 

HB 5081 
 

3   

An Act Reimbursing Three Municipalities For The 
Loss Of Motor Vehicle Tax Revenue. 

 
 
 

To reimburse three municipalities that 
conducted revaluations after 2015 for lost motor 

vehicle tax revenue. 

Committees: APP 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on 
Appropriations (2/14) 
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https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5046
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5051
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5051
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5069
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5069
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5072
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5072
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5073
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5073
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5079
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5079
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5081
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5081


HB 5083 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Full Funding Of Special 
Education. 

 
 
 

To require the state to pay the full cost of special 
education. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

HB 5123 
 

3   

An Act Restoring Education Cost-sharing Grant 
Funding To Towns. 

 
 
 

To restore education cost-sharing grant funding 
to those towns whose grants were reduced by 

the executive branch. 

Committees: APP 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on 
Appropriations (2/15) 

HB 5126 
 

3   

An Act Providing Assistance To Students And 
Families From Puerto Rico By Increasing Ecs And 

Family Resource Center Grants. 
 
 
 

To increase funding to boards of education and 
family resource centers that provide assistance 

to students and families from Puerto Rico. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/15) 

SB 6 
 

3   

An Act Implementing The Governor's Budget 
Recommendations For General Government. 

 
 
 

To implement the Governor's budget 
recommendations. 

Committees: APP 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on 
Appropriations (2/8) 

SB 8 
 

3   

An Act Implementing The Governor's Budget 
Recommendations Concerning Education. 

 
 
 

To implement the Governor's budget 
recommendations. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/8) 

SB 22 
 

3   

An Act Appropriating Funds For The Remedial 
Action And Redevelopment Municipal Grant 

Program. 
 
 
 

To provide funding for brownfield remediation 
projects. 

Committees: APP 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on 
Appropriations (2/14) 

https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=5083
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SB 23 
 

3   

An Act Providing Additional Funding For The 
New Britain School District To Assist With 

Accommodating Students From Puerto Rico Who 
Were Displaced By Hurricane Maria. 

 
 
 

To provide funding to the New Britain school 
district for the 2017-2018 school year to cover 

the costs associated with the unexpected influx 
of two hundred four students from Puerto Rico 

who transferred to the school district because of 
Hurricane Maria. 

Committees: APP 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on 
Appropriations (2/14) 

SB 24 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

SB 25 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

SB 26 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

SB 27 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=23
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prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

SB 28 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

SB 29 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

SB 30 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

SB 31 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?selBillType=Bill&which_year=2018&bill_num=28
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SB 32 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

SB 33 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

SB 34 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

SB 35 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Reimagining, Reinvesting 
And Linking Of Technical Education And Career 

Schools. 
 
 
 

To overhaul Connecticut's workforce pipeline 
and to provide training to students that will 
prepare them with the work skills needed to 
meet the state's growing workforce needs. 

Committees: ED 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Education 
(2/14) 

SB 106 
 

3   

An Act Concerning The Sale Of "connecticut 
Grown" Products. 

 
 
 

To provide for the offering of proof that farm 
products that are sold to school districts as 

"Connecticut-grown" are actually grown in the 
state. 

Committees: ENV 
 

Status: 
Referred to Joint 

Committee on Environment 
(2/15) 
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749 Hopmeadow Street 
P. O. Box 224 

Simsbury, CT     06070 
  

Phone:  (860) 651-7307  Fax:  (860) 651-1933 
info@simsburycoc.org                  simsburycoc.org 

              ____________________________________________ 

 
Ms. Maria Capriola, Town Manager 

933 Hopmeadow Street 

Simsbury, CT 06070 

 

Dear Selectmen and woman, and Ms. Capriola, 

  

I am writing with a plea for you to address the issue of funding for Simsbury’s visitors center at the 

February 15, 2018 Board of Selectmen meeting.   

  

The Visitors Center has been housed in the Simsbury Chamber of Commerce office since August 2015. In 

that time, I and my staff have recorded nearly 100 visitors, and mailed in excess of 100 brochures to 

individuals considering moving to Simsbury, planning a visit to Simsbury, or holding an event in 

Simsbury. We have had visitors planning weddings in town stop by to pick up maps and brochures to add 

to their out-of-town guest gift bags. Visitors stop in from surrounding towns and as far away as Chicago, 

Cleveland, and California.  

  

The Visitors Center provides brochures to local hotels that they provide to their guests. Local businesses 

stop by for information, maps, and brochures they can provide to prospective new hires.  Town 

organizations such as the Simsbury Newcomers, Theater Guild, and Simsbury High School, and even 

Playhouse on Park in West Hartford, provide flyers and brochures of upcoming events. When Simsbury 

High School recently had 21 exchange students visiting from France, members of the high school 

committee stopped by the visitors center to obtain maps and other information for the students. When the 

visitors center/Chamber of Commerce office is closed, visitors that stop by can obtain maps and 

brochures from our brochure holder that is hanging outside the visitors center door.  Though we are 

unable to keep track of these visitors, we know that we are replenishing the items frequently.   

  

In addition to providing information, the Visitors Center sells Simsbury souvenirs like posters, postcards 

and coloring books, and has $71.08 in petty cash.  

  

Since its opening in 2015, the visitors center has been funded by the Town of Simsbury in the amount of 

$5,000 per year.  This helps pay for an administrator to staff the center 25 hours per week and operating 

expenses such as a telephone line, utilities, and postage to mail information in response to out-of-town 

requests.  I also will answer the phone and help visitors who walk in when the administrator is not in, 

assuring that the visitors center is operational 40+ hours per week.  However, due to a decision made by 

the Board of Selectmen, the visitors center was not funded in the 2017/2018 budget and it is my 

understanding that the $5,000 that would have normally funded the center has been placed in a 

“contingency fund” that can only be released by decision of the Board of Selectmen.  Despite not 

receiving funding for the 2017/2018 budget year, the Simsbury Chamber of Commerce has continued to 

operate the visitors center for the past seven+ months as a gesture of goodwill toward the town and 

because we believe this is a necessary service that should be provided. 

  

I hereby respectfully request that this issue be addressed at your next Board of Selectmen meeting and 

that a decision be made to fund the visitors center or permanently close it.  Should you choose to address 

this issue, the following points are important to keep in mind during your decision-making process: 

mailto:info@simsburycoc.org


  

First and foremost, the town of Simsbury is a wonderful place in which to live, work, and VISIT, with 

many positive attributes and attractions which appeal to every age group, race, religion, or gender, and the 

Simsbury Visitors Center is an extremely important avenue for getting information about these attributes 

and attractions out to residents and out-of-towners alike.  With a business community of primarily small 

to very small companies, our economic development and survival depend on making these attributes and 

attractions widely known.  Closing the visitors center would leave nowhere for people to turn for 

information on all of our attractions in one place other than a rarely updated page buried three clicks deep 

in the town’s website.  In just three short months, in May of 2018, the Simsbury Chamber of Commerce 

will be bringing a major, world-renowned art exhibit to Simsbury which is expected to draw thousands 

upon thousands of people to town over a four-month period.  These people will be bringing MONEY to 

spend in OUR town.  What are we to say to them when they ask, “Where can we go to find out about the 

great things there are to do in Simsbury during our visit?” 

  

It is of utmost importance to remember that, though it is housed in the Simsbury Chamber of Commerce 

office, the visitors center is in no way affiliated with and is NOT a function of the Simsbury Chamber of 

Commerce.  The Simsbury Visitors Center is a function of the TOWN OF SIMSBURY and, as such, 

should be funded by the Town of Simsbury.  The Simsbury Chamber of Commerce graciously provides 

the space to house and the personnel to staff this town-subsidized function at the very fair cost of just 

$5,000 per year ($416.66 per month).  When considering whether or not to fund the visitors center, the 

Simsbury Chamber of Commerce should not be considered as a beneficiary of the funding. 

  

I respectfully appeal to you to vote to fund the Simsbury Visitors Center from the 2017/2018 budget and 

to continue funding in the 2018/2019 and future budgets.  Thank you for your consideration of this matter, 

and please let me know if I can provide you with any other information to assist in your decision-making. 

  

Very truly yours, 
  

Lisa Gray 

Executive Director 
Simsbury Chamber of Commerce 

(860) 651-7307 

P. O. Box 224/749 Hopmeadow St. 
Simsbury, CT 06070 

info@simsburycoc.org 
Follow us on Twitter:  @simsburycoc 

Like us on FaceBook:  www.facebook.com/simsburycoc/ 

  

 

mailto:info@simsburycoc.org
http://www.facebook.com/simsburycoc/


Memo 
To: Maria Capriola, Town Manager 

From: Ericka L. Butler, Town Clerk 

Date: February 21, 2018 

Re: Notification of Number of Electors and Number of Polling Places 

Under Section 9-238a, the enclosed form is to be filed with the Secretary of the State during 
the first week in February and a duplicate copy is to be filed with officials required to provide 
voting machines for the Town of Simsbury, which is the Board of Selectmen. The original form 
was mailed to the Secretary of the State on February 1st, 2018. Please share a copy of this 
form with the Board of Selectmen at the next Board of Selectmen meeting, February 26th, 
2018. The Town of Simsbury has a sufficient number of voting machines for the four voting 
districts in Town. Thank you. 
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Blum, Shapiro & Company, P.C.   

 
 
 
 

 
 

29 South Main Street 
P.O. Box 272000 
West Hartford, CT 06127-2000 

Tel  860.561.4000 
Fax 860.521.9241 
blumshapiro.com 

An independent member of Baker Tilly International 

 

To the Board of Finance 
Town of Simsbury, Connecticut 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut, 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, we considered the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut’s internal control.  Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut’s internal 
control.  

We noted the following matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation 
that we offer as constructive suggestions for your consideration as part of the ongoing process of 
modifying and improving accounting controls and administrative practices. 

CURRENT RECOMMENDATIONS 

Pension and OPEB Trust Funds 

The Town does not record the fiscal year investment activity for Pension and OPEB Trust Funds on 
their financial management system.  Although they did provide the information for the audit, it did not 
reconcile with the information the actuaries were reporting in calculating the Net Pension and OPEB 
liabilities and related disclosures.  These amounts were corrected during the audit, and the corrected 
figures were presented in the Town’s financial statements.  The Town should record all trust fund 
activity within their financial management system and provide accurate and timely information to the 
actuaries for financial statement reporting.   

Recommendation - We recommend that the Town review the Pension and OPEB investment 
statements and post journal entries to the financial management system on at least a quarterly basis.  
The information should be recorded separately for each plan to ensure easy reconciliation to the 
actuarial reports.  Current year receivables and payables should be reviewed and posted as part of the 
Town’s fiscal year-end close procedures prior to sending information to the actuaries to ensure proper 
information is used to calculate the required financial liabilities and related disclosures.   

PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS (UPDATED) 

Capital Asset Reporting 
 
The implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statement and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, 
required significant changes to the reporting of capital assets.  Although the Town compiled the 
information for inclusion in the financial statements in accordance with the standard, the following 
issues were noted in the data received: 
 

• There is no indication of assets purchased with grant funds. 

• The current year accumulated depreciation did not include the depreciation on the additions 
from the prior year.   
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• Prior year accumulated depreciation was not updated on the spreadsheet, and, therefore, 
current depreciation was miscalculated for some items fully depreciated in the prior year.   

 
We also noted that the Town is maintaining capital assets on stand-alone Excel spreadsheets.   

Recommendation - Due to the complexity and volume of these assets, we recommend that policies 
and procedures be developed and formalized to control the operation of the capital asset management 
system.  These policies should address capitalization thresholds, useful lives and salvage values for 
the various asset types, as well as the depreciation method to be used.  We also recommend a capital 
asset inventory be performed to ensure all of the Town’s assets are properly accounted for.  Capital 
outlay should be analyzed to ensure construction in progress is properly recorded in the year the 
expenditures are incurred.  Finally, at the end of each year, the Finance Department should work with 
other department heads to determine any additions or deletions in their department in the current year 
and also if any assets have been impaired. 

 
2017 Update:  The Town has engaged a company to inventory and track the capital assets; however, 
there were inconsistencies in their review.  The Town will work with them to ensure the data is accurate 
in the future.  The Town has drafted a capital assets policy, which will need to be reviewed and 
approved by the governance of the Town.  Upon approval, this policy should be shared with the outside 
vendor in order to ensure the assets inventoried are in line with this new policy. 

Internal Controls 

As part of the annual audit, we are required to obtain an understanding of the Town’s internal control 
environment in order to assess the overall risk of material misstatement in the financial statements.  We 
are also required to obtain audit evidence that these controls are documented properly.  In the current 
year, we noted various functions that were performed by the same individual as follows: 

• The Finance Specialist at the Town has the ability to set up new vendors, print checks and mail 
checks. 

• The capital asset, insurance allocations and debt schedules are prepared at year end by the 
Finance Director, with no secondary review. 

We also noted the following areas where proper review was not being performed: 

• Bank reconciliations were not reviewed timely by the Finance Director. 

• Journal entries made by the Finance Director and Assistant Finance Director are not reviewed. 

Recommendation - We recommend appropriate controls be put in place to segregate the above 
processes and enhance controls at the Town, to prevent erroneous postings to the general ledger and 
reduce the opportunity for fraudulent activities. 
 
2017 Update:  Due to staffing levels in the finance department, there has not been any progress with 
this item. 
 
Fraud Risk Assessment 
 
It is estimated that U.S. businesses, including municipalities, lose up to 7% of annual revenue to fraud.  
Municipalities are especially vulnerable due to the large amounts of cash collected in the tax collector’s 
office, in addition to decentralized cash collection points such as transfer stations, student activities, 
recreation programs, etc.  Although fraud may take many forms, asset misappropriation is the most 
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common.  Internally, fraudulent disbursements and inventory theft account for most asset 
misappropriation frauds.  This type of fraud often goes undetected for several years.  Current economic 
and business conditions have created an environment in which the risk of fraud has increased 
dramatically. 

During the annual audit, we do obtain an understanding of both the Town’s and Board of Education’s 
internal controls and assess the risk of fraud and whether or not the financial statements would be 
materially misstated due to these risks; however, an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not 
absolute assurance.  Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent 
limitations of internal control, and because we will not perform an examination of all transactions, there 
is a risk that material misstatements or noncompliance or fraud may exist and not be detected by us, 
even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In addition, an audit is not designed to detect 
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct 
and material effect on the financial statements or major programs.   

During our discussions with management, we noted that neither the Town nor the Board of Education 
has performed a fraud risk assessment.  The objectives of a Fraud Risk Assessment are to gather 
perceptions of fraud risk and to promote fraud awareness and prevention across the entity.  The Fraud 
Risk Assessment process starts with the gathering of information on the population of fraud risks that 
may apply to the entity.  This includes consideration of various types of possible fraud schemes, 
scenarios and opportunities to commit fraud.  This information is then used to assess the relative 
likelihood and potential significance of identified fraud risk based on historical information, known fraud 
schemes and interviews with staff and management.  A report is prepared documenting fraud risk 
within the entity and setting forth suggested policies and procedures to help prevent and detect fraud.   

Recommendation - We recommend that both the Town and Board of Education have a Fraud Risk 
Assessment performed.  A Fraud Risk Assessment is designed to proactively identify fraud risk, 
pinpoint opportunities to reduce the cost of fraud, determine if adequate fraud prevention exists and to 
help create cost-effective fraud prevention and detection policies and procedures.   
 
2017 Update:  The Town and the Board of Education are in the process of implementing this 
recommendation.  The fiscal year 2018 capital budget has a line item for this project.   
 
Accounting Procedures Manual 
 
Prior Year Recommendation - During the June 30, 2011 audit, it was noted that the Town’s finance 
office and the Board of Education’s finance office do not have an accounting procedures manual.  We 
recommend the Town and the Board of Education consider the development of a comprehensive 
accounting procedures manual for their finance offices.  A comprehensive accounting procedures 
manual would include, but is not limited to, the documentation of formalized control policies and 
procedures relating to daily, weekly, monthly and year-end procedures.  It would also address year-end 
closing processes and financial statement presentation.  This manual may be used to provide guidance 
to employees regarding their delegated responsibilities and allow for smoother transitions if turnover 
occurs. 
 
2017 Update:  The Town and the Board of Education are in the process of creating an accounting 
procedures manual.  The Town has started to accumulate all relevant written procedures/instructions 
into one common subdirectory on the Finance network drive, but due to current staffing levels has not 
been able to assemble a formal accounting manual. 
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Positive Pay System 
 
Prior Year Recommendation - During the June 30, 2011 audit, it was noted that the Town should 
consider implementing a Positive Pay system with the bank.  Positive Pay is an automated fraud 
detection tool offered by most banks.  It is a service that matches the account number, check number 
and dollar amount of each check presented for payment against a list of checks previously authorized 
and issued by the Town.  All three components of the check must match exactly or it will not pay.  
There is generally a fee charged by the bank for Positive Pay, although some banks now offer the 
service for free.  We believe that this service will further enhance the checks and balances necessary 
for strong controls over cash. 
 
2017 Update:  The Town IT Director tested layering on an interface that was provided by the Town’s 
Bank’s software vendor with a test database.  From the testing, it appeared there was still going to have 
to be a lot of manual intervention to get the system working.  There also was an issue with a per year 
bank charge.  In addition, the Town is seeking a quote from their software vendor for a Positive Pay 
module - both install and ongoing maintenance.   

This letter should be read in conjunction with our report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards dated January 26, 2018. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Members of the 
Board of Finance, Town Council, others within the organization, and federal and state awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than thee specified parties. 

 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
January 26, 2018 
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January 26, 2018 
 
To the Board of Selectmen, Board of Education, Board of Finance, Town Manager and the citizens of 
the Town of Simsbury: 
 
Connecticut State Statutes require that all municipal entities publish within six months of the close of 
the fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with auditing 
standards accepted in the United States of America by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.  
Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the Town 
of Simsbury, Connecticut for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town of 
Simsbury, Connecticut.  Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness 
and reliability of all the information presented in this report.  To provide a reasonable basis for making 
these representations, management of the Town of Simsbury has established a comprehensive internal 
control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft or misuse 
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Town’s financial statements in 
conformity with GAAP.  Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefit, the 
Town’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather 
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.  As 
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete 
and reliable in all material respects. 
 
The Town’s financial statements have been audited by Blum, Shapiro & Company, P.C., a firm of 
licensed certified public accountants.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide a reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements of the Town of Simsbury for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2017, are free of material misstatement.  The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates by management; and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation.  The independent auditor concluded based upon the audit, that there was a 
reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the Town of Simsbury financial statements 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent 
auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 
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The independent audit of the financial statements of the Town was part of broader, federal and state 
mandated “Single Audits” designed to meet the special needs of federal and state grantor agencies.  
The standards governing the Federal and State Single Audit engagements require the independent 
auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the 
government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on 
internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal and state awards.  These 
reports are available in the Town of Simsbury’s separately issued Single Audit Reports. 
 
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction 
with it.  The Town of Simsbury’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the 
independent auditors. 
 
 
Profile of the Government 
 
The Town of Simsbury was incorporated as Connecticut’s twenty-first Town in May 1670.  It has a land 
area of approximately 34.5 square miles and a population of approximately 24,350.  Centrally located in 
the heart of the New York - Boston corridor, Simsbury is a most attractive and diverse suburban 
community.  As a part of the beautiful Farmington Valley, Simsbury offers an unmatched quality of life 
with a traditional New England town atmosphere in a setting of rolling hills, the picturesque Farmington 
River and well-manicured properties.  Simsbury is conveniently located 20 minutes northwest of 
Hartford and 20 minutes southwest of Bradley International Airport.  

The Town of Simsbury operates under a Charter revised as of December 4, 2017.  The form of 
government is Board of Selectmen/Town Manager - Board of Finance - Referendum.  There are five 
Selectmen (2-year term) and a First Selectman (2-year term).  There is also an eight-member Board of 
Education (4-year term) and a six member Board of Finance (6-year term).  Effective December 4, 
2017 the Town Manager is the full-time Chief Executive and Chief Administrative Officer of the town - a 
role formerly performed by the First Selectman/Selectwoman.  The legislative authority of the 
government is vested in the Board of Selectmen.  The Charter requires an automatic referendum for 
the annual budget and for expenditures in excess of 2% of the annual budget. 

The Town of Simsbury provides a full range of services, including police protection; the construction 
and maintenance of streets and other infrastructure; and recreational activities and cultural events; and 
a public school system which is one of the finest in the state and national level for excellence.  Certain 
sanitation services are provided by a legally separate Water Pollution Control Authority, which functions 
in essence as a department of the Town of Simsbury and therefore its operations have been included 
as an integral part of the Town of Simsbury’s financial statements. 

 
Annual Budget Process 
 
The budget serves as the foundation of the Town of Simsbury’s financial planning and control.  The 
proposed budget is presented during at least one Board of Finance Public Hearing in April.  The 
proposed budget is subject to an automatic referendum by all qualified voters of the Town to be held 
from 14 to 21 days after the Board of Finance files the approved budget with the Town Clerk.  Should 
the referendum fail to adopt the budget, the Board of Finance, in cooperation with the First Selectman 
and Board of Education, shall revise the annual budget, or that portion thereof which has been rejected 
at the referendum, and present it at a subsequent Board of Finance Public Hearing and referendum for 
acceptance.  If the budget remains unaccepted at the second referendum, the budget adopted for the 
then current fiscal year becomes the temporary budget on a month-to-month basis until a new budget is 
adopted. 
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Local Economy 
 
The Town has a diverse local economy with retail, insurance, and manufacturing.  It is host to several 
national corporations, a world class skating center and an outdoor performing arts center.  Simsbury’s 
recently approved Form Based Codes and Planned Area Development Zoning Regulations have 
encouraged the creation of economic development opportunities for mixed use, pedestrian-friendly, low 
impact communities.  Included are Dorset Crossing, 48 units of special needs housing; and 
development projects underway for the property located at 200 Hopmeadow Street - former site of The 
Hartford’s corporate offices - by The Silverman Group.  As of this writing, additional projects underway 
include Aspen Green (on Hopmeadow Street, approved for 181 residential rental units as well as 
commercial and retail units); Highcroft (off Powder Forest Drive, 272 rental residences with  
224 apartments and 48 townhomes); Carson Way (off Stratton Brook Road, 74 single-family planned 
community homes); and Mill Pond Crossing (20 luxury townhomes on Mill Pond Lane).  The Town 
planning boards have approved 88 residential units for Cambridge Crossing, the property along 
Hoskins Road, with twenty percent affordable housing.  Berkshire Bank on the Corner of Bushy Hill and 
Albany Turnpike should be opening early this year.  The Ensign House, located on the corner of Drake 
Hill and Hopmeadow Street, was recently purchased by two Simsbury residents with the goals of 
preserving “the stone mansion, turning it into residential apartments and building additional net zero 
residential units on the property.”  The diversity of the Town’s grand list is reflected by the fact that the 
ten largest taxpayers only account for 7.5% of the grand list. 
 
The Town’s current unemployment rate is 3.2% compared to the state average of 4.3% and the 
national average of 4.1% (as of November, 2017). 
 
 
Long-Term Financial Planning 
 
The Town and Board of Education has a five year Capital Improvement Plan which totals approximately 
$60.5 million of which is estimated that $44.3 million will be funded through debt and the remainder 
from grants and fund balance. 
 
 
Relevant Financial Policies 
 
The Town of Simsbury written financial policies are as follows: 

 Capital and Non-Recurring Fund Policy Statement 
 Investment Policy 
 Pension Investment Policy and Investment Objectives 
 Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Trust Investment Policy 
 GASB 34 - Capital Asset Policy 
 Fund Balance Policy 
 Debt Policy 

 
The Town’s debt policy establishes as a long term objective that debt retirement expenses (interest and 
principal) be at a rate of not more than 7% of the total annual budget.  For the year ended June 30, 
2017, the annual debt retirement expense percentage in relation to the total annual budget was 6.7% 
and therefore in compliance with the Town’s debt policy. 
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Major Initiatives 
 
At the May 24, 2017 Special Meeting of the Board of Finance, the Board approved the following major 
projects which were subsequently approved at Referendum: 
 

 $950,000 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for 
improvements to the Simsbury Farms pool and skating rink. 

 $235,000 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for upgrades 
to Town parks and facilities. 

 $400,000 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for the 
acquisition of and improvements to the lights at the Simsbury Farms Recreation Complex and 
other town parks and public parking lots. 

 $298,000 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for the 
renovation of the Boundless Playground located at Simsbury Meadows. 

 $150,000 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for finance 
security upgrades for the Town and Board of Education, including a fraud audit and cyber 
security analysis, financial system upgrades and data encryption, enhanced cybersecurity 
training fire wall upgrades and a capital asset/technology inventory system. 

 $300,000 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for 
renovation of Eno Memorial Hall. 

 $805,000 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for bridge 
improvements. 

 $380,000 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for 
construction of an approximately 5,000 square foot cold storage facility. 

 $125,000 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for drainage 
improvements and cross culvert replacements. 

 $584,500 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for 
renovations to the Simsbury Public Library upper levels and parking areas. 

 $906,048 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for 
renovations to the Library’s lower level. 

 $740,000 was approved and authorized to be funded through the issuance of bonds for 
replacement of the Simsbury High School tennis courts. 

 
 
Awards and Acknowledgements   
 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town for its comprehensive annual financial report for fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2016.  This was the eighteenth consecutive year that we have received this 
prestigious award.  In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the Town must publish an 
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report.  The report published 
satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report meets the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements 
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a certificate. 
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The preparation of this report on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated service of the 
entire staff of the Finance Department.  In addition, the accounting firm of Blum, Shapiro & Company, 
P.C., made substantial contributions in the development of this document.  Due credit also should be 
given to the First Selectwoman, Board of Selectmen, Board of Education and the Board of Finance for 
their cooperation, assistance and support throughout the year in matters pertaining to the financial 
affairs of the Town. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Sean Kimball 
Director of Finance/Treasurer 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Board of Finance  
Town of Simsbury, Connecticut 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major 
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut, as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut, as of June 30, 2017 and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective 
budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Sewer Use Fund for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 4 to the financial statements, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the 
Town adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to 
this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 13 and the pension and OPEB schedules 
on pages 67 through 78 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut’s basic financial statements.  The introductory 
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical 
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.   

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.   

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them. 
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We also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the basic financial statement of the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut, as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2016 (not presented herein), and have issued our report thereon dated  
December 29, 2016, which contained unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the 
governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information.  The 
accompanying General Fund budget schedules for the year ended June 30, 2016 are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and related directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2016 financial statements.  The 
accompanying General Fund budget schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the 2016 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare those financial statements or to those financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the General Fund budget schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated  
January 26, 2018 on our consideration of the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut’s 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Simsbury, 
Connecticut’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
January 26, 2018 
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TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 
The management of the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut (the Town) offers readers of the Town’s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal.  

Financial Highlights 

 At the end of the fiscal year the town’s unassigned general fund balance was $12,272,378 
or 13.04% of General Fund expenditures.  

 On a government-wide basis, the assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town 
exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year by $119,860,096 for Governmental Activities.   

 
 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town’s Governmental Funds reported 

combined ending fund balances of $30,506,584 an increase of $5,973,755 in comparison 
with the prior year.   

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial 
statements.  The Town’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
the Town’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in a future 
fiscal period (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities).  The governmental 
activities of the Town include general government, planning and development, public safety, facility 
management, culture and recreation, health and welfare and insurances, education, special projects 
and interest on long-term debt.  

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14 and 15 of this report. 
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Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Town, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of 
the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories: Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds 
and Fiduciary Funds. 

Governmental Funds - Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as Governmental Activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available 
at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
financing requirements. 

Because the focus of Governmental Funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for Governmental Funds with similar 
information presented for Governmental Activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing 
decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between Governmental Funds and Governmental Activities. 

The Town maintains 16 individual funds.  Information is presented separately in the governmental fund 
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 
balances for the General Fund, Sewer Use Fund, Sewer Assessment Fund and the Capital Project 
Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.  

Data from the other 12 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund.  A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16 to 20 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds - The Town maintains a Self-Insurance Fund to account for the self-insurance 
program for health insurance coverage for the Town and Board of Education employees.   

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21 to 23 of this report. 

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside the government.  Fiduciary Funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town’s own programs.  The 
accounting used for Fiduciary Funds is much like that used for Proprietary Funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24 to 25 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements can be 
found on pages 26 to 66 of this report. 
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Required Supplementary Information 

This report contains certain supplementary information concerning the Town’s progress in funding its 
obligation to provide pension benefits and other post employment benefits to its employees. 

Other Information 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are 
presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.  Combining and individual 
fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 79 to 101 of this report. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position and an important determinant of its ability to finance services in the future.  In the case of the 
Town, assets exceeded liabilities by $119,860,096 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

By far, the largest portion of the Town’s net position is its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, machinery and equipment).  It is presented in the statement of net position less any related 
debt used to acquire those assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending.  Although the Town’s investment in its capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this 
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 

NET POSITION – GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

2017 2016

Current assets $ 38,133,305    $ 34,462,670    
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation    133,259,314  134,240,433  
Noncurrent assets 9,336,440      8,707,958      

Total Assets  180,729,059  177,411,061  

Deferred Outflow of Resources 1,749,797      5,074,969      

Current liabilities 10,844,856    11,196,249    
Noncurrent liabilities 50,200,498    47,677,834    

Total Liabilities  61,045,354    58,874,083    

Deferred Inflow of Resources 1,573,406      782,714         

Net Position:  
Net investment in capital assets 98,938,703    103,429,189  
Unrestricted  20,921,393    19,400,044    

Total Net Position $ 119,860,096  $ 122,829,233  

Governmental
Activities

 

 



 

7 

The government’s net position decreased by $2,969,137 or 2.42% during the current fiscal year from 
$122,829,233 at June 30, 2016 to $119,860,096 at June 30, 2017.  Unrestricted net position, the part of 
net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt 
covenants, enabling legislation or other legal requirements, is $20,921,393 at the end of this year 
compared to $19,400,044 at the end of the prior year for an increase of $1,521,349. 

 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION – GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
 

2017 2016
Revenues:  

Program revenues:  
Charges for services  $ 7,389,905       $ 8,775,525      
Operating grants and  
 contributions  25,395,832     18,339,231    
Capital grants and   
 contributions  806,506          784,249         

General revenues:  
Property taxes  85,768,365     84,703,120    
Grants and contributions not  
 restricted to specific purpose   195,890          197,363         
Unrestricted investment earnings  120,444          336,375         
Other general revenues, net  852,587          507,433         

Total revenues  120,529,529   113,643,296  

Program expenses:  
General government  2,851,855       2,786,959      
Planning and development 1,363,689       617,505         
Public safety 5,458,475       5,437,865      
Facility management 13,455,187     10,847,069    
Culture and recreation 5,696,882       5,204,380      
Health and welfare 899,974          915,881         
Education 92,918,242     84,996,362    
Interest on long-term debt  854,362          645,311         

Total expenses  123,498,666   111,451,332  

Change in net position (2,969,137)      2,191,964      

Net Position - July 1 122,829,233   120,637,269  

Net Position - June 30  $ 119,860,096   $ 122,829,233  

Governmental
Activities

 
Total revenues were $120,529,529 and $113,643,296 respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2017 
and June 30, 2016.  Total cost of all programs and services were $123,498,666, and $111,451,332, 
respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.  Net position decreased by $2,969,137 for 
the year ended June 30, 2017, while net position increased by $2,191,964 for the year ended June 30, 
2016. 
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Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities 
 

Other revenues, net
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Governmental Activities 

Major revenue factors during the year include: 

• Property taxes collected increased by $1,065,245 or 1.25%.   

• Charges for goods and services decreased by $1,385,620 or (15.8%).  Illustrated below is a 
comparison between 2017 and 2016: 

2017 2016 Variance

General government $ 904,172         $ 882,767         $ 21,405           
Planning and development 2,202             739,107         (736,905)        
Public safety 312,583         276,530         36,053           
Facility management 3,557,914      4,096,938      (539,024)        
Culture and recreation 1,733,275      1,907,459      (174,184)        
Health and welfare 1,464             2,876             (1,412)            
Education 878,295         869,848         8,447             

$ 7,389,905    $ 8,775,525    $ (1,385,620)     
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• Operating Grants and contributions increased by $7,056,601:   

2017 2016 Variance

General government $ 1,023,774      $ 213,374         $ 810,400         
Planning and development 898,406         361,630         536,776         
Public safety 54,129           29,229           24,900           
Facility management 250,021         212,271         37,750           
Culture and recreation 178,219         108,773         69,446           
Health and welfare 204,394         236,228         (31,834)          
Education 22,786,889    17,177,726    5,609,163      

$ 25,395,832  $ 18,339,231  $ 7,056,601      

 
• Capital grants and contributions increased by $22,257.  Illustrated below is a breakdown comparison 

between 2017 and 2016: 

2017 2016 Variance

General government $                       $                       $ -                     
Planning and development 350,000                               350,000         
Public safety                                             -                     
Facility management 383,902         767,121         (383,219)        
Culture and recreation                                             -                     
Health and welfare                                             -                     
Education 72,604           17,128           55,476           

$ 806,506       $ 784,249       $ 22,257           

 
The following table presents the cost of each of the Town’s programs as well as each program’s net 
cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities).  The net cost shows the financial burden that 
was placed on the Town’s taxpayers by each of these functions. 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

General government $ 2,851,855                      $ (923,909)                        
Planning and development 1,363,689                      (113,081)                        
Public safety 5,458,475                      (5,091,763)                     
Facility management 13,455,187                    (9,263,350)                     
Culture and recreation 5,696,882                      (3,785,388)                     
Health and welfare 899,974                         (694,116)                        
Education 92,918,242                    (69,180,454)                   

$ 122,644,304                  $ (89,052,061)                   
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Expenses and Program Revenue - Governmental Activities 
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds  

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Town’s Governmental Funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows 
and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s 
financing requirements.  In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of 
a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s Governmental Funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $30,506,584 representing an increase of $5,973,755 or 24.4% in comparison with the 
prior year.  Of this total amount, $41.284 is non-spendable, $1,341,471 is restricted by governmental 
grants, $15,308,557 is committed by the Simsbury Board of Finance (Budget-Making Authority), 
$1,542,894 is assigned and $12,272,378 is unassigned.  The $12,272,378 unassigned fund balance is 
available for spending at the Town’s discretion.  The total unassigned fund balance is based on a 
positive general fund balance in that amount. 
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The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the 
unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $12,272,378, while total fund balance was 
$14,214,935.  As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both 
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  Of this total fund balance 
$14,663 is non-spendable, $1,542,894 is assigned, $385,000 is committed, with the balance being 
unassigned in the amount $12,272,378.   

The total fund balance of the Town’s General Fund increased by $752,632 during the current fiscal 
year and the unassigned fund balance increased by $1,024,806.  The assigned fund balance includes 
funds designated by the Board of Finance as part of an approved strategy to help mitigate the 
temporary loss of tax revenue during the redevelopment of the former Hartford Insurance property 
located at 200 Hopmeadow Street.  Consistent with the Town’s Reserve Policy, the Board of Finance 
assigned $1,500,000 of reserves to offset the net property tax loss anticipated in fiscal years 2018-
2020.  It is anticipated that other developments and the redevelopment of the Hartford Site will more 
than make up for the tax loss by fiscal year 2020. 

The Sewer Use Fund has a fund balance of $4,562,244 at the end of the year, a decrease of $685,530 
from the prior year.  A portion of the fund balance is to be used to help pay the debt service on the 
Waste Water Treatment Plant $26.8 million renovation and expansion capital project.  This project was 
funded 100% by the State of Connecticut Clean Water Fund 2% Loan and Grant program.  This project 
is completed and payments began on the 20-year, 2% loan program in September 2008.  The loan will 
be repaid by future sewer user charges. 

The Sewer Assessment Fund has a fund balance of $1,715,721 at the end of the year, an increase of 
$209,978 from the prior year. 

The Capital Project Fund has a positive fund balance of $5,460,725 at the end of the year, representing 
an increase of $6,165,788 over the prior year negative fund balance of ($705,063).  The fund balance 
returned to positive as a result of borrowing for capital projects during Fiscal Year 2017.   

The Capital Nonrecurring Fund has a fund balance of $735,963 at the end of the year, a decrease of 
$437,021. 

Other nonmajor governmental funds have a total fund balance of $3,817,006, representing a decrease 
of $32,082 from the prior year as illustrated. 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 2017 2016 Variance

Residential Rental Properties $ 259,871        $ 226,205        $ 33,666          
Simsbury Farms Fund 30,679          63,030          (32,351)         
General Government Program Fund 107,186        102,412        4,774            
Public Safety Program Fund 401,109        367,949        33,160          
Planning & Development Program Fund 342,222        342,222        -                    
Facilities Management Program Fund 1,073,993     1,247,994     (174,001)       
Health & Welfare Program Fund 270,984        254,517        16,467          
Culture & Recreation Program Fund 77,003          108,994        (31,991)         
Board of Education Program Fund 1,097,008     992,947        104,061        
Cafeteria 156,951        142,818        14,133          

Total $ 3,817,006     $ 3,849,088     $ (32,082)         
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The original general fund budget including other financing sources and uses of $94,076,069 was 
increased by $58,808 to the final budget of $94,134,877 due to mid-year supplemental appropriations.  

Actual revenues were more than budgetary amounts by $913,300, and expenditures were less than 
budgetary amounts by $19,836.  Most revenue types had favorable results; property taxes, 
intergovernmental revenue, charges for goods and services, rental owned property, other local 
revenues and other financing sources.   

Overall revenues over expenditures on the budgetary basis were $1,093,137. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets - The Town’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for its 
governmental activities as of June 30, 2017 amounted to $133,259,314.  This investment in capital 
assets included land, buildings and system improvements, machinery and equipment, park 
facilities, roads, highways, and bridges.  The total net change in the Town's investment in capital 
assets for the current fiscal year was a decrease of $981,119. 

CAPITAL ASSETS (net of depreciation)   
June 30, 2017  

 
Land  $ 10,175,191    
Development rights 11,725,000    
Construction in progress  4,345,403      
Buildings and improvements 87,064,449    
Land improvements 1,465,234      
Equipment 5,014,375      
Infrastructure  13,469,662    

$ 133,259,314  

 
Additional information on the Town’s Capital Assets can be found in Note 3C on page 40 of this report. 

Long-term Debt - At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$36,451,809, of which $5,173,327 is due within one year.  All of the debt is backed by the full faith and 
credit of the Town. 

OUTSTANDING DEBT 
June 30, 2017 

 
General obligation bonds $ 24,675,000    
Loan payable - Clean Water Fund 11,716,683    
Loan payable - State of Connecticut 60,126           

$ 36,451,809    

 
The Town’s total debt increased during the current fiscal year by $5,782,372.  This increase was driven 
by the issuance of bonds net of the retirement of old debt and paying of debt service payments. 

The Town has an “Aaa” rating from Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s for general obligation debt. 
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State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 7.0 times 
its total prior years’ tax collections.  The current debt limitation for the Town is $599,644,318 which is 
significantly more than the Town’s outstanding general obligation debt. 

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3E on pages 44 to 46 of this 
report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

The Town’s elected Board of Finance considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2018 
budget spending guideline and mill rate.  Factors included the economy, which covers the 
unemployment rate and the increase in the annual social security cola for the elderly, as well as the 
State budget situation.  The current unemployment rate for the Town of Simsbury for December, 2017 
was 2.7%, which is a slight increase from the prior year of 0.2%.  This compares to the State’s average 
unemployment rate of 4.6% and the national average rate of 4.1%. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with 
an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Director 
of Finance/Treasurer for the Town of Simsbury. 



 

 

Basic 
Financial 
Statements 
 



EXHIBIT I
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Governmental
Activities

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,620,770       
Investments 9,084,056         
Accounts receivable 2,696,437         
Due from fiduciary funds 24,676              
Loans receivable 337,082            
Inventories 24,121              
Other assets 346,163            

Total current assets 38,133,305       

Noncurrent assets:
Other post employment benefit asset 5,099,130         
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 26,245,594       
Depreciable, net 107,013,720     

Loans receivable 4,237,310         
Total noncurrent assets 142,595,754     

Total assets 180,729,059     

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Changes in pension actuarial experience 636,829            
Changes in pension investment gains/losses 1,010,275         
Deferred charge on refunding 102,693            

Total deferred outflows of resources   1,749,797         

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,904,314         
Accrued interest payable 379,063            
Unearned revenues 369,407            
Bonds and loans payable 5,173,327         
Compensated absences 978,231            
Claims liability 1,035,514         
Landfill closure 5,000                

Total current liabilities 10,844,856       

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds and loans payable 33,108,736       
Net pension liability 16,710,356       
Compensated absences 331,406            
Landfill closure 50,000              

Total noncurrent liabilities 50,200,498       

Total liabilities 61,045,354       

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Advance property tax collections 118,417            
Advance sewer use collections 1,252                
Changes in pension actuarial experience 1,453,737         

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,573,406         

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 98,938,703       
Unrestricted 20,921,393       

Total Net Position $ 119,860,096   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT II
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Net Revenues
(Expenses) and

Changes in
Net Position

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental 

Function/Program Activities Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities

Primary Government:
Governmental activities:

General government $ 2,851,855 $ 904,172              $ 1,023,774            $ $ (923,909)             
Planning and development 1,363,689           2,202                  898,406               350,000 (113,081)             
Public safety 5,458,475           312,583              54,129                 (5,091,763)          
Facility management 13,455,187         3,557,914            250,021               383,902              (9,263,350)          
Culture and recreation 5,696,882 1,733,275           178,219               (3,785,388)          
Health and welfare 899,974              1,464                  204,394               (694,116)             
Education 92,918,242         878,295              22,786,889          72,604                (69,180,454)        
Interest on long-term debt 854,362              (854,362)             

Total Governmental Activities $ 123,498,666       $ 7,389,905           $ 25,395,832          $ 806,506              (89,906,423)        

General Revenues:  
    Property taxes, levied for general purposes  85,768,365         
    Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs    195,890              
    Investment earnings 120,444              
    Other general revenues  852,587              
      Total general revenues  86,937,286         

Change in net position   (2,969,137)          

Net Position at Beginning of Year 122,829,233       

Net Position at End of Year   $ 119,860,096       

Program Revenues

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT III
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Capital and
Sewer Sewer Capital Nonrecurring Nonmajor Total

General Use Assessment Project Expenditures Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,890,049     $ 4,582,523   $ 1,720,701   $ 6,697,656   $ 997,691      $ 2,980,131     $ 23,868,751   
Investments 8,232,129     851,927        9,084,056     
Receivables 1,652,310     53,077        470,421      24,010        154,713      314,266        2,668,797     
Due from other funds 468,037                           111,968      24,676          604,681        
Inventories 24,121          24,121          
Other assets 14,663          1,000          1,500            17,163          

Total Assets $ 17,257,188   $ 4,636,600   $ 2,191,122   $ 6,833,634   $ 1,152,404   $ 4,196,621     $ 36,267,569   

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,622,045     $ 73,104        $ $ 911,223      $ 72,263        $ 224,027        $ 2,902,662     
Due to other funds 461,686      111,968        573,654        
Due to other governments 1,642            1,642            
Unearned revenue  4,980                             344,188      20,239          369,407        

Total liabilities  1,622,045      73,104         4,980           1,372,909    416,451       357,876         3,847,365     

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes  878,914        878,914        
Unavailable revenue - property tax interest 422,877        422,877        
Unavailable revenue - sewer assessments 470,421      470,421        
Unavailable revenue - loans receivable 21,739          21,739          
Advance sewer use collections  1,252          1,252            
Advance property tax collections 118,417        118,417        

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,420,208     1,252          470,421      -                  -                  21,739          1,913,620     

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable  14,663          1,000          25,621          41,284          
Restricted  1,341,471     1,341,471     
Committed  385,000        4,561,244   1,715,721   5,460,725   735,953      2,449,914     15,308,557   
Assigned  1,542,894     1,542,894     
Unassigned  12,272,378                       12,272,378   

Total fund balances 14,214,935   4,562,244   1,715,721   5,460,725   735,953      3,817,006     30,506,584   

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
 Resources and Fund Balances $ 17,257,188   $ 4,636,600   $ 2,191,122   $ 6,833,634   $ 1,152,404   $ 4,196,621     $ 36,267,569   

    

(Continued on next page)
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EXHIBIT III
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (Exhibit I) are
 different because of the following: 

Fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit III) $ 30,506,584       

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
 resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds: 

Governmental capital assets $ 238,169,605     
Less accumulated depreciation (104,910,291)    
Net capital assets 133,259,314     

Other long-term assets and deferred outflows of resources are
 not available to pay for current-period
 expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds: 

Other postemployment benefit asset 5,099,130         
Loans receivable 4,596,121         
Property tax receivables greater than 60 days 1,301,791         
Sewer assessments receivable  470,421            
Interest receivable on sewer use receivable 27,273              
Changes in pension actuarial experience 636,829            
Changes in pension investment gains/losses 1,010,275         

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
 risk management to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of  
 the internal service funds are reported with governmental activities  
 in the statement of net position. 1,039,521         

Long-term liabilities, including deferred inflows of resources are 
 not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
 reported in the funds: 

Bonds payable (24,675,000)      
Unamortized bond premium (1,830,254)        
Deferred charge on refunding 102,693            
Clean Water Fund 2% loan (11,716,683)      
Notes payable (60,126)             
Interest payable on bonds (379,063)           
Compensated absences (1,309,637)        
Net pension liability (16,710,356)      
Changes in pension actuarial experience (1,453,737)        
Landfill liability (55,000)             

Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit I) $ 119,860,096    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT IV
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Capital and

Sewer Sewer Capital Nonrecurring Nonmajor Total

General Use Assessment Project Expenditures Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund

Revenues:  

Property taxes  $ 85,638,921     $ $ $ $ $ $ 85,638,921         

Intergovernmental  20,134,283     442,764       300,109              5,812              5,217,803        26,100,771         

Investment income (loss) 45,381            131              206             73,298             119,016              

Charges for goods and services  788,097          2,849,151        3,637,248           

Licenses and permits  459,719          459,719              

Rental of town-owned property  132,302          132,302              

Local revenues  38,217            200,000              238,217              

Assessments                         2,536,406    591,785      3,128,191           

Other                         654,859       12,987                                                          609,176           1,277,022           

Total revenues  107,236,920   3,634,160     604,978       500,109               5,812              8,749,428        120,731,407       

Expenditures:  

Current:  

General government 2,177,334       33,562             2,210,896           

Planning and development 541,257          735,705           1,276,962           

Public safety  4,507,777       227,832           4,735,609           

Facility management 3,919,551       1,863,744    71,945             5,855,240           

Culture and recreation 2,320,523       2,009,733        4,330,256           

Health and welfare 607,609          201,559           809,168              

Fringe benefits and insurances  4,871,466       4,871,466           

Education  80,381,153     4,994,798        85,375,951         

Capital outlay                        8,549,204           1,354,058       597,242       10,500,504     

Debt service: 

Principal payments  5,150,000       1,019,792    8,522               6,178,314           

Interest and other   488,175          245,415       131,382              864,972              

Total expenditures 104,964,845   3,128,951    -                 8,680,586           1,354,058       8,880,898        127,009,338       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over

 Expenditures  2,272,075       505,209       604,978      (8,180,477)          (1,348,246)      (131,470)         (6,277,931)          

Other Financing Sources (Uses):   

Transfers in   239,095          2,556,265           1,314,636       211,356           4,321,352           

Transfers out    (2,220,224)      (1,190,739)  (395,000)                               (403,421)         (111,968)         (4,321,352)          

Premium on bond issuance 461,686          850,000              1,311,686           

Bond issuance 10,940,000         10,940,000         

Total other financing sources (uses)   (1,519,443)      (1,190,739)  (395,000)    14,346,265         911,215          99,388             12,251,686         

Net Change in Fund Balances  752,632          (685,530)     209,978      6,165,788           (437,031)         (32,082)           5,973,755           

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year  13,462,303     5,247,774    1,505,743   (705,063)             1,172,984       3,849,088        24,532,829         

Fund Balances at End of Year  $ 14,214,935     $ 4,562,244    $ 1,715,721   $ 5,460,725           $ 735,953          $ 3,817,006        $ 30,506,584         

(Continued on next page)
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EXHIBIT IV
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit II) are different because 
 of the following: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit IV) $ 5,973,755      

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of 
 activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
 reported as depreciation expense.  

Capital outlay 5,310,399      
Depreciation expense (5,569,307)     
Loss on disposal of capital assets (722,211)        

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
 resources are not reported as revenues in the funds, and revenues recognized in the funds
 are not reported in the statement of activities:

Property taxes collected after 60 days 128,904         
Sewer assessment revenue  1,738             
Loans receivable (328,221)        
Sewer use interest receivable 540                

Change in other post employment benefit assets 227,656       
Changes in pension actuarial experience 668,312         
Changes in pension investment gains/losses (3,944,148)     

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
 to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
 current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any
 effect on net position.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, 
 discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred 
 and amortized in the statement of activities.  This amount is the net effect of these
 differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 

Bond issuance (10,940,000)   
Premium on bonds issued (1,311,686)     
Premium amortization 291,650         
Accrued interest (231,053)        
Principal payments 6,177,664      
Claims settlement 70,000           
Pension liability 3,332,511      

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial  
 resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

       
Amortization of deferred charge on refunding (49,336)          
Changes in pension actuarial experience (848,282)        
Change in long-term compensated absences (172,233)        
Other - landfill 5,000             

The net profit (loss) of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (1,040,789)     

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit II)     $ (2,969,137)   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT V
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS     
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Variance with Variance with
Final Budget Final Budget

Positive Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
Property taxes $ 84,562,585   $ 84,562,585   $ 85,638,921   $ 1,076,336      $ $ $ $ -                     
Intergovernmental revenues 7,274,390     7,274,390     7,313,470     39,080           409,927        409,927        409,927        -                     
Investment income 180,000        180,000        45,381          (134,619)        7,997            7,997            131               (7,866)           
Charges for goods and services   563,300        563,300        767,837        204,537         90,315          90,315          634,006        543,691        
Fines and forfeitures 59,500          59,500          52,325          (7,175)            -                     
Rental of town-owned property    121,000        121,000        132,302        11,302           -                     
Licenses and permits 788,200        788,200        459,719        (328,481)        -                     
Local revenue 52,320          52,320                               69,380          69,380          
Assessment interest and liens -                    27,000          27,000          20,853          (6,147)           
Assessments                                                             -                    2,657,715     2,657,715     2,536,406     (121,309)       

Total revenues 93,548,975   93,548,975   94,462,275   913,300         3,192,954     3,192,954     3,670,703     477,749        

Expenditures:
Current: 

General government 1,154,423     1,172,121     1,172,121     -                    -                     
Financial services 1,016,720     929,236        929,236        -                    -                     
Planning and development    568,209        523,257        523,257        -                    -                     
Public safety 4,602,347     4,507,780     4,507,780     -                    -                     
Facility management    3,951,767     3,914,818     3,914,818     -                    2,081,882     2,081,882     1,846,391     235,491        
Culture and recreation 2,288,900     2,322,283     2,322,283     -                    -                     
Health and welfare 622,680        607,609        607,609        -                    -                     
Fringe benefits and insurance     4,784,483     4,871,466     4,871,466     -                    -                     
Education 67,422,772   67,422,772   67,402,936   19,836           -                     
Debt service 6,589,819     6,600,828     6,600,828     -                    1,265,208     1,265,208     1,265,206     2                    

Total expenditures 93,002,120   92,872,170   92,852,334   19,836           3,347,090     3,347,090     3,111,597     235,493        

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 546,855        676,805        1,609,941     933,136         (154,136)       (154,136)       559,106        713,242        

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers from other funds    104,094          104,094          264,095          160,001          -                      

Transfers to other funds (1,073,949)      (1,262,707)      (1,262,707)      -                      (101,446)         (101,446)         (1,190,739)      (1,089,293)      
Net other financing uses    (969,855)       (1,158,613)    (998,612)       160,001         (101,446)       (101,446)       (1,190,739)    (1,089,293)    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
 Financing Sources over Expenditures  
 and Other Financing Uses $ (423,000)       $ (481,808)       611,329        $ 1,093,137      $ (255,582)       $ (255,582)       (631,633)       $ (376,051)       

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 12,733,620   5,184,883     

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 13,344,949   $ 4,553,250     

General Fund Sewer Use Fund

Budget Budget

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT VI
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Governmental 
Activities

Health 
Insurance Fund

Assets:
Current assets:  

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,752,019         
Accounts receivable, net 367                   
Prepaid items 329,000            

Total current assets 2,081,386         

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Due to other funds 6,351                
Claims incurred but not reported   1,035,514         

Total liabilities 1,041,865         

Net Position: 
Unrestricted  $ 1,039,521         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT VII
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES  
IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Governmental 
Activities

Health 
Insurance 

Fund

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for services $ 11,756,122      
Other operating revenue 632,747           

Total operating revenues 12,388,869      

Operating Expenses: 
Claims incurred 12,472,676      
Administration and stop loss insurance fees 956,982           

Total operating expenses 13,429,658      

Change in Net Position (1,040,789)       

Net Position at Beginning of Year 2,080,310        

Net Position at End of Year   $ 1,039,521       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT VIII
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Governmental 
Activities

Health 
Insurance 

Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:  
Receipts from customers and users $ 12,388,869      
Payments to employees (13,333,681)     

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   (944,812)          

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Payments from (to) other funds 6,351               

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (938,461)          

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year  2,690,480        

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year  $ 1,752,019       

Reconciliation of Operating (Income) Loss to Net Cash Provided by
 (Used in) Operating Activities:   

Operating income (loss) $ (1,040,789)       
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by  
 (used in) operating activities:    

Change in assets and liabilities:   
Decrease in accounts receivable   194                  
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (3,958)              
Increase (decrease) in claims payable  99,741             

Total adjustments  95,977             

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities   $ (944,812)         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT IX
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Pension and
Other

Employee
Benefit Trust Agency

Funds Funds

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 842,125           $ 1,054,712        
Investments, at fair value:

Mutual funds  73,965,365      
Accounts receivable 76,784             

Total assets  74,884,274    $ 1,054,712       

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 7,725               $
Due to student groups and others  1,030,036        
Due to other funds 24,676             

Total liabilities  7,725             $ 1,054,712       

Net Position Restricted for Pension and Other 
  Post Employee Benefits $ 74,876,549    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT X
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Pension and
Other

Employee
Benefit Trust

Funds

Additions:
Contributions:   

Employer $ 3,978,063        
Plan members 1,057,336        

Total contributions 5,035,399        

Investment earnings:
Change in fair value of investments 6,508,893        
Interest 1,443,036        

Total investment gain (loss) 7,951,929        
Less investment expenses:

Investment management fees 110,914           
Net investment gain  (loss) 7,841,015        

Total additions 12,876,414      

Deductions:
Benefits 5,041,035        
Administrative expense 96,936             

Total deductions 5,137,971        

Net Change in Net Position 7,738,443        

Net Position at Beginning of Year 67,138,106      

Net Position at End of Year $ 74,876,549      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2017 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Town of Simsbury, Connecticut (the Town) operates under a charter as revised November 6, 2012.  
The Town is governed by an elected Board of Selectmen consisting of a first selectman and five other 
members, an elected eight-member Board of Education, and an elected six-member Board of Finance.  
The financial statements include all of the funds of the Town that meet the criteria for inclusion as set 
forth in Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards No. 61 issued by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) require that the 
reporting entity include the primary government and its component units, entities for which the 
government is considered to be financially accountable, all organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable, and other organizations which by the nature and significance of 
their relationship with the primary government would cause the financial statements to be incomplete or 
misleading if excluded.  Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, 
part of the government’s operations; therefore, data from these units are combined with data of the 
primary government.  Based on these criteria, there are no component units requiring inclusion in these 
financial statements. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with GAAP as applied to 
government units.  The GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant of the Town’s accounting policies 
are described below. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town.  Interfund services 
provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.  Governmental activities are 
normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.    

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment.  Certain indirect costs are allocated as part of the program expense 
reported for individual functions and activities and are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.  
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit 
from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  Major 
individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
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Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial 
statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in 
the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.  Agency funds use the accrual basis of 
accounting but have no measurement focus since they report only assets and liabilities. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For 
this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the 
end of the current fiscal period.   

Property taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  In 
determining when to recognize intergovernmental revenues (grants and entitlements), the legal and 
contractual requirements of the individual programs are used as guidance.  Revenues are recognized 
when the eligibility requirements have been met.  Only the portion of special assessments receivable 
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current 
period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the Town. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and 
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:   

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources 
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Sewer Use Fund is the sewer treatment plant primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial 
resources associated with the operations of the sewer treatment plant.  The major sources of revenue 
for this fund is sewer assessments and use charges. 

The Sewer Assessment Fund accounts for all financial resources of extending sewers within the 
Town of Simsbury.  The major source of revenue for this fund is sewer assessment charges. 

The Capital Project Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for capital expenditures or for 
the acquisition or construction of capital facilities, improvements and/or equipment.  Capital projects 
of greater than one year’s duration have been accounted for in the Capital Project Fund.  Most of the 
capital outlays are financed by the issuance of general obligation bonds.  Other sources include 
capital grants, current tax revenues and low-interest state loans. 

The Capital and Nonrecurring Expenditures Fund accounts for equipment purchases and other 
nonrecurring capital expenditures. 
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Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types: 

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for proceeds of special revenue sources (except for 
major capital projects and trust funds) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.   

The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the Town’s self-insurance program for accident and 
health insurance coverage of Town and Board of Education employees. 

The Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds are used to account for the activities of the 
Town’s defined benefit plans and the Town and Board of Education for other post employment 
benefits (e.g., health insurance, life insurance) which accumulate resources for pension benefit and 
other post employment benefit payments to qualified employees. 

The Agency Funds account for monies held by the Town on behalf of students. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenue includes all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection 
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the Town’s 
proprietary funds are charges to the Town and its employees for medical insurance premiums.  
Operating expenses for the fund include the cost of claims and administrative expenses.  All revenues 
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  Unrestricted resources are 
used in the following order: committed, assigned then unassigned. 

C. Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, all savings, checking, money market accounts and certificates of 
deposit with an original maturity of less than 90 days are considered to be cash equivalents. 

D. Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value. 

E. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.  Inventories of donated 
commodities are stated at fair market value.  Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as 
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 
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F. Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of 
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans).  All 
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”  

G. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets 
are defined by the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life of more than two years.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at 
the date of donation.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 

Property, plant and equipment of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

Assets Years 
  
Infrastructure:  

Roadways 40 
Roadways - resurfacing 20 
Bridge culvert  30-50 
Sanitary sewer interceptors 40-50 
Walkway and path  15-30 
Dams and storm water control 40-60 
Structure 40-60 
Site lighting  20 

Land and Buildings:  
Land - 
Buildings 50 
Improvements 10-25 
Construction in progress - 

Vehicles and Equipment:  
Computer equipment 5 
Contractor’s equipment 10 
Furniture and fixtures 20 
Miscellaneous equipment 5-10 
Vehicles 3-10 
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H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period or periods and 
so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The Town 
reports a deferred charge on refunding and deferred outflows related to pension in the government-
wide statement of net position.  A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the 
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and amortized over 
the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.  A deferred outflow of resources related to 
pension results from differences between expected and actual experience or other inputs.  These 
amounts are deferred and included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided 
with benefits through the pension plan (active employees and inactive employees). 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period or 
periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The Town 
reports deferred inflows related to pension in the government-wide statement of net position and 
reports advance property tax collections and advance sewer use collections in the government-wide 
statement of net position and in the governmental funds balance sheet.  A deferred inflow of resources 
related to pension results from differences between expected and actual experience.  These amounts 
are deferred and included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a period equal 
to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with benefits 
through the pension plan (active employees and inactive employees).  Advance property tax collections 
and advance sewer use collections represent taxes and fees inherently associated with a future period.  
This amount is recognized during the period in which the revenue is associated.  Also, for governmental 
funds, the Town reports unavailable revenue, which arises only under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from several sources: property taxes, 
property tax interest, sewer assessment and loans receivable.  These amounts are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in the period in which the amounts become available.  

I. Net Pension Liability 

The net pension liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefits 
that is attributed to past periods of employee service (total pension liability), net of the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position.  The pension plan’s fiduciary net position is determined using the same valuation 
methods that are used by the pension plan for purposes of preparing its statement of fiduciary net 
position.  The net pension liability is measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the end 
of the employer’s prior fiscal year, consistently applied from period to period. 

J. Other Post Employment (OPEB) Assets 

The net OPEB asset represents the cumulative difference between the annual OPEB cost and the 
Town’s contributions to the plan.  This amount is calculated on an actuarial basis and is recorded as a 
noncurrent asset in the government-wide financial statements. 

 

 



TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

31 

K. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of net position.  Bond 
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective 
interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  Bond 
issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt 
service expenditures. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources 
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.  

L. Compensated Absences and Termination Benefits 

Employees are paid by prescribed formula for absence due to vacation or sickness.  All vacation and 
sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial 
statements.  A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, 
for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 

M. Equity 

Equity in the government-wide financial statements is defined as “net position” and is classified in the 
following categories: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.   

Restricted Net Position 
Restrictions are externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, 
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation.  The Town currently has no assets under restriction. 

Unrestricted Net Position 
This component consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net 
investment in capital assets.” 

The equity of the fund financial statements is defined as “fund balance” and is classified in the following 
categories: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance 
This represents amounts that cannot be spent due to form (e.g., inventories and prepaid amounts).   

Restricted Fund Balance 
This represents amounts constrained for a specific purpose by external parties, such as grantors, 
creditors, contributors, or laws and regulations of their governments. 
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Committed Fund Balance 
This represents amounts constrained for a specific purpose by a government using its highest level of 
decision-making authority (Simsbury Board of Finance).  The Board of Finance is the highest level of 
decision-making authority for the government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of 
the fiscal year, commit fund balance.  Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains 
in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or reverse the 
limitation. 

Assigned Fund Balance 
This balance represents amounts constrained for the intent to be used for a specific purpose by the 
finance director or the Board of Finance which have been delegated authority to assign amounts by 
the Town Charter. 

Unassigned Fund Balance 
This represents fund balance in the General Fund in excess of nonspendable, restricted, committed 
and assigned fund balance.  If another governmental fund has a fund balance deficit, it is reported as 
a negative amount in unassigned fund balance.  

N. Property Taxes 

The Town’s property tax is levied each June on the assessed value listed on the prior October 1 Grand 
List for all taxable property located in the Town.  Although taxes are levied in June, the legal right to 
attach property does not exist until July 1.  Real and personal property tax bills in excess of $100 are 
due and payable in two installments, on July 1 following the date of the Grand List and on January 1 of 
the subsequent year.  Motor vehicle taxes are payable in one installment on July 1. 

Additional property taxes are assessed for motor vehicles registered subsequent to the Grand List date 
through July 31 and are payable in one installment due January 1. 

Taxes not paid within 30 days of the due date are subject to an interest charge of 1.5% per month.  The 
Town files liens against property if taxes that are due July 1 remain unpaid on the following June 30. 

Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available.  Available means due or past due 
and receivable within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used 
to pay liabilities of the current period.  The Town defines the current period to mean within 60 days after 
year-end.  Property taxes receivable not expected to be collected during the available period are 
reflected in deferred revenue in the fund financial statements.  The entire receivable is recorded as 
revenue in the government-wide financial statements.  Property taxes collected prior to June 30 that are 
applicable to the subsequent year’s assessment are reflected as advance tax collections in both the 
fund financial statements and the government-wide financial statements. 

O. Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
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2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary Information 

Budgets for the General Fund, Sewer Use Fund, Residential Rental Properties Fund and Simsbury 
Farms Fund are authorized annually by the Board of Finance.  Annual budgets are not adopted for 
Special Revenue Funds other than the Sewer Use Fund, Residential Rental Properties Fund and 
Simsbury Farms Fund. 

In accordance with the Town Charter, Chapter 9, Sections 901 through 911, the Town uses the 
following procedures in establishing the budgetary data included in the general-purpose financial 
statements: 

No later than the 15th day of March, the Board of Education shall present its budget for the General 
Fund to the Board of Finance. 

No later than the 30th day of March, the Board of Selectmen shall present to the Board of Finance a 
budget for all departments, offices or agencies of the Town except the Board of Education for the 
General Fund. 

After various public hearings, the Board of Finance recommends the budget, as revised, for adoption 
at the Annual Town Meeting held on the first Tuesday in May.  The Annual Town Meeting may reduce 
the annual budget or any portion thereof by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the voters in attendance, but shall 
not increase the annual budget or any portion thereof, as approved, or deemed to have been 
approved by the Board of Finance. 

The Annual Town Meeting is then subject to an automatic referendum by all qualified voters of the 
Town.  This referendum shall be held from 14 to 21 days following the conclusion of the Town 
Meeting.  Any motion at a Town Meeting dealing with a referendum matter which reduces the amount 
of such referendum matter shall require a two-thirds (2/3) vote of those voters in attendance for 
passage.  The Board of Finance, in cooperation with the First Selectman, shall revise the annual 
budget, or that portion thereof, which has been rejected at the referendum, as the case may be, and 
present it at a subsequent Town Meeting for discussion and an additional referendum for acceptance.  
If the budget remains unaccepted after such subsequent meeting and referendum, the budget 
adopted for the then current fiscal year shall be deemed to be the temporary budget for the 
forthcoming fiscal year and expenditures may be made on a month-to-month basis in accordance 
therewith, until such time as the referendum finally adopts a new budget. 

Upon request of the Board of Selectmen, during the last six months of the fiscal year, the Board of 
Finance may, by resolution, transfer any unencumbered appropriation, balance or portion thereof from 
one department, commission, board or office to another, except for the Board of Education.  No transfer 
shall be made from any appropriation for debt service and other statutory charges.  

For management purposes, the Board of Finance is authorized to transfer the legally budgeted 
amounts between department accounts.  In this function, departmental budget accounts serve as the 
legal level of control for the General Fund.  The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level for 
the Sewer Use, Residential Rental Properties, Animal Control and Simsbury Farms funds. 

All unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end, except those for capital projects and special 
revenue funds.  Appropriations for these expenditures are continued until completion of applicable 
projects, which often last more than one fiscal year. 
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Subject to certain restrictions, additional appropriations may be approved by the Board of Finance upon 
recommendation of the Board of Selectmen.  Summarizations of the amended General Fund budgets 
approved by the Board of Finance for the “budgetary” general and certain special revenue funds are 
presented in the required supplementary information.  During the year, supplemental budgetary 
appropriations of $58,808 were made from General Fund unappropriated and unencumbered surplus. 

The Town’s budgeting system requires accounting for certain transactions to be on a basis other than 
GAAP.  The major difference between the budgetary and GAAP basis is that encumbrances are 
recognized as a charge against a budget appropriation in the year in which the purchase order is 
issued, and, accordingly, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are recorded in budgetary reports as 
expenditures of the current year, whereas, on a GAAP basis, encumbrances are included in either 
restricted, committed or assigned fund balance depending on the level of restriction.  In addition, the 
on-behalf payment of the State of Connecticut Teacher’s Retirement System is recorded for GAAP 
purposes only. 

As explained above, the Town’s budgetary fund structure accounts for certain transactions differently 
from that utilized in reporting in conformity with GAAP.  A reconciliation of these differences at June 30, 
2017 follows: 

Revenue Expenditures 
and Other and Other
Financing Financing Fund
Sources Sources Balance

General Fund:
Balance, budgetary basis $ 94,726,370   $ 94,115,041   $ 13,344,949     

Encumbrances outstanding at 
June 30, 2016, liquidated during
the year ended June 30, 2017 251,777        

Encumbrances outstanding at 
June 30, 2016, cancelled during
the year ended June 30, 2017 (46,168)         

Encumbrances outstanding at 
June 30, 2017, charged to budgetary
expenditures during the year 
ending June 30, 2017 (42,894)         42,894            

Encumbrances outstanding at 
June 30, 2016, still outstanding
at June 30, 2017 3,140             

State Teachers’ Retirement 
on-behalf payments 12,820,813   12,820,813   

GASB 54 Combined Funds 22,734          65,332          385,000          

Interfund transfer (47,734)         (25,000)         (22,734)           

Bond premiums 461,686        461,686          

Balance, GAAP Basis $ 107,937,701 $ 107,185,069 $ 14,214,935     
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Revenue Expenditures 
and Other and Other
Financing Financing Fund
Sources Sources Balance

Sewer Use Fund:
Balance, budgetary basis $ 3,670,703     $ 4,302,336     $ 4,553,250       

Encumbrances outstanding at 
June 30, 2016, liquidated during 26,348          
the year ended June 30, 2017

Encumbrances outstanding at 
June 30, 2016, cancelled during
the year ended June 30, 2017 (36,543)         

Encumbrances outstanding at
 June 30, 2017, charged to budgetary
expenditures during the year
 ended June 30, 2017 (8,994)           8,994             

Encumbrances outstanding at 
June 30, 2016, still outstanding
at June 30, 2017

Balance, GAAP Basis $ 3,634,160     $ 4,319,690     $ 4,562,244       

 
 
3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-402).  Deposits 
may be made in a “qualified public depository” as defined by Statute or, in amounts not exceeding the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit, in an “out of state bank” as defined by the 
Statutes, which is not a “qualified public depository.” 

The Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-400) permit municipalities to invest in: 1) obligations of 
the United States and its agencies, 2) highly rated obligations of any state of the United States or of any 
political subdivision, authority or agency thereof, and 3) shares or other interests in custodial 
arrangements or pools maintaining constant net asset values and in highly rated no-load open end 
money market and mutual funds (with constant or fluctuating net asset values) whose portfolios are 
limited to obligations of the United States and its agencies, and repurchase agreements fully 
collateralized by such obligations.  Other provisions of the Statutes cover specific municipal funds with 
particular investment authority.  The provisions of the Statutes regarding the investment of municipal 
pension funds do not specify permitted investments.  Therefore, investment of such funds is generally 
controlled by the laws applicable to fiduciaries and the provisions of the applicable plan. 
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The Statutes (Sections 3-24f and 3-27f) also provide for investment in shares of the State Short-Term 
Investment Fund (STIF) and the State Tax Exempt Proceeds Fund (TEPF).  These investment pools 
are under the control of the State Treasurer, with oversight provided by the Treasurer’s Cash 
Management Advisory Board, and are regulated under the State Statutes and subject to annual audit 
by the Auditors of Public Accounts.  Investment yields are accounted for on an amortized-cost basis 
with an investment portfolio that is designed to attain a market-average rate of return throughout 
budgetary and economic cycles.  Investors accrue interest daily based on actual earnings, less 
expenses and transfers to the designated surplus reserve, and the fair value of the position in the pool 
is the same as the value of the pool shares. 

Deposits 

Deposit Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposit will not be 
returned.  The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.  The deposit of public funds 
is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes.  Deposits may be placed with any qualified public 
depository that has its main place of business in the State of Connecticut.  Connecticut General 
Statutes require that each depository maintain segregated collateral (not required to be based on a 
security agreement between the depository and the municipality and, therefore, not perfected in 
accordance with federal law) in an amount equal to a defined percentage of its public deposits based 
upon the depository’s risk-based capital ratio. 

Based on the criteria described in GASB Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures, 
$19,861,448 of the Town’s bank balance of $20,227,308 was exposed to custodial credit risk as 
follows: 

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 17,841,829      
Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank’s
 trust department, not in the Town’s name 2,019,619        

Total Amount Subject to Custodial Credit Risk $ 19,861,448    

 
Cash Equivalents 

At June 30, 2017, the Town’s cash equivalents amounted to $7,841,680.  The following table provides 
a summary of the Town’s cash equivalents (excluding U.S. government guaranteed obligations) as 
rated by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.  The pools all have maturities of less than 
one year. 

 Standard 
& Poor’s 

  
State Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF) AAAm 
Morgan Stanley - Money Market * 

 
  * Not rated 
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Investments 

As of June 30, 2017, the Town had the following investments: 

Credit Fair Less More
Investment Type Rating Value Than 1 1-10 Than 10

U.S. Government Securities Aa1 $ 1,514,411       $ $ 1,514,411       $
Certificates of deposit* N/A 6,717,726       1,998,780        4,718,946       

Other investments: $ 1,998,780      $ 6,233,357       $ -                  
   Mutual funds N/A 71,534,575     
   Limited partnerships N/A 3,282,709       

Total investments $ 83,049,421   

Investment Maturities

 
*Included in FDIC insurance. 

Investment Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town will not be 
able to recover the value if its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party.  The State of Connecticut STIF Investments are 2a-7 like pools. 

Credit Risk 
The Town’s investment policy limits its investments to those in conformance with State Statutes 
governing qualified public depositories. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
Maturities shall be staggered to avoid undue concentration of funds in a specific maturity.  At least 10% 
of the portfolio shall be invested in overnight instruments or in marketable securities, which can be sold 
to raise cash in one day’s notice. 
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Fair Value 

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements); followed by quoted 
prices in inactive markets or for similar assets or with observable inputs (Level 2 measurements); and 
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).  The Town has the following 
recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017: 

June 30,
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by fair value level:
   U.S. Government Securities $ 1,514,411    $ 1,514,411       $ $
   Mutual Funds 71,534,575  71,534,575     

    Total investments measured at fair value 73,048,986 $ 73,048,986   $ -                     $ -                     

Investments measured at net asset value (NAV):   
   Cornerstone Patriot Fund LP  3,282,709    

Investments not included above:
   Certificates of deposit  6,717,726    

Total investments $ 83,049,421

Fair Value Measurements Using

 
Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices 
quoted in active markets for those securities.   

Private equity funds - international are valued as described in the following schedule. 

The valuation method for investments measured at the net asset value (NAV) per share (or its 
equivalent) is presented on the following table. 

Redemption Redemption
Fair Unfunded Frequency (If Notice

Value Commitments Currently Eligible) Period

   Cornerstone Patriot Fund LP  $ 3,282,709    $ -                      Quarterly 30 days  
 
Interest Rate Risk 
The Town’s investment policy limits its investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to 
fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  Except for CNR and Risk Management Funds, 
funds of the Town shall be invested in instruments whose maturities do not exceed 270 days at the time 
of purchase, unless a temporary extension of maturities is approved by the Board of Finance. 

The Pension Trust Funds are also authorized to invest in corporate bonds, domestic common stocks 
and domestic equity real estate.  The investments of this fund are held in Trust by a Trustee Bank, 
which executes investment transactions under the direction of the Pension Plans’ investment manager. 
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B. Receivables 

Receivables at year end for the government’s individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the 
aggregate are as follows:  

Capital and
Sewer Sewer Capital Nonrecurring
Use Assessment Projects Expenditures Other

General Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total

Receivables:  
Accounts  $ 203,443     $ 19,875     $ $ $ $ 130,566   $ 353,884     
Property taxes 1,025,990  1,025,990  
Interest receivable 422,877     422,877     
Special assessments                   33,202     470,421     503,623     
Due from other
 governments                   24,010         154,713           260,851   439,574     

Total Receivables* $ 1,652,310  $ 53,077     $ 470,421   $ 24,010       $ 154,713         $ 391,417   $ 2,745,948

 
*Does not include $27,273 of sewer interest receivable shown on the government wide financial 
statements.   
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C. Capital Assets   

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:  
Capital assets not being depreciated:  

Land  $ 10,175,191   $ $ $ 10,175,191   
Development rights 11,725,000   11,725,000   
Construction in progress  3,204,402     4,122,087     2,981,086     4,345,403     

Total capital assets not being depreciated  25,104,593   4,122,087     2,981,086     26,245,594   

Capital assets being depreciated:  
Buildings and improvements 137,928,423 2,761,662     498,541        140,191,544 
Land improvements 7,728,682     42,030          201,075        7,569,637     
Equipment 19,293,248   1,198,110     289,520        20,201,838   
Infrastructure  43,960,992   43,960,992   

Total capital assets being depreciated  208,911,345 4,001,802     989,136        211,924,011 

Less accumulated depreciation for:  
Buildings and improvements 49,887,385   3,370,577     130,867        53,127,095   
Land improvements 5,947,838     181,699        25,134          6,104,403     
Equipment 14,410,564   1,055,419     278,520        15,187,463   
Infrastructure  29,529,718   961,612        30,491,330   

Total accumulated depreciation  99,775,505   5,569,307     434,521        104,910,291 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net  109,135,840 (1,567,505)    554,615        107,013,720 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net  $ 134,240,433 $ 2,554,582     $ 3,535,701     $ 133,259,314 

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the government as follows: 

Governmental activities:
General government $ 304,429      
Education 2,391,555   
Public safety 123,233      
Facility management 2,000,808   
Culture and recreation 699,105      
Health and welfare 50,177        

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 5,569,307 
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Construction Commitments 

The government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2017.  The following is a summary of 
capital projects as of June 30, 2017:   

Project Spent
Project Authorization to Date

Sewer Extension Projects: 
Project 2010 $ 260,000      $ 154,398        
Project 2013 272,320      196,656        
Farmington River Design 1,147,300   215,542        
Wolcott Pump Station 1,378,500   994,314        
Longview SCADA Control and Pump Upgrade 65,000        35,278          
Sewer Main Extensions 156,000      23,034          
Inline Grinder and Screen Replacement FY15 260,000      237,024        
Sewer Main Extensions 371,000                           
Inline Grinder and Screen Replacement FY16 260,000      234,600        
Hopmeadow/Center Area Sewer repairs 135,000                           
West Mtn. Road Area Sewer Interceptor - Design 50,000        11,834          
Portable Generator 80,000        35,813          
Portable Six (6) Inch Dri-Prime Pump 72,000        61,093          
Sewer Main Extensions/Repairs - Massaco St 104,000                           
Hopmeadow/Center Area Sewer Repairs 100,000                           
Skidsteer Track Loader with Brush Cutter 83,103        76,784          
Oxidation Ditch Dissolved Oxygen Control 27,000        16,120          
Storage Building 65,000                             

Town Projects:
Library Expansion 5/06  6,100,000   6,099,439     
Gertsen Land Purchase 5/08  723,329      722,035        
Triangle Land Purchase 5/08  2,823,976   2,809,927     
Streetscape 10/167 5/08  326,800      325,493        
Eno Hall Improvements 5/08  1,032,551   1,032,551     
Water Extensions 5/08  170,000      161,115        
Tunxis Pump Station 5/10 670,000      612,762        
Paving Management 5/10 2,400,000   2,374,863     
Simsbury Farms Renovations 3,081,424   3,081,424     
Police Dispatch Console 185,000      184,721        
Emergency Mgmt Generators 363,213      339,676        
Ethel Walker PHII 2,050,000   2,037,064     
West ST/Owens Brook/Greenway 358,000      343,061        
DPW Truck Wash 257,400      257,400        
Town Hall Flat Roof Replacement 252,401      204,679        
Center Area Charrette Infrastructure* 540,000      250,942        
Senior/Community Center Design 204,000      105,314        
Town office renovation 107,120      72,890          
Town Teledata 125,000      107,394        
Eno Hall Roof Repair 117,670      111,968        
Ethel Walker Parcel C 1,168,049   1,125,736     
Multi Use Trail Connections/Master Plan Updates 212,000      76,779          
SF Golf Course Improvements 125,000      88,954          
Bridge Improvements (Design) 115,000                            
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Highway Pavement Management 2,504,575   2,504,575     
Technology Infrastructure 600,000      442,356        
Alternative Energy Efficiency Projects 103,000      102,999        
Open Space Betty Hudson Property 274,000      239,804        
SF Rink/Pool Improvements 1,100,000   1,039,188     
Park Improvements 508,000      450,586        
Open Space Planning and Improvements 145,000      28,657          
Weatogue Planning Route 10 and Code Prep 57,000                            
Salt Shed Replacement 375,000      375,000        
Municipal Building Renovations 50,000                            
Dam Evaluations and Repairs 30,000        29,483          
Public Works Complex Infrastructure Improvements 280,000      277,704        
Town Hall Site and Safety Improvements 45,000                            
Portable Generator / Generator Infrastructure 80,000        48,317          
Project Planning Fund 28,000        9,800            
Various Drainage Improvements 175,000      77,413          
Veterans Memorial (STEAP Grant) 450,000      404,541        
Multi-Use Connections & Master Plan Updates 1,160,000                       
SF Golf Course Improvements 125,000      83,402          
Greenway Improvements 240,000      183,135        
Open Space Planning Improvements 400,000                          
Street Lighting Purchase / Lighting Improvements 865,000      659,723        
Highway Pavement Management 2,500,000   1,373,901     
Dam Evaluations and Repairs 145,000                          
Public Works Complex Infrastructure Improvements 450,000      180,993        
Town Hall Site and Safety Improvements 385,000                          
Plan of Conservation & Development 130,000      76,080          
Portable Generator Infrastructure 175,000      7,754            
Window Replacement 44,000        8,228            
Land Use Studies 92,500                            
Park Improvements 30,000        30,000          
Athletic Field Improvements 30,000        29,999          
Energy Efficiency Financing Buyout 92,753        92,753          

Education Projects:  
Computer technology improv 5/06  450,000      440,336        
Tariffville expansion project 5/06  6,209,949   6,199,924     
HVAC Boiler replacement 5/08 700,000      633,174        
Tootin Hills roof replacement  1,257,500   1,032,723     
Squadron Line generator 5/09 150,000      117,012        
Latimer Lane roof replacement 5/10 1,277,500   1,176,996     
District Network Infrastructure 5/10 451,327      449,756        
District Network Infrastructure 5/12 1,800,000   1,789,741     
Boiler Replacement Squadron Line 850,000      679,643        
District Network Infrastructure 150,000      146,700        
HJMS Main Office Security Phase I 1,205,000   1,168,300     
SHS Turf Field/Synthetic Track Maintenance 910,000      824,646        
Squadron Line Main Office Project 900,000      867,600        
District Network Infrastructure 200,000      199,663        
Climate Control (Phase 1 - 7 buildings) 3,100,000   563,762        
Central School Roof Replacement 770,000      620,603        
District Network Infrastructure 450,000      170,889        
HJMS Renovation - Phase 2 1,950,000   363,625        
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Capital Nonrecurring Projects:
Town Security Measures 103,428      90,683          
School Security Measures 168,709      116,536        
FY13 Eng Transportation Facility Improvement 387,000      42,812          
Boilers/HVAC 7,546          5,077            
Building Renovations - Exterior 10,000        7,319            
Renovations-Interior 162,500      157,089        
Modifications-Plumbing 23,000        15,960          
School Equipment/Instruction/Non 97,000        93,397          
Computer Software 34,000        31,984          
Machinery & Equipment 40,000        16,579          
Trucks 26,300        22,501          
Renovations-Interior 87,500        73,594          
Modifications-Plumbing 31,000        24,645          
Communications Equipment 20,000        17,848          
Small Mower 13,000        9,900            
Pickup Truck 32,000                             
Renovations-Interior 70,000        16,110          
Building Renovations - Exterior 98,000        31,595          
Modifications-Plumbing 25,000                             
Ceiling/Floor Replacement 80,000        5,467            
School Buses 362,000      206,229        

Total $ 66,722,243   $ 52,005,486   

 
The commitments are being financed with general obligation bonds and state and federal grants.   

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

 Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Capital Project Fund $ 461,686
General Fund Health Insurance Fund 6,351
Capital Project Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 111,968
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Agency Funds 24,676

$ 604,681

 
Interfund balances are a result of temporary loans to various funds. 

Interfund transfers: 

Capital Capital Nonmajor Total
General Projects Nonrecurring Governmental Transfers

Fund Fund Fund Funds Out

Transfer out:
General Fund $ $ 694,232        $ 1,314,636     $ 211,356        $ 2,220,224     
Sewer Use Fund 104,095        1,086,644     1,190,739     
Sewer Assessment Fund 395,000        395,000        
Capital Nonrecurring Fund 135,000        268,421        403,421        
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 111,968        111,968        

Total Transfers In $ 239,095       $ 2,556,265   $ 1,314,636   $ 211,356      $ 4,321,352     

 
Interfund transfers arose from transferring monies to fund operating activities.  
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E. Long-Term Debt 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities:  
Bonds and loans payable:

General obligation bonds $ 18,885,000  $ 10,940,000    $ 5,150,000    $ 24,675,000    $ 4,125,000    
Premium on bonds issued 810,218       1,311,686      291,650       1,830,254      
Loans payable - Clean
 Water Fund 12,736,475  1,019,792    11,716,683    1,040,376    
Loan payable - State of 
 Connecticut 67,998         7,872           60,126           7,951           

Total bonds and
  loans payable 32,499,691  12,251,686    6,469,314    38,282,063    5,173,327    

Pension liability 20,042,867  3,332,511    16,710,356    
Compensated absences 1,137,404    987,471         815,238       1,309,637      978,231       
Claims settlement 70,000         70,000         -                     
Landfill closure 60,000         5,000           55,000           5,000           

Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities  $ 53,809,962  $ 13,239,157  $ 10,692,063 $ 56,357,056   $ 6,156,558  

 
Compensated absences and other long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the General Fund. 

General Obligation Bonds 

The Town issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities.   

General obligation bonds are direct obligations of the Town for which full faith and credit are pledged 
and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable properties located within the Town.  General obligation 
bonds currently outstanding are as follows: 

Principal
Date of Original Interest Maturity Annual Outstanding
Issue Issue Rate Date Principal June 30, 2017

Bonds payable:
General Bonds 4/8/2008 $ 4,000,000    3.25-4.00% 1/15/2018 $ 400,000 $ 400,000        
General Bonds 3/16/2011 5,000,000    1.50-3.00% 1/15/2021 500,000 500,000        
General Bonds 8/4/2011 5,000,000    2.00% 1/15/2018 205,000-1,630,000 1,565,000   
General Bonds 3/19/2013 5,555,000    1.50% 3/1/2023 550,000-560,000 3,315,000   
General Bonds 6/30/2015 9,060,000    2.00-4.00% 7/15/2025 635,000-1,595,000 7,955,000   
General Bonds 6/29/2017 10,940,000  2.00-5.00% 6/15/2027 1,215,000-1,220,000 10,940,000 

$ 24,675,000 Total Bonds Payable
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 $ 4,125,000    $ 786,989       $ 4,911,989    
2019 3,365,000    698,100       4,063,100    
2020 3,360,000    581,175       3,941,175    
2021 2,890,000    471,375       3,361,375    
2022 2,400,000    372,800       2,772,800    

2023-2027 8,535,000    633,250       9,168,250    

$ 24,675,000  $ 3,543,689  $ 28,218,689

 
Clean Water Fund Loan 

The Town’s Waste Water Treatment Plant $26,840,083 renovation and expansion capital project was 
funded by the State of Connecticut Clean Water Fund 2% Loan and Grant program.  The loan will be 
repaid by future sewer user charges. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Clean Water Fund loan are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 $ 1,040,376    $ 224,831       $ 1,265,207    
2019 1,061,375    203,832       1,265,207    
2020 1,082,798    182,409       1,265,207    
2021 1,104,654    160,553       1,265,207    
2022 1,126,951    138,256       1,265,207    

2023-2027 5,985,279    340,758       6,326,037    
2028 315,250       1,051           316,301       

$ 11,716,683  $ 1,251,690  $ 12,968,373

 
The Town has a corresponding receivable from participating municipalities for their portion of the Waste 
Water Treatment Plant renovation and expansion capital project.  The total loan receivable at June 30, 
2017 was $3,796,205.  Current year principal payments received by the Town totaled $330,413. 
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Project Loan 

The project loan obligation was issued by the State of Connecticut Department of Housing.  The loan 
proceeds financed the Eno Farmhouse Renovation Project.  The original loan balance was $220,638 
on June 10, 1994, with an interest rate of 1%.  The obligation will be paid from future taxation.  

Project loan obligations payable to the State of Connecticut mature as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 $ 7,951           $ 572              $ 8,523           
2019 8,030           492              8,522           
2020 8,111           411              8,522           
2021 8,192           330              8,522           
2022 8,275           247              8,522           

2023-2025 19,567         253              19,820         

$ 60,126        $ 2,305         $ 62,431       

 
Authorized But Unissued Bonds 

The total of authorized but unissued bonds (net of projected grants) at June 30, 2017 is $9,793,912.   

F. Fund Balance 

The components of fund balance for the governmental funds at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Sewer Sewer Capital Capital Nonmajor
General Use Assessment Projects Nonrecurring Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total

Fund balances:
  Nonspendable:
      Inventory $ $ $ $ $ $ 25,621             $ 25,621         

Prepaid expenditures 14,663           1,000         15,663         
  Restricted for:
      Grants                       11,025             11,025         
      Education trusts 406,921           406,921       
      Facilities management trusts 876,157           876,157       
      Health and welfare trusts 47,368             47,368         
  Committed to: 
     Sewer use 4,561,244  4,561,244    
     Sewer assessment 1,715,721    1,715,721    
     Education 385,000         822,917           1,207,917    
     General government 367,057           367,057       
     Public safety 401,109           401,109       
     Recreation 106,182           106,182       
     Planning and development 342,222           342,222       
     Health and welfare 212,591           212,591       
     Facilities management 197,836           197,836       
     Special assessment projects 735,953                              735,953       

Capital projects 5,460,725  5,460,725    
  Assigned to:
     Property purchases 1,500,000      1,500,000    
     Education 7,738             7,738           

  Culture and recreation 1,760                                    1,760           
     Facilities management 33,396           33,396         
  Unassigned   12,272,378                                           12,272,378  

Total Fund Balances  $ 14,214,935    $ 4,562,244  $ 1,715,721    $ 5,460,725  $ 735,953        $ 3,817,006        $ 30,506,584  

Major
Capital Project FundsSpecial Revenue Funds

Major
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Significant encumbrances at June 30, 2017 contained in the above table in the assigned and committed 
categories are as follows: 

Assigned Committed

General Fund $ 42,894     $
Sewer Use Fund 8,994       
Capital Projects Fund 112,313   
Capital Nonrecurring Fund 35,100     

$ 42,894     $ 156,407   

 
 
4. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 

A. Pension Trust Fund 

The Town maintains three single-employer defined benefit pension plans for full-time employees: 
General Government Plan, Police Plan and Board of Education Plan.  The plans are considered to be 
part of the Town’s financial reporting entity and are included in the Town’s financial reports as Pension 
Trust Funds.  The plans do not issue stand-alone financial reports. 

Oversight of the Town’s retirement plans rests with the Retirement Plan Sub-Committee, which is 
comprised of two members of the Board of Selectmen, two members of the Board of Education, two 
members of the Board of Finance and two members at large.  The Sub-Committee is staffed by the 
Town Treasurer, the Board of Education’s Business Manager and the Town’s Director of Administrative 
Services.  The Town and the Board of Education have appointed a third party to serve as fiduciary 
investment advisor.  Effective 2013, the Town of Simsbury’s Charter was amended to place fiduciary 
responsibility for the investment of pension funds to the Board of Finance. 

Plan Description and Benefits Provided 

General Government Pension Plan 
All full-time employees, except police and Board of Education employees, are eligible to participate in 
the General Government Pension Plan.  The Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and 
disability benefits.  Annual retirement benefits for normal retirement for plan participants are based on 
the average monthly compensation during the highest five consecutive years of service out of the last 
ten years of the participants’ active employment.  The plan permits early retirement for participants at 
age 55 with 5 years of credited service.  Benefits for early retirement are based on credited service and 
final average earnings to date of actual retirement reduced by 1/3 of 1% for each month by which the 
participant’s retirement date precedes his normal retirement date.  The participants’ annual benefit is 
2% of final average earnings times credited service for union employees, and 2½% of final average 
earnings times credited service for unaffiliated employees.  State of Connecticut Statutes assign the 
authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the plan to the Town. 
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Police Pension Plan 
All regular full-time employees of the Simsbury Police Department are eligible to participate in the 
Police Retirement Fund.  The Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death benefits under two 
separate divisions.  Division 000 participants are defined as those individuals who entered the plan on 
or after January 18, 1990, whereas Division 001 participants entered the plan prior to January 18, 1990.  
Pension benefits for normal retirement under the plan are based on average monthly compensation 
during the highest five consecutive years out of the last ten years.  The participants’ annual benefit is 
2½% of final average earnings times credited service for Division 000, and 2% of final average earnings 
times credited service for Division 001.  The Plan permits early retirement for participants at the earlier 
of 5 years early with 10 years of service or 20 years of credited service for Division 000, and at five 
years early with 10 years of credited service for Division 001.  Benefits are based on credited service 
and final average earnings to date of actual retirement actuarially reduced for each month by which the 
participant’s retirement date precedes his normal retirement date.  State of Connecticut Statutes assign 
the authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the plan to the Town. 

Board of Education Pension Plan 
All regular full-time employees of the Board of Education, other than individuals covered by the State 
Teachers Retirement System or those who participate in the defined contribution plan, are eligible to 
participate in the Plan.  The Plan provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits.  Pension 
benefits for normal retirement under the Plan are based on the average earnings received in the last 
three July 1’s before retirement for the National Association of Government Employees (NAGE); the 
average earnings received the last three completed years of employment for the Simsbury Federation 
of Educational Personnel (SFEP), and the highest average earnings received in any three consecutive 
July 1’s during the last ten years before retirement for unaffiliated employees and the Simsbury School 
Nurses Association (SSNA).  The participants’ annual benefit shall be equal to 1½% of final average 
earnings times credited service through July 1, 1996, plus 2% of final average earnings times credited 
service after July 1, 1996.  The plan permits early retirement for participants eligible five years early 
with ten years of credited service.  Benefits are based on credited service and final average earnings to 
date and actual retirement reduced by 4% for each year by which the participant’s retirement date 
precedes his normal retirement date.  There is no reduction for NAGE employees after age 62 and  
29 years of service or for unaffiliated employees after age 62 and 25 years of service.  State of 
Connecticut Statutes assign the authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the plan to 
the Town of Simsbury Board of Education. 

At July 1, 2016, plan membership consisted of the following: 

General Board of
Government Police Education

Plan Plan Plan

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 92                33                110              
Vested terminated employees 55                1                  84                
Active employees 102              37                162              

Total Participants 249            71               356             

 



TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

49 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting 
Pension plan financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  Employee and 
employer contributions are recognized as revenues in the period in which employee services are 
performed.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms 
of the plans.  

Method Used to Value Investments 
Investments are reported at fair value.  Securities traded on a national exchange are valued at the last 
reported sales price.  Investment income is recognized as earned. 

Contributions 

General Government Plan 
This plan provides for union employee contributions of 2% and for unaffiliated 5% of regular earnings 
for employees, hired prior to August 12, 2013, and 7% for unaffiliated hired after that date.  The Town is 
required by its Charter to contribute amounts necessary to fund the plan.  Employer contributions to the 
plan of $1,023,393 were made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements.  The 
contribution represents 115.2% of the actuarially determined contribution and 15.80% of covered 
payroll.  State of Connecticut Statutes assign the authority to establish and amend the contribution 
provisions of the plan to the Town. 

Administrative costs of the plan are financed through investment earnings. 

Police Plan 
Plan provisions require employee contributions of 6% of regular earnings for Division 000 and 
employee contributions of 3% of regular earnings for Division 001.  The Town is required by Charter to 
contribute amounts necessary to fund the plan.  Employer contributions to the plan of $727,009 were 
made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements.  The contribution represents 115.2% of 
the actuarially determined contribution and 24.91% of covered payroll.  State of Connecticut Statutes 
assign the authority to establish and amend the contribution provisions of the plan to the Town. 

Administrative costs of the plan are financed through investment earnings. 

Board of Education Plan 
This plan provides for employee contributions of 4% to 4.5% of regular earnings, based on the current 
individual collective bargaining contract.  The Town is required by its Charter to contribute amounts 
necessary to fund the plan.  Employer contributions to the plan of $1,288,982 were made in accordance 
with actuarially determined requirements.  The contribution represents 116.1% of the actuarially 
determined contribution and 16.39% of covered payroll.  State of Connecticut Statutes assign the 
authority to establish and amend the contribution provisions of the plan to the Town of Simsbury Board 
of Education. 

Administrative costs of the plan are financed through investment earnings. 
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Investments 

Investment Policy 
The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be 
amended by the Retirement Plan Subcommittee by a majority vote of its members.  It is the policy of 
the Retirement Plan Subcommittee to pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk through the 
prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct asset classes.  The pension 
plan’s investment policy discourages the use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and 
aims to refrain from dramatically shifting asset class allocations over short time spans.  The following 
was the Board’s adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30, 2017: 

Asset Class Target 

U.S. Core Fixed Income 28.00 %
U.S. Equity Market 29.50
Foreign Developed Equity 22.50
Hedge FOF Diversified 10.00
Private Real Estate Property 5.00
Commodities 5.00

Total 100.00 %

 
Rate of Return 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan 
investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was as follows: 

General Government 12.09%
Police 12.00%
Board of Education 12.07%

 
The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, 
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 

Net Pension Liability of the Town 

The components of the net pension liability of the Town at June 30, 2017, were as follows: 

General Board of
Government Police Education Total

Total pension liability $ 29,667,902   $ 19,539,296   $ 28,197,586   $ 77,404,784   
Plan fiduciary net position 23,295,414   16,266,199   21,132,815   60,694,428   

Net Pension Liability $ 6,372,488     $ 3,273,097   $ 7,064,771   $ 16,710,356   

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
  percentage of the total liability 78.52 % 83.25 % 74.95 % 78.41 %
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2016, using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 
General 

Government Police  Board of Education 
  
Inflation 2.75% 2.75%  2.75%
  
Salary increases 3.5% 8.25%, for first 7 

years and 3.00% 
thereafter

 3.5% 

  
Investment rate of return 7.0%, net of pension 

plan investment 
expense

7.0%, net of pension 
plan investment 

expense

 7.0%, net of pension 
plan investment 

expense
 
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Mortality for Employees, Healthy Annuitants, and Disabled 
Annuitants with generational projection per Scale AA. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2012 - July 1, 2016. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 (see the discussion of the pension plan’s investment policy) 
are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 

Asset Class
Real Rate 
of Return

U.S. Core Fixed Income 2.52 %
U.S. Equity Market 3.81
Foreign Developed Equity 4.20
Hedge FOF Diversified 1.66
Private Real Estate Property 3.13
Commodities 1.41  
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Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%.  The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that Town contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference 
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate.  Based on those assumptions, 
the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability  

Changes in the Net Pension Liability 

General Government 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances as of July 1, 2016 $ 27,795,511   $ 21,130,353            $ 6,665,158     

Changes for the year:
Service cost 668,192        668,192        
Interest on total pension liability 1,939,574     1,939,574     
Effect of plan changes 291,643        291,643        
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 509,974        509,974        
Benefit payments (1,536,992)    (1,536,992)             -                    
Employer contributions 877,664                 (877,664)       
Member contributions 295,408                 (295,408)       
Net investment income 2,563,793              (2,563,793)    
Administrative expenses (34,812)                  34,812          

Balances as of June 30, 2017 $ 29,667,902 $ 23,295,414          $ 6,372,488     

Increase (Decrease)

 
Police 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances as of July 1, 2016 $ 19,611,721   $ 14,632,757            $ 4,978,964     

Changes for the year:
Service cost 530,838        530,838        
Interest on total pension liability 1,374,437     1,374,437     
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (944,755)       (944,755)       
Benefit payments (1,032,945)    (1,032,945)             -                    
Employer contributions 677,434                 (677,434)       
Member contributions 239,130                 (239,130)       
Net investment income 1,774,219              (1,774,219)    
Administrative expenses (24,396)                  24,396          

Balances as of June 30, 2017 $ 19,539,296 $ 16,266,199          $ 3,273,097     

Increase (Decrease)
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Board of Education 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances as of July 1, 2016 $ 27,028,848   $ 18,630,103            $ 8,398,745     

Changes for the year:
Service cost 781,880        781,880        
Interest on total pension liability 1,903,998     1,903,998     
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (274,621)       (274,621)       
Benefit payments (1,242,519)    (1,242,519)             -                    
Employer contributions 1,112,035              (1,112,035)    
Member contributions 348,561                 (348,561)       
Net investment income 2,322,363              (2,322,363)    
Administrative expenses (37,728)                  37,728          

Balances as of June 30, 2017 $ 28,197,586 $ 21,132,815          $ 7,064,771    

Increase (Decrease)

 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Town, calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, 
as well as what the Town’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that 
is 1 percentage point lower (6.00%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)

General Government $ 9,910,730       $ 6,372,488       $ 3,802,496       
Police 5,629,499       3,273,097       1,378,811       
Board of Education 10,129,040   7,064,771     4,466,228       

Total $ 25,669,269   $ 16,710,356   $ 9,647,535       
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Town recognized pension expense of $3,458,740.  At June 30, 
2017, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pension from the following sources: 

General Government 

General
Deferred Deferred

Inflows of Outflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $ 155,631        $ 446,559        
Net difference between projected and
  actual earning on pension plan investments                      401,989        

Total $ 155,631      $ 848,548        

 
Police 

Police
Deferred Deferred

Inflows of Outflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $ 882,955        $ 99,046          
Net difference between projected and
  actual earning on pension plan investments                      303,047        

Total $ 882,955      $ 402,093        

 
Board of Education 

Board of Education
Deferred Deferred

Inflows of Outflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $ 415,151        $ 91,224          
Net difference between projected and
  actual earning on pension plan investments                      305,239        

Total $ 415,151      $ 396,463       
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ending June 30,

2018 $ 548,987
2019 497,554
2020 65,783
2021 (583,180)
2022 (105,944)
Thereafter (229,833)  

 
B. Teachers Retirement 

Plan Description 

Teachers, principals, superintendents or supervisors engaged in service of public schools are provided 
with pensions through the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System, a cost sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Teachers Retirement Board.  Chapter 167a 
of the State Statutes grants authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the Teachers 
Retirement Board.  The Teachers Retirement Board issues a publicly available financial report that can 
be obtained at www.ct.gov. 

Benefit Provisions 

The plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits.  Employees are eligible to retire at age 60 
with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited service including at least  
25 years of service in Connecticut.  

Normal Retirement 
Retirement benefits for employees are calculated as 2% of the average annual salary times the years 
of credited service (maximum benefit is 75% of average annual salary during the three years of highest 
salary). 

Early Retirement 
Employees are eligible after 25 years of credited service including 20 years of Connecticut service, or 
age 55 with 20 years of credited service including 15 years of Connecticut service with reduced benefit 
amounts.   

Disability Retirement 
Employees are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of service.  Five years 
of credited service is required for nonservice-related disability eligibility.  Disability benefits are 
calculated as 2% of average annual salary times credited service to date of disability, but not less than 
15% of average annual salary, nor more than 50% of average annual salary.   

Contributions 

Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-183z (which reflects Public Act 79-436 as amended), 
contribution requirements of active employees and the State of Connecticut are approved, amended 
and certified by the State Teachers Retirement Board and appropriated by the General Assembly. 
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Employer (School Districts) 

School District employers are not required to make contributions to the plan. 

The statutes require the State of Connecticut to contribute 100% of each school districts’ required 
contributions, which are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of the benefits earned by employees during the year, 
with any additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 

Employees 

Effective July 1, 1992, each teacher is required to contribute 6% of salary for the pension benefit. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2017, the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net pension liability, 
and related deferred outflows and inflows, due to the statutory requirement that the State pay 100% of 
the required contribution.  The amount recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability, the related state support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was 
associated with the Town were as follows: 

Town’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability $ - 

  
State’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability associated with the Town

 
117,564,334   

  
Total $ 117,564,334 
  

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016.  At 
June 30, 2017, the Town has no proportionate share of the net pension liability. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Town recognized pension expense and revenue of $12,820,813 
in Exhibit II for on-behalf amounts for the benefits provided by the State.    

Actuarial Assumptions  

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 2.75%
Salary increase 3.25-6.50%, including inflation 
Investment rate of return 8.00%, net of pension plan investment 
  expense, including inflation 
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Mortality rates were based on the RPH-2014 White Collar table with employee and annuitant rates 
blended from ages 50 to 80, projected to the year 2020 using the BB improvement scale, and further 
adjusted to grade in increased rates (5% for females and 8% for males) over age 80 for the period after 
service retirement and for dependent beneficiaries as well as for active members.  The RPH-2014 
Disabled Mortality Table projected to 2017 with Scale BB is used for the period after disability 
retirement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2015. 

For teachers who retired prior to September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are made in 
accordance with increases in the Consumer Price Index, with a minimum of 3% and a maximum of 5% 
per annum. 

For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System before July 1, 2007 and retire on 
or after September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are made that are consistent with those 
provided for Social Security benefits on January 1 of the year granted, with a maximum of 6% per 
annum.  If the return on assets in the previous year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 
1.5%. 

For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System after July 1, 2007, pension 
benefit adjustments are made that are consistent with those provided for Social Security benefits on 
January 1 of the year granted, with a maximum of 5% per annum.  If the return on assets in the 
previous year was less than 11.5%, the maximum increase is 3%, and if the return on the assets in the 
previous year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 1.0%.   

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation.  The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major 
class are summarized in the following table: 

  Target  Long-Term Expected 
Asset Class  Allocation  Real Rate of Return 
 
Large Cap U.S. equities 21.0% 7.3% 
Developed non-U.S. equities 18.0% 7.5% 
Emerging markets (non-U.S.) 9.0% 8.6% 
Core fixed income 7.0% 1.7% 
Inflation linked bond fund 3.0% 1.3% 
Emerging market bond 5.0% 4.8% 
High yield bonds 5.0% 3.7% 
Real estate 7.0% 5.9% 
Private equity 11.0% 10.9% 
Alternative investments 8.0% 0.7% 
Liquidity fund 6.0% 0.4% 
 
Total 100.0%
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Discount Rate  

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00%.  The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that State contributions will be made at the actuarially determined 
contribution rates in the future years.  Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability is $-0- and, therefore, the change in the 
discount rate would only impact the amount recorded by the State of Connecticut.   

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
financial statements available at www.ct.gov. 

Other Information 

Additional information is included in the required supplementary information section of the financial 
statements.  A schedule of contributions is not presented as the Town has no obligation to contribute to 
the plan. 

C. Post Employment Healthcare Plan - Retiree Health Plan 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements of the Retiree Health Plan (RHP) are prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.  
Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to 
provide the contributions.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the terms of the plan.  Administrative costs of the plan are paid by the Town. 

Investments are reported at fair value.  Investment income is recognized as earned. 

Plan Description 

The RHP is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the Town of Simsbury.  
The RHP provides medical, dental and life insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses.  All 
employees of the Town are eligible to participate in the plan.  Benefit provisions are established through 
negotiations between the Town and the various unions representing the employees.   

The plan is considered to be part of the Town’s financial reporting entity and is included in the Town’s 
financial report as the Other Post Employment Benefits Trust Fund.  The plan does not issue a stand-
alone financial report. 
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Management of the post employment benefits plan is vested with the Town Manager and Director of 
Finance/Treasurer.  Policy oversight is provided by the Board of Finance through active delegated 
involvement of the Retirement Plan Subcommittee, which consists of eight members.  The Board of 
Finance has engaged the services of an investment consultant to assist in the development and 
periodic review of the Investment Policy Statement for the Other Post Employment Benefits Trust. 

At July 1, 2015, plan membership consisted of the following: 

Retiree
Health
Plan

Retired members 234            
Spouses of retired members 35              
Active plan members 646            

Total Participants 915          

 
Funding Policy 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the Town are also negotiated with the various 
unions representing the employees.  Retired plan members and beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits are required to contribute specified amounts monthly towards the cost of health insurance 
premiums as follows: 

Town Employees 
Retired town employees under the age of 65 receiving coverage under CIGNA contribute between 
$139 and $558 per month for retiree only coverage and between $697 and $1,116 per month for retiree 
and spouse coverage to age 65.  Retired town employees under the age of 65 receiving coverage 
under CIGNA contribute between $204 and $816 per month for retiree only coverage and between 
$1,020 and $1,632 per month for retiree and spouse coverage to age 65.  Eligible Town employees 
over age 65 have the option of joining the Town’s fully-insured Anthem Medicare Supplement Plan.  
Retirees typically contribute 25% of the premium ($124) per month for individual coverage and 100% of 
the premium ($497) for spouse coverage. 

Board of Education Employees 
Retired Board of Education employees under 65 or not eligible for Medicare, can receive coverage 
through the same CIGNA plans available to active employees.  Retiree monthly contributions for retiree 
only plans and retiree and spouse plans are between $508 and $794 and $1,017 and $1,584, 
respectively.  Retired BOE employees over 65 and eligible for Medicare Part A and B may participate in 
the Board’s fully insured Anthem Medicare Supplement Plan with a monthly contribution of $470. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, plan members contributed $348,561 for their share of premium 
payments.  The Town is required to contribute the balance of the current premium cost and may 
contribute an additional amount as determined by the Town in order to prefund benefits.  

Employer contributions to the plan of $1,310,930 were made in accordance with actuarially determined 
requirements.   
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Investments 

Investment Policy 
The Investment Policy Statement of the Other Post Employment Benefits Trust outlines the goals and 
investment objectives for the Trust and is intended to provide guidelines for managing the Trust and to 
outline specific investment policies that will govern how these goals will be achieved.  The Investment 
Policy Statement is established and may be amended by a majority vote of the members of the 
Retirement Plan Subcommittee.  It is the policy of the Retirement Plan Subcommittee to pursue and 
investment strategy that reduces risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad 
selection of asset classes.  The Investment Policy Statement discourages the use of cash equivalents, 
except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from dramatically shifting asset class allocations over 
short time spans.  The current recommended asset allocation outlined in the Investment Policy 
Statement is weighted toward domestic equities and fixed income, with a slightly lower weight placed 
on international equities and real estate funds.  The Investment Policy Statement was last updated in 
May 2017. 

Rate of Return 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of 
investment expense, was 9.44%.  The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment 
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 

Net OPEB Liability of the Town 

During the year, the Town implemented GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans (OPEB).  This Statement requires the net 
OPEB liability to be measured as the total OPEB liability, less the amount of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary 
net position.  The components of the net OPEB liability of the Town at June 30, 2017, were as follows: 

Total OPEB liability $ 21,053,462     
Plan fiduciary net position 14,182,121     

Net OPEB Liability $ 6,871,341       

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total OPEB liability 67.36%

 
The Town’s net OPEB liability will be required to be recorded on the government-wide financial 
statement of net position at June 30, 2018.  

Actuarial Assumptions 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2015, using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.75% 
Salary increases 3.50%, average, including inflation 
Investment rate of return  7.00%, net of OPEB plan investment  

expense, including inflation
Healthcare cost trend rates  5.28% for 2017, decreasing 4.40% per year to 

over 73 years
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Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or Females, as 
appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2008-July 1, 2012. 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The target 
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset as of June 30, 2017 
are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-Term 
Expected

Real Rate of 
Return

U.S. Core Fixed income 22.50 % 2.66 %
U.S. Inflation-Indexed Bonds 22.50 1.95
U.S. Large Caps 22.50 4.86
U.S. Small Caps 2.50 6.11
U.S. Mid Caps 5.00 5.41
Foreign Developed Equity 15.00 5.88
Emerging Markets Equity 5.00 8.14
U.S. REITs 2.50 5.17
Non-U.S. REITS 2.50 6.55

 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.0%.  The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that Town contributions will be made at rates equal to the 
actuarially determined contribution rates.  Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

The July 1, 2015 valuation reflects a lower discount rate to 7.00% from 7.50% as well as updated 
expected claims costs based on experience.   

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town’s net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.0%) or 1 
percentage point higher (8.0%) than the current discount rate: 

1%
Decrease

Current
Discount Rate

1%
Increase

(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)

Net OPEB liability $ 9,812,816             $ 6,871,341               $ 5,009,970                
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town’s net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower 
(4.28% decreasing to 3.40%) or 1 percentage point higher (6.28% decreasing to 5.40%) than the 
current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase

(4.28% decreasing (5.28% decreasing (6.28% decreasing
to 3.40%) to 4.40%) to 5.40%)

Net OPEB liability $ 4,470,340 $ 6,871,341              $ 10,577,000              
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligations 

The Town of Simsbury’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the 
annual required contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.  The following table shows the 
components of the Town’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan 
and changes in the Town’s net OPEB obligation (asset): 

Retiree
Medical
Program

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 1,073,307    
Interest on net OPEB obligation (341,003)      
Adjustment to annual required contribution 350,970       

Annual OPEB cost 1,083,274    
Contributions made 1,310,930    

Change in net OPEB asset (227,656)      

Net OPEB asset at beginning of year (4,871,474)   

Net OPEB Asset at End of Year $ (5,099,130) 
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The Town’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the 
net OPEB obligation (asset) three year trend information is presented below. 

Net
Fiscal Annual Percentage OPEB
Year OPEB Actual of AOC Obligation

Ending Cost (AOC) Contribution Contributed (Asset)

6/30/2015 $ 1,872,660     $ 4,880,000     260.59% $ (4,713,451)    
6/30/2016 1,037,860     1,195,883     115.23% (4,871,474)    
6/30/2017 1,083,274     1,310,930     121.02% (5,099,130)    

 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are 
subject to continual revision as accrual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future.  The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Projections for benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time 
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial 
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used.  The 
actuarial assumptions include a 7% investment rate of return, which is the rate of the expected long-
term investment returns of plan assets calculated based on the funding policy of the plan at the 
valuation date.  The annual healthcare cost trend rate is 5.28% initially, reduced by decrements to an 
ultimate rate of 4.4% after 73 years.  The general inflation assumption is 2.75%.  Projected salary 
increases were 3.5%.  The actuarial value of assets was determined using market value.  The UAAL is 
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis.  The remaining 
amortization period at June 30, 2016 was 21 years. 
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Funding Status and Funding Progress  

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date is as follows: 

Actuarial UAAL
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded as a % of

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered 
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b)  ( c ) ((b-a)/c)

7/1/2015 $ 12,285,779  $ 18,371,550  $ 6,085,771    66.9% $ 45,238,000 13.5%  
 
The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following 
the notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial 
values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for benefits. 

The combining Statement of Net Position and the Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position for the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds are as follows: 

Combining Statement of Net Position 

General Board of Other Post
Government Police Education Employment Trust

Pension Pension Pension Benefit Trust Funds
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Assets:
Cash $ 124,455       $ 138,833       $ 153,467       $ 425,370       $ 842,125        
Investments 23,142,739  16,105,077  20,953,073  13,764,476  73,965,365   
Accounts receivable 28,220         22,289         26,275                             76,784          

Total assets 23,295,414  16,266,199  21,132,815  14,189,846  74,884,274   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 7,725           7,725            

Net Position of Pension and Other
  Post Employment Benefits $ 23,295,414  $ 16,266,199  $ 21,132,815  $ 14,182,121  $ 74,876,549   
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

General Board of Other Post
Government Police Education Employment Trust

Pension Pension Pension Benefit Trust Funds
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Additions:
Contributions:

Employer $ 877,664       $ 677,434       $ 1,112,035    $ 1,310,930    $ 3,978,063     
Employee 295,408       239,130       348,561       174,237       1,057,336     

Total contributions 1,173,072    916,564       1,460,596    1,485,167    5,035,399     

Investment income:
Change in fair value of                      
 investments 2,156,147    1,492,789    1,954,998    904,959       6,508,893     
Interest and dividends 436,395       307,226       393,899       305,516       1,443,036     

Total investment income 2,592,542    1,800,015    2,348,897    1,210,475    7,951,929     
Less investment expenses:

Custodian fees (28,749)        (25,796)        (26,534)        (29,835)        (110,914)       
Net investment gain (loss) 2,563,793    1,774,219    2,322,363    1,180,640    7,841,015     

Total additions 3,736,865    2,690,783    3,782,959    2,665,807    12,876,414   

Deductions:
Benefits 1,536,992    1,032,945    1,242,519    1,228,579    5,041,035     
Administration 34,812         24,396         37,728         96,936          

Total deductions 1,571,804    1,057,341    1,280,247    1,228,579    5,137,971     

Change in Net Position 2,165,061    1,633,442    2,502,712    1,437,228    7,738,443     

Net Position at Beginning of Year 21,130,353  14,632,757  18,630,103  12,744,893  67,138,106   

Net Position at End of Year $ 23,295,414  $ 16,266,199  $ 21,132,815  $ 14,182,121  $ 74,876,549   

 
 
5. OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Risk Management 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; error and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  These risks are covered by 
commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties.  Settled claims from these risks did 
not exceed commercial insurance coverage during the three years ended June 30, 2017. 

The Town’s self-insurance program is used to account for health insurance coverage for Town and 
Board of Education employees.  The Town retains the risk of up to a maximum of $250,000 per claim.  
Commercial insurance covers any individual claim in excess of $10,000.  During 2017, total claims 
expense of $12,472,676 was incurred, which represent claims processed and an estimate for claims 
incurred but not reported as of June 30, 2017. 

The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of claims that have been incurred but not 
reported; accordingly, the Fund recorded an additional liability at June 30, 2017 of $1,035,514. 

Premium payments are reported as interfund services provided and used for the General Fund, and, 
accordingly, they are treated as operating revenues of the Self-Insurance Fund and operating 
expenditures of the General Fund. 
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A schedule of changes in the claims liability for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, is presented 
below: 

Current Year
Claims and

Liability Changes in Claim Liability 
July 1, Estimates Payments June 30,

2015-16 $ 855,000        $ 10,696,033   $ 10,615,260   $ 935,773        
2016-17 935,773        12,472,676   12,372,935   1,035,514     

 
B. Contingent Liabilities 

There are various suits and claims pending against the Town, none of which, individually or in the 
aggregate, is believed by counsel to be likely to result in judgment or judgments that could materially 
affect the Town’s financial position. 

The Town has received state and federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and 
audit by the grantor agencies.  Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor 
agency for any expenditure disallowed under terms of the grant.  Based on prior experience, Town 
management believes such disallowances, if any, will not be material. 

The Town may be subject to rebate penalties to the federal government relating to various bond and 
note issues.  The Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

C. Landfill Postclosure Care Costs 

The Simsbury landfill stopped accepting solid waste in 1988.  The landfill has been capped and tested 
by the Department of Environmental Protection prior to October 1, 1993 and, as such, the U.S. EPA 
adopted regulations 40 CFR, Part 258 (Subtitle D), do not apply.  However, the Simsbury landfill is still 
required to monitor its postclosure functions under an approved plan with the State of Connecticut 
Department of Environmental Protection.   

The landfill closing costs of $55,000 reported as a liability in the government-wide financial statements 
represent an estimate of the postclosure costs to be incurred by the Town over the next 12 fiscal years 
for mandatory ground water testing based on a study conducted by an independent consultant.  It is 
estimated that the Town will incur a $5,000 annual cost over the next 12 fiscal years.  This estimate is 
subject to changes that may result from inflation, technological changes or regulatory changes. 
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Supplementary 
Information 

 



RSI-1
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY  
TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS*

2017 2016 2015

Town’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Town’s proportionate share of the net pension
 liability $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     

State’s proportionate share of the net pension
 liability associated with the Town 117,564,334 92,706,902   85,688,952  

Total  $ 117,564,334 $ 92,706,902   $ 85,688,952  

Town’s covered-employee payroll  $     33,773,614 $     32,597,004 $     32,231,978 

Town’s proportionate share of the net pension
 liability as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll  0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
 pension liability 52.26% 59.50% 61.51%

*Note:  This schedule is intended to be for ten years.  Additional years will be added as they become available.

Notes to Schedule:  

Changes in benefit terms None
Changes of assumptions

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level percent of salary, closed
Remaining amortization period 20.4 years
Asset valuation method 4-year smoothed market
Investment rate of return 8.50%, net of investment related expense

During 2016, rates of withdrawal, disability, 
retirement, mortality and assumed rates of salary 
increase were adjusted to more closely reflect 
actual and anticipated experience.  These 
assumptions were recommended as part of the 
Experience Study for the System for the five-year 
period ended June 30, 2015.

During 2011, rates of withdrawal, retirement and 
assumed rates of salary increases were adjusted to 
reflect actual and anticipated experience.  These 
assumptions were recommended as part of the 
Experience Study for the System for the five-year 
period ended June 30, 2010.

67



RSI-2A
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS     
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS *    

2017 2016 2015 2014

Total pension liability:
Service cost $ 668,192       $ 651,746       $ 607,101       $ 605,889       
Interest 1,939,574    1,864,604    1,793,949    1,718,093    
Changes of benefit terms 291,643       (16,733)        
Differences between expected and actual experience 509,974       (259,385)      99,498         (1,191)          
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (1,536,992)   (1,296,608)   (1,321,430)   (1,157,072)   

Net change in total pension liability 1,872,391    960,357       1,162,385    1,165,719    
Total pension liability - beginning 27,795,511  26,835,154  25,672,769  24,507,050  

Total pension liability - ending 29,667,902  27,795,511  26,835,154  25,672,769  
  
Plan fiduciary net position: 

Contributions - employer  877,664       1,023,393    1,013,590    985,741       
Contributions - member 295,408       445,994       223,536       175,834       
Net investment income 2,563,793    (20,390)        417,241       2,628,574    
Benefit payments (1,536,992)   (1,296,608)   (1,321,430)   (1,105,875)   
Refunds of member contributions (51,197)        
Administrative expense (34,812)        (37,476)        (35,251)        (32,427)        

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,165,061    114,913       297,686       2,600,650    
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 21,130,353 21,015,440 20,717,754  18,117,104

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 23,295,414  21,130,353  21,015,440  20,717,754  
 
Town’s Net Pension Liability - Ending  $ 6,372,488  $ 6,665,158  $ 5,819,714    $ 4,955,015  

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 78.52% 76.02% 78.31% 80.70%

Covered-employee payroll $ 6,870,896    $ 6,476,467    $ 6,477,000    $ 6,491,000    

Town’s net pension liability as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 92.75% 102.91% 89.85% 76.34%

*Note:  This schedule is intended to be for ten years.  Additional years will be added as they become available.
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RSI-2B
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
POLICE 
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS*

2017 2016 2015 2014

Total pension liability:
Service cost $ 530,838       $ 484,804       $ 449,735       $ 434,196       
Interest 1,374,437    1,327,012    1,261,868    1,169,501    
Changes of benefit terms 266,580       
Differences between expected and actual experience (944,755)      132,622       (91,391)        1,025,203    
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions    (1,032,945) (1,054,896) (1,092,847)   (1,914,868) 

Net change in total pension liability (72,425)        889,542       793,945       714,032       
Total pension liability - beginning 19,611,721  18,722,179  17,928,234  17,214,202  

Total pension liability - ending 19,539,296  19,611,721  18,722,179  17,928,234  
  
Plan fiduciary net position: 

Contributions - employer  677,434       727,009       633,000       562,763       
Contributions - member 239,130       196,550       190,966       152,656       
Net investment income 1,774,219    (11,573)        295,997       1,966,976    
Benefit payments (1,032,945)   (1,054,896)   (1,092,847)   (946,618)      
Refunds of member contributions (968,250)      
Administrative expense (24,396)        (24,051)        (33,374)        (32,865)        

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,633,442    (166,961)      (6,258)          734,662       
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 14,632,757 14,799,718 14,805,976  14,071,314

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 16,266,199  14,632,757  14,799,718  14,805,976  
 
Town’s Net Pension Liability - Ending  $ 3,273,097  $ 4,978,964  $ 3,922,461    $ 3,122,258  

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
 liability 83.25% 74.61% 79.05% 82.64%

Covered-employee payroll $ 3,143,684    $ 2,918,053    $ 2,866,000    $ 2,772,281    

Town’s net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee 
payroll 104.12% 170.63% 136.86% 112.24%

*Note:  This schedule is intended to be for ten years.  Additional years will be added as they become available.
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RSI-2C
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS    
BOARD OF EDUCATION    
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS*    

2017 2016 2015 2014

Total pension liability:
Service cost $ 781,880       $ 792,518       $ 720,226       $ 723,982       
Interest 1,903,998    1,815,018    1,745,104    1,635,060    
Changes of benefit terms                     (29,091)        (32,802)        
Differences between expected and actual experience (274,621)      (445,038)      319,281       (19,757)        
Benefit payments, including refunds of member
 contributions (1,242,519)   (1,125,306)   (1,147,085)   (1,096,023)   

Net change in total pension liability 1,168,738    1,008,101    1,604,724    1,243,262    
Total pension liability - beginning 27,028,848  26,020,747  24,416,023  23,172,761  

Total pension liability - ending 28,197,586  27,028,848  26,020,747  24,416,023  
  
Plan fiduciary net position: 

Contributions - employer  1,112,035    1,288,982    1,236,631    1,231,124    
Contributions - member 348,561       324,788       283,432       240,312       
Net investment income 2,322,363    21,997         337,905       2,157,488    
Benefit payments (1,242,519)   (1,125,306)   (1,147,085)   (1,056,810)   
Refunds of member contributions (39,213)        
Administrative expense (37,728)        (18,799)        (26,200)        (29,131)        

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,502,712    491,662       684,683       2,503,770    
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 18,630,103 18,138,441 17,453,758  14,949,988

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 21,132,815  18,630,103  18,138,441  17,453,758  
 
Town’s Net Pension Liability - Ending  $ 7,064,771  $ 8,398,745  $ 7,882,306    $ 6,962,265  

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 74.95% 68.93% 69.71% 71.53%

Covered-employee payroll $ 7,766,728    $ 7,864,597    $ 7,916,000    $ 7,911,823    

Town’s net pension liability as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 90.96% 106.79% 99.57% 87.86%

*Note:  This schedule is intended to be for ten years.  Additional years will be added as they become available.
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RSI-3A
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2017

Actuarially determined contribution $ 549,783   $ 544,651     $ 586,140     $ 759,126       $ 722,519    $ 714,779     $ 985,089     $ 1,013,590  $ 888,277     $ 877,663      
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 549,783     544,651       586,140       759,126         722,519     779,972       985,089       1,013,590    1,023,393    877,664        

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)     $ -                $ -                  $ -                   $ -                    $ -                $ (65,193)        $ -                   $ -                   $ (135,116)      $ (1)                  

Covered-employee payroll $ 5,617,253 $ 5,656,359  $ 6,277,067  $ 6,279,542    $ 6,131,794 $ 5,797,979  $ 6,490,784  $ 6,477,448  $ 6,476,467  $ 6,870,896   

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.79% 9.63% 9.34% 12.09% 11.78% 13.45% 15.18% 15.65% 15.80% 12.77%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation date July 1, 2016
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed
Remaining amortization period 17 years
Amortization growth rate 3.50%
Asset valuation method 5-year non-asymptotic
Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases 3.50%
Investment rate of return 7.00%
Retirement age Rates based on age
Turnover Rates based on service

Mortality RP-2000 Mortality for Employees, Healthy Annuitants and Disabled Annuitants with generational projection per Scale AA
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RSI-3B
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
POLICE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actuarially determined contribution $ 386,131       $ 381,438        $ 393,136        $ 505,605        $ 497,614         $ 465,641        $ 562,233        $ 632,679        $ 631,023        $ 677,434         
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 386,131       381,438        393,136        505,605        497,614         508,111        562,233        633,000        727,009        677,434         

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ -                   $ -                    $ -                    $ -                     $ -                     $ (42,470)         $ -                    $ (321)              $ (95,986)        $ -                     

Covered-employee payroll $ 2,453,053    $ 2,533,739     $ 2,598,719     $ 2,643,805     $ 2,615,838      $ 2,362,484     $ 2,772,281     $ 2,866,183     $ 2,918,053     $ 3,143,684      

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 15.74% 15.05% 15.13% 19.12% 19.02% 21.51% 20.28% 22.09% 24.91% 21.55%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation date July 1, 2016
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed
Remaining amortization period 17 years
Amortization growth rate 3.50%
Asset valuation method 5-year non-asymptotic
Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases 8.25% for the first 7 years and 3.00% thereafter
Investment rate of return 7.00%
Retirement age 20% per year starting at Normal Retirement Date; 100% at age 62

Mortality RP-2000 Mortality for Employees, Healthy Annuitants and Disabled Annuitants with generational projection per Scale AA
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RSI-3C
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
BOARD OF EDUCATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actuarially determined contribution $ 697,968       $ 705,973       $ 706,849      $ 876,860       $ 910,571         $ 1,012,381   $ 1,231,124 $ 1,236,631 $ 1,110,353 $ 1,112,035    
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 697,968         706,020         706,849        876,860         1,030,571      1,104,718     1,231,124  1,236,631  1,288,982  1,112,035      

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ -                     $ (47)                $ -                    $ -                    $ (120,000)       $ (92,337)         $ -                 $ -                 $ (178,629)    $ -                    

Covered-employee payroll $ 6,069,458    $ 6,362,430    $ 6,984,577   $ 7,421,437    $ 7,686,831      $ 7,740,314   $ 7,911,823 $ 7,916,465 $ 7,864,597 $ 7,766,728    

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 11.50% 11.10% 10.12% 11.82% 13.41% 14.27% 15.56% 15.62% 16.39% 14.32%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation date July 1, 2016
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed
Remaining amortization period 17 years
Amortization growth rate 3.50%
Asset valuation method 5-year non-asymptotic
Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases 3.50%
Investment rate of return 7.00%

Retirement age Rates based on age
Turnover Rates based on service

Mortality RP-2000 Mortality for Employees, Healthy Annuitants and Disabled Annuitants with generational projection per Scale AA
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RSI-4
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS 
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS *    

2017 2016 2015 2014

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense:

General Government Pension Plan 12.09% (0.10%) 1.97% 14.35%

Police Pension Plan 12.00% (0.08%) 1.98% 14.30%

Board of Education Pension Plan 12.07% 0.12% 1.86% 14.02%

*Note:  This schedule is intended to be for ten years.  Additional years will be added as they become available.   
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RSI-5
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT  
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
LAST FISCAL YEAR*
(In Thousands) 

2017

Total OPEB liability:
Service cost $ 797,888       
Interest 1,424,684    
Benefit payments (1,228,579)   

Net change in total OPEB liability 993,993       
Total OPEB liability - beginning 20,059,469  

Total OPEB liability - ending 21,053,462  
  

Plan fiduciary net position: 
Contributions - employer  1,310,930    
Contributions - member 174,237       
Net investment income (loss) 1,180,640    
Benefit payments (1,228,579)   

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,437,228    
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 12,744,893  

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 14,182,121  
 
Net OPEB Liability - Ending  $ 6,871,341   

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 67.36%

Covered-employee payroll $ 45,238,019  

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 15.19%

Notes to Schedule:
Assumption changes:   The July 1, 2015 valuation reflects a lower discount rate to 
7.00% from 7.50% as well as updated expected claims costs based on experience.  

Benefit Changes:   The Plan provisions changed for police employees.  The Town 
shall now pay 80% of the HMO/PPO premium or 85% of the HDHP premiums for 
medical coverage for retiree and spouse until age 65.  

*Note:  This schedule is intended to be for ten years.  Additional years will be added as they become 
available.   
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RSI-6
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
OPEB
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(In Thousands) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actuarially determined contribution (1) $ 2,067,900   $ 1,670,800 $ 1,766,300 $ 1,611,000   $ 1,705,000   $ 1,613,000   $ 1,825,000    $ 1,880,000    $ 1,047,953     $ 1,073,307      
Contributions in relation to the actuarially  

determined contribution 2,193,500 1,726,500 1,894,900 1,895,100 1,705,000 2,393,362 1,980,158 4,880,000 1,195,883 1,310,930      

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ (125,600)     $ (55,700)     $ (128,600)   $ (284,100)   $ -                 $ (780,362)     $ (155,158)    $ (3,000,000) $ (147,930)     $ (237,623)      

Covered-employee payroll  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 44,132,000 $ 44,132,000 $ 44,570,517 $ 45,238,019  

Contributions as a percentage of 
 covered-employee payroll  NA NA NA NA NA NA 4.49% 11.06% 2.68% 2.90%

Notes to Schedule:  
Valuation date:  July 1, 2015

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level percent
Amortization period 20 years
Asset valuation method Closed
Inflation 2.75%
Healthcare cost trend rates 5.28-4.40% over 73 years
Salary increases 3.50%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.00%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Mortality RP-2000 Combined Healthy and Disabled Mortality, Male and Female, with generational projection per Scale AA  

Other Information:

The Plan provisions changed for police employees.  The Town shall now pay 80% of the HMO/PPO premium or 85% of the HDHP premiums for medical
coverage for retiree and spouse until age 65.  

(1) Actuarially Determined Contributions prior to fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 is based on the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) calculated in accordance with GASB No. 45

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported 

The July 1, 2015 valuation reflects a lower discount rate to 7.00% from 7.50% as well as updated expected claims costs based on experience.  
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RSI-7
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS 
OPEB
LAST FISCAL YEAR*

2017

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
 net of investment expense 9.44%

*Note:  This schedule is intended to be for ten years.  Additional years  will be added as they become 
available.   
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RSI-8
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -  
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUND 

Schedule of Funding Progress          
UAAL as a

Actuarial Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded of
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Covered

Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Retiree Medical Program
7/1/2009 $ 1,747,000      $ 17,565,000       $ 15,818,000       9.95% n/a n/a
7/1/2011 4,253,000      18,933,000       14,680,000       22.46% n/a n/a
7/1/2012 5,018,000      19,989,000       14,971,000       25.10% 44,132,000     33.92%
7/1/2014 11,496,819    17,328,319       5,831,500         66.35% 44,570,517     13.08%
7/1/2015 12,285,779    18,371,550       6,085,771         66.87% 45,238,000     13.45%

 n/a - The covered payroll is not available.
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Supplemental, Combining 
and Individual Fund 
Statements and Schedules 

 



 

 

Major Governmental 
Funds 
 

General Fund 
 
To account for the general operations of the Town, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 
 
Sewer Use Fund 
 
To account for sewer user fees and sewer plant operations. 
 
Sewer Assessment Fund 
 
To account for sewer assessments. 
 
Capital Project Fund 
 
The Capital Project Fund is used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities.   
 
Capital and Nonrecurring Expenditures Fund 
 
The Capital and Nonrecurring Expenditures Fund is used to account for equipment purchases and 
other nonrecurring capital expenditures.   
 

 



EXHIBIT A-1
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
GENERAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2017 

BOE Total
General Non-Lapsing Governmental

Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,505,049     $ 385,000    $ 6,890,049      
Investments 8,232,129     8,232,129      
Receivables 1,652,310     1,652,310      
Due from other funds 468,037        468,037         
Other assets 14,663          14,663           

Total Assets $ 16,872,188   $ 385,000    $ 17,257,188    

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,622,045     $ $ 1,622,045      

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes  878,914        878,914         
Unavailable revenue - property tax interest 422,877        422,877         
Advance property tax collections 118,417        118,417         

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,420,208     -                1,420,208      

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable  14,663          14,663           
Committed  385,000    385,000         
Assigned  1,542,894     1,542,894      
Unassigned  12,272,378   12,272,378    

Total fund balances 13,829,935   385,000    14,214,935    

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
 Resources and Fund Balances $ 16,872,188   $ 385,000    $ 17,257,188    
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EXHIBIT A-2
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

BOE
General Non-Lapsing

Fund Fund Eliminations Total
Revenues:  

Property taxes  $ 85,638,921     $ $ $ 85,638,921    
Intergovernmental  20,134,283     20,134,283    
Investment loss 45,381            45,381           
Charges for goods and services  788,097          788,097         
Licenses and permits  459,719          459,719         
Rental of town-owned property  132,302          132,302         
Local revenues  38,217            38,217           
Assessments                         -                     

Total revenues  107,236,920   -                   -                   107,236,920  

Expenditures:  
Current:  

General government 2,177,334       2,177,334      
Planning and development 541,257          541,257         
Public safety  4,507,777       4,507,777      
Facility management 3,919,551       3,919,551      
Culture and recreation 2,320,523       2,320,523      
Health and welfare 607,609          607,609         
Fringe benefits and insurances  4,871,466       4,871,466      
Education  80,358,419     22,734         80,381,153    

Debt service: 
Principal payments  5,150,000       5,150,000      
Interest and other   488,175          488,175         

Total expenditures 104,942,111   22,734         -                   104,964,845  

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures  2,294,809       (22,734)        -                   2,272,075      

Other Financing Sources (Uses):   
Transfers in   264,095          22,734         (47,734)        239,095         
Transfers out    (2,225,360)      (42,598)        47,734         (2,220,224)     
Premium on bond issuance 461,686 461,686         

Total other financing sources (uses)   (1,499,579)      (19,864)        -                   (1,519,443)     

Net Change in Fund Balances  795,230          (42,598)        -                   752,632         

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year  13,034,705     427,598       -                   13,462,303    

Fund Balances at End of Year  $ 13,829,935   $ 385,000     $ -                   $ 14,214,935  
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EXHIBIT A-3
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)         
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

2016
Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Amounts Positive Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative) (Budgetary Basis)

Property Taxes:  
Current year taxes  $ 83,861,038      $ 83,861,038      $ 85,043,868          $ 1,182,830     $ 83,900,972          
Prior year’s taxes           401,547           401,547           336,406               (65,141)         304,236               
Interest and lien fees          300,000           300,000           258,647               (41,353)         329,910               

Total property taxes        84,562,585      84,562,585      85,638,921          1,076,336     84,535,118          

Intergovernmental Revenues:        
State of Connecticut:         

Office of Policy and Management:       
Property tax relief:        

Disabled        1,400              1,400              1,266                   (134)             1,562                   
Property tax relief - elderly         85,000            85,000            64,492                 (20,508)         77,783                 
Additional veterans         5,000              5,000              5,884                   884               5,858                   

Department of Education:      
Education equalization grant      6,233,528        6,233,528        6,040,455            (193,073)       5,911,918            
School transportation                                                                               -                   33,229                 
Adult education    10,090            10,090            13,928                 3,838            11,214                 
Nonpublic schools - transportation                                                   15,465                 15,465          22,499                 

Miscellaneous:     
State-owned property     2,555              2,555              2,555                   -                   139                      
Telephone access line grant      55,000             55,000            55,458                 458               52,816                 
Solid waste                                                     2,206                   2,206            34,710                 
Pequot casino revenue     28,478            28,478            28,478                 -                   32,798                 
Police grant                            -                   7,897                   
Municipal revenue sharing 665,839           665,839           887,375               221,536        77,648                 
Library grant                                                                          -                   1,087                   
Elderly/Handicapped transportation 6,000              6,000              6,686                   686               6,800                   
Other                             -                   2                         

Housing Authority in lieu of taxes    18,000            18,000            20,640                 2,640            19,739                 
Board of Education tuition regular 43,500            43,500            48,582                 5,082            38,250                 
PILOT - Westminster School 120,000           120,000           120,000               -                   120,000               

Total intergovernmental revenues   7,274,390        7,274,390        7,313,470            39,080          6,455,949            

Investment income  180,000            180,000            45,381                  (134,619)        335,773               

Charges for Goods and Services: 
Central administration miscellaneous 2,000              2,000              11,235                 9,235            20,257                 
Conveyance tax receipts   290,000           290,000           476,026               186,026        454,628               
Town clerk recording fees     140,000           140,000           128,535               (11,465)         121,029               
Town clerk farmland preservation fees 5,500              5,500              2,819                   (2,681)          2,900                   
Town clerk miscellaneous 60,000            60,000            54,377                 (5,623)          56,466                 
Tax collector - fire district supplies, etc.      6,500              6,500              6,500                   -                   6,500                   
Police department - emergency reporting     35,000            35,000            36,241                 1,241            36,563                 
Police department miscellaneous 4,000              4,000              4,253                   253               6,954                   
Animal control 500                 500                 1,281                   781                                          
Engineering department fees 700                 700                 328                      (372)             366                      
Facilities management 1,510 1,510            1,119                   
Culture and recreation                            -                   350                      
Library fines and fees   2,000              2,000              3,419                   1,419            1,134                   
War Memorial pool    9,600              9,600              1,464                   (8,136)          2,876                   
Board of education miscellaneous 5,000              5,000              37,158                 32,158          6,526                   
Community gardens        2,500              2,500              2,691                   191               2,575                   

Total charges for goods and services      563,300           563,300           767,837               204,537        720,243               

Budgeted Amounts

  (Continued on next page)  
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EXHIBIT A-3
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) (CONTINUED)     
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

2016
Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Amounts Positive Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative) (Budgetary Basis)

Fines and forfeitures: 
Library fines and fees $ 44,000            $ 44,000            $ 41,510                 $ (2,490)          $ 41,371                 
Land use court fines 1,750                   1,750            9,000                   
Court fees 1,000              1,000              (1,000)          
False alarms fines 10,000            10,000            5,100                   (4,900)          23,945                 
Traffic tickets 4,000              4,000              2,724                   (1,276)          3,116                   
Animal control fines 500                 500                 1,241                   741               500                      

Total fines and forfeitures 59,500            59,500            52,325                 (7,175)          77,932                 

Rental of Town-Owned Property:     
Eno Memorial Hall     1,000              1,000              3,610                   2,610            1,485                   
Education - school rentals  45,000            45,000            46,242                 1,242            52,982                 
Library administration                        2,450                   2,450            3,300                   
World skate       75,000            75,000            80,000                 5,000            80,000                 

Total rental of town-owned property 121,000           121,000           132,302               11,302          137,767               

Licenses and Permits:      
Sporting licenses     200                 200                 596                      396               145                      
Dog licenses 10,000            10,000            14,793                 4,793            15,033                 
Land use commission      20,000            20,000            73,888                 53,888          35,738                 
Police department fees      8,000              8,000              9,985                   1,985            11,320                 
Building department fees     750,000           750,000           360,457               (389,543)       1,113,473            

Total licenses and permits     788,200           788,200           459,719               (328,481)       1,175,709            

Other Local Revenues:     
Other revenues 320                      320               1,015                   
Prior year encumbrances 23,168                 23,168          6,672                   
Insurance refunds 28,832                 28,832          50,066                 

Total other local revenues      -                      -                      52,320                 52,320          57,753                 

Total Revenues      93,548,975      93,548,975      94,462,275          913,300        93,496,244          

Other Financing Sources:  
Transfers from other funds:

Capital projects 160,001               160,001                                   
Sewer use fund 104,094           104,094           104,094               -                   101,446               

  Total other financing sources        104,094           104,094           264,095               160,001        101,446               

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources         $ 93,653,069      $ 93,653,069      $ 94,726,370          $ 1,073,301     $ 93,597,690          
 

2017

Budgeted Amounts
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EXHIBIT A-4
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

2016
Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Amounts Positive Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative) (Budgetary Basis)

General Government:
Central administration  $ 455,881         $ 425,779                 $ 425,779               $ -                       $ 455,473               
Administration services  60,400           54,689                   54,689                 -                       50,245                 
Community services 59,521           103,852                 103,852               -                       70,793                 
Land use commission  24,050           20,058                   20,058                 -                       20,865                 
Economic development commission  55,400           54,542                   54,542                 -                       57,568                 
Historic district commission  1,575             555                        555                      -                       328                      
Public building committee  1,405             1,338                     1,338                   -                       1,597                   
Beautification  4,715             4,702                     4,702                   -                       4,410                   
Tourism committee 5,245             6,868                     6,868                   -                       6,500                   
Elections  116,812         99,848                   99,848                 -                       104,759               
Legal  136,000         175,924                 175,924               -                       252,376               
Town clerk  231,315         221,862                 221,862               -                       224,383               
Probate court 2,104             2,104                     2,104                   -                       2,104                   

Total general government 1,154,423      1,172,121              1,172,121            -                       1,251,401            

Financial Services:
Board of Finance  10,220           11,289                   11,289                 -                       11,790                 
Finance department  346,903         303,250                 303,250               -                       315,372               
Tax collector  169,671         170,779                 170,779               -                       172,181               
Assessors 248,279         248,262                 248,262               -                       231,699               
Data processing 204,697         159,056                 159,056               -                       182,334               
Auditors  36,950           36,600                   36,600                 -                       48,804                 

Total financial services 1,016,720      929,236                 929,236               -                       962,180               

Planning and Development:
Director of community development  181,870         175,563                 175,563               -                       168,751               
Planning department  162,603         159,189                 159,189               -                       163,209               
Building department  223,736         188,505                 188,505               -                       198,994               

Total planning and development 568,209         523,257                 523,257               -                       530,954               

Public Safety:
Police  4,530,861      4,438,057              4,438,057            -                       4,332,370            
Animal control officer 64,801           64,550                   64,550                 -                       62,026                 
Civil preparedness  6,685             5,173                     5,173                   -                       6,685                   

Total public safety 4,602,347      4,507,780              4,507,780            -                       4,401,081            

Public Works:
Engineering  219,405         202,769                 202,769               -                       167,626               
Public Works Administration 262,185         235,710                 235,710               -                       213,018               
Buildings and Grounds 444,645         421,568                 421,568               -                       406,718               
Town Offices 134,296         143,521                 143,521               -                       147,500               
Eno Hall Memorial 77,873           76,994                   76,994                 -                       89,952                 
Miscellaneous Building 22,970           20,909                   20,909                 -                       18,544                 
Highway - Labor & Equipment 1,710,936      1,702,158              1,702,158            -                       1,631,528            
Highway - Facilities & Programs 1,012,957      1,029,731              1,029,731            -                       1,072,614            
Landfill 66,500           81,458                   81,458                 -                       78,523                 

Total public works 3,951,767      3,914,818              3,914,818            -                       3,826,023            

2017

Budgeted Amounts

(Continued on next page)
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EXHIBIT A-4
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES -     
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) (CONTINUED)     
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS    
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS     
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

2016
Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Amounts Positive Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative) (Budgetary Basis)

Culture and Recreation:
Recreation - Administration $ 55,460           $ 56,467                   $ 56,467                 $ -                       $ 53,868                 
Recreation - Memorial Pool 27,993           27,923                   27,923                 -                       26,299                 
Parks & Open Space - Maintenance 635,768         648,073                 648,073               -                       624,129               
Parks & Open Space - Memorial Field 23,682           26,403                   26,403                 -                       24,311                 
Parks & Open Space - Memorial Pool  20,825            30,887                    30,887                  -                        28,373                 
Library - Administration 556,884         556,735                 556,735               -                       508,672               
Library - Adult & Young Adult 509,630         540,078                 540,078               -                       518,184               
Library - Building & Grounds 122,810          145,047                 145,047               -                       137,201               
Library - Children Services  335,848         290,670                  290,670                -                        312,864               

Total culture and recreation 2,288,900      2,322,283              2,322,283            -                       2,233,901            

Health and Welfare:
Health department  125,869         125,869                 125,869               -                       122,694               
Social services administration  204,288         204,478                 204,478               -                       203,205               
Elderly services outreach  24,408           24,288                   24,288                 -                       24,159                 
Senior center 149,355         137,612                 137,612               -                       142,956               
Transportation  118,760         115,362                 115,362               -                       112,035               

Total health and welfare 622,680         607,609                 607,609               -                       605,049               

Fringe Benefits and Insurance:
Social Security  815,935         835,662                 835,662               -                       729,129               
Town general liability insurance  475,221         475,422                 475,422               -                       463,129               
Employee group insurance  2,124,484      2,190,155              2,190,155            -                       2,083,094            
Unemployment reserve  5,000             6,375                     6,375                   -                       222                      
Pensions  1,363,843      1,363,852              1,363,852            -                       1,326,602            

Total fringe benefits and insurance 4,784,483      4,871,466              4,871,466            -                       4,602,176            

Board of Education 66,881,535    66,881,535            66,865,285          16,250             65,764,552          

Non-Public Schools Budget:
Non-public schools 541,237         541,237                 537,651               3,586               537,737               

Debt Service:
Principal  5,150,000      5,150,000              5,150,000            -                       5,035,000            
Interest  477,166         488,175                 488,175               -                       501,273               
Operating Transfer 962,653         962,653                 962,653               -                                                   

Total debt service 6,589,819      6,600,828              6,600,828            -                       5,536,273            

Other Financing Uses:
Transfers to other funds  1,073,949      1,262,707              1,262,707            -                       2,477,463            

Total Expenditures and Other
  Financing Uses $ 94,076,069    $ 94,134,877            $ 94,115,041          $ 19,836             $ 92,728,790          

Budgeted Amounts

2017
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EXHIBIT A-5
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF BOARD OF EDUCATION EXPENDITURES  
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Actual
Expenditures Variance

Original Amended and Favorable
Appropriation Appropriation Encumbrances (Unfavorable)

General control  $ 2,051,377        $ 2,051,377        $ 2,029,068        $ 22,309           

Instruction  42,163,612      42,163,612      41,903,111      260,501         
 
Health services 688,540           688,540           678,186           10,354           

Transportation  2,683,059        2,683,059        2,802,925        (119,866)       

Operation of school plant  4,544,044        4,544,044        4,592,555        (48,511)         

Maintenance of schools  1,234,472        1,234,472        1,259,194        (24,722)         

Employee pension and insurance 11,233,753      11,233,753      11,214,700      19,053           

Food services  7,990               7,990               7,990               -                    

Student activities  644,021           644,021           658,028           (14,007)         

Community service  34,000             34,000             34,000             -                    

New and replaced equipment 747,701           747,701           595,954           151,747         

Tuition to other schools  1,422,000        1,422,000        1,662,608        (240,608)       

Nonpublic schools  541,237           541,237           537,651           3,586             

Subtotal 67,995,806      67,995,806      67,975,970      19,836           

Transfers to BOE Non-Lapsing Fund (22,734)           (22,734)           (22,734)           -                    

Transfers to CNR Funds (550,300)         (550,300)         (550,300)         -                    

Total Expenditures  $ 67,422,772     $ 67,422,772    $ 67,402,936    $ 19,836         
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EXHIBIT A-6
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT   
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND    
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS     
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 Appropriations  Expenditures 
Payments on  Uncommitted 

 Balance  Current  Balance  Balance  Current Prior Year  Balance Encumbrances Balance
June 30, 2016 Year June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 Year Encumbrances June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017

Sewer extension projects:    
Project 2008  $ 260,000             $ $ 260,000           $ 260,000           $                      $ $ 260,000              $ $ -                       
Project 2010  260,000              260,000           67,212              87,186          154,398              105,602            
Project 2013 272,320             272,320           64,890             131,766        196,656              75,664              
Farmington River Design     1,147,300          1,147,300        32,477             183,065        215,542              931,758            
Wolcott Pump Station 1,378,500          1,378,500        994,314                                994,314              384,186            
Longview SCADA Control and Pump Upgrade 65,000               65,000             35,278             35,278                29,722              
Sewer Main Extensions* 156,000             156,000           14,853             8,181            23,034                132,966            
Inline Grinder and Screen Replacement* 260,000             260,000           237,024                                237,024              22,976              
Sewer Main Extensions 371,000             371,000                                                       -                         371,000            
Inline Grinder and Screen Replacement* 260,000             260,000           234,600                                234,600              25,400              
Hopmeadow/Center Area Sewer repairs 135,000             135,000                                                       -                         135,000            
West Mtn. Road Area Sewer Interceptor - Design 50,000               50,000             11,834                                  11,834                38,166              
Portable Generator 80,000               80,000             28,100             7,713            35,813                44,187              
Portable Six (6) Inch Dri-Prime Pump 72,000               72,000             61,093                                  61,093                10,907              
Sewer Main Extensions/Repairs - Massaco St 104,000         104,000                                -                         104,000            
Hopmeadow/Center Area Sewer Repairs 100,000         100,000                                -                         100,000            
Skidsteer Track Loader with Brush Cutter 83,103           83,103             76,784          76,784                6,319                
Oxidation Ditch Dissolved Oxygen Control 27,000           27,000             16,120          16,120                10,880              
Storage Building 65,000           65,000             -                         65,000              

Town projects:     
Library Expansion 5/06  6,100,000          6,100,000        6,099,439                             6,099,439                                561                   
Gertsen Land Purchase 5/08  723,329             723,329           722,035           722,035                                   1,294                
Triangle Land Purchase 5/08  2,823,976          2,823,976        2,809,927                             2,809,927                                14,049              
Streetscape 10/167 5/08  326,800             326,800           325,493           325,493                                   1,307                
Eno Hall Improvements 5/08  1,027,894          4,657             1,032,551        1,032,551                             1,032,551                                -                       
Water Extensions 5/08  170,000             170,000           161,115                                161,115                                   8,885                
Tunxis Pump Station 5/10 670,000             670,000           612,762                                612,762                                   57,238              
Paving Management 5/10      2,400,000          2,400,000        2,374,863                             2,374,863                                25,137              
Simsbury Farms Renovations      3,074,810          6,614             3,081,424        3,081,424                             3,081,424                                -                       
Police Dispatch Console 185,000             185,000           184,721                                184,721                                   279                   
Emergency Mgmt Generators 363,213             363,213           339,676                                339,676                                   23,537              
Ethel Walker PHII 2,050,000          2,050,000        2,037,064                             2,037,064                                12,936              
West ST/Owens Brook/Greenway      358,000             358,000           343,061                                343,061                                   14,939              
DPW Truck Wash 257,400             257,400           58,360             199,040        257,400                                   -                       
Town Hall Flat Roof Replacement      252,401             252,401           204,679                                204,679                                   47,722              
Center Area Charrette Infrastructure*       540,000             540,000           12,498             238,444        8,250             259,192                                   280,808            
Senior/Community Center Design      204,000             204,000           63,911             41,403          105,314                                   98,686              
Town office renovation        107,120             107,120           72,890                                  4,502             77,392                                     29,728              
Town Teledata      125,000             125,000           104,199           3,195            107,394                                   17,606              
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                                                                                                                          (CONTINUED)  

EXHIBIT A-6
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT   
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND    
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS     
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 Appropriations  Expenditures 
Payments on  Uncommitted 

 Balance  Current  Balance  Balance  Current Prior Year  Balance Encumbrances Balance
June 30, 2016 Year June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 Year Encumbrances June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017

Eno Hall Roof Repair $ 117,670             $ $ 117,670           $ 111,968           $                      $ $ 111,968              $                      $ 5,702                
Ethel Walker Parcel C* 1,168,049          1,168,049        1,125,736                             1,125,736                                42,313              
Multi Use Trail Connections/Master Plan Updates 212,000             212,000           72,892             3,887            76,779                                     135,221            
SF Golf Course Improvements 125,000             125,000           84,971             9,000            93,971                                     31,029              
Bridge Improvements (Design-FY15) 115,000             115,000                                                       -                                              115,000            
Highway Pavement Management* 2,500,000          4,575             2,504,575        2,504,575                             2,504,575                                -                       
Technology Infrastructure 600,000             600,000           414,656           31,687          446,343                                   153,657            
Alternative Energy Efficiency Projects 103,000             103,000           40,807             62,193          103,000                                   -                       
Open Space - Betty Hudson Property 274,000             274,000           235,366           4,438            239,804                                   34,196              
SF Rink/Pool Improvements 1,100,000          1,100,000        162,729           876,459        1,039,188                                60,812              
Park Improvements 508,000             508,000           187,487           263,099        450,586                                   57,414              
Open Space Planning and Improvements 145,000             145,000           5,147              23,510          28,657                                     116,343            
Weatogue Planning Route 10 and Code Prep 57,000               57,000                                                         -                                              57,000              
Salt Shed Replacement 375,000             375,000           372,333           2,667            375,000                                   -                       
Municipal Building Renovations 50,000               50,000                                                         -                                              50,000              
Dam Evaluations and Repairs 30,000               30,000             5,419              24,064          29,483                                     517                   
Public Works Complex Infrastructure Improvements 280,000             280,000           62,441             215,263        277,704                                   2,296                
Town Hall Site and Safety Improvements 45,000               45,000                                                         -                                              45,000              
Portable Generator / Generator Infrastructure 80,000               80,000             29,705             18,612          48,317                                     31,683              
Project Planning Fund 28,000               28,000             9,800                                   9,800                                       18,200              
Various Drainage Improvements 175,000             175,000           65,893             11,520          77,413                                     97,587              
Veterans Memorial (STEAP Grant) 150,000             300,000         450,000           12,185             392,356        404,541                                   45,459              
Multi-Use Connections & Master Plan Updates 1,160,000      1,160,000                             -                         1,160,000         
SF Golf Course Improvements 125,000         125,000           83,402          83,402                41,598              
Greenway Improvements 240,000         240,000           183,135        183,135              2,525            54,340              
Open Space Planning Improvements 400,000         400,000                                -                         400,000            
Street Lighting Purchase / Lighting Improvements 865,000         865,000           659,723        659,723              205,277            
Highway Pavement Management 2,500,000      2,500,000        1,373,903     1,373,903           1,126,097         
Dam Evaluations and Repairs 145,000         145,000                                -                         145,000            
Public Works Complex Infrastructure Improvements 450,000         450,000           180,993        180,993              269,007            
Town Hall Site and Safety Improvements 385,000         385,000                                -                         385,000            
Plan of Conservation & Development 130,000         130,000           76,080          76,080                53,920              
Portable Generator Infrastructure 175,000         175,000           7,754            7,754                  167,246            
Window Replacement 44,000           44,000             8,228            8,228                  1,772            34,000              
Land Use Studies 92,500           92,500                                  -                         92,500              
Park Improvements 30,000           30,000             30,000          30,000                -                       
Athletic Field Improvements 30,000           30,000             30,000          30,000                -                       
Energy Efficiency Financing Buyout 92,753           92,753             92,753          92,753                -                       
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EXHIBIT A-6
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT   
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND    
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS     
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 Appropriations  Expenditures 
Payments on  Uncommitted 

 Balance  Current  Balance  Balance  Current Prior Year  Balance Encumbrances Balance
June 30, 2016 Year June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 Year Encumbrances June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017

Education projects:       
Simsbury High School Addition & Alteration 5/02 $ 43,178,567        $ $ 43,178,567      $ 36,218,938      $ $ $ 36,218,938         $                      $ 6,959,629         
Computer technology improv 5/06  450,000             450,000           440,336           440,336                                   9,664                
Tariffville expansion project 5/06  6,209,949          6,209,949        6,199,924                             6,199,924                                10,025              
HVAC Boiler replacement 5/08 700,000             700,000           633,174                                633,174                                   66,826              
Tootin Hills roof replacement  1,257,500          1,257,500        1,032,723                             1,032,723                                224,777            
Squadron Line generator 5/09 150,000             150,000           117,012                                117,012                                   32,988              
Latimer Lane roof replacement 5/10 1,277,500          1,277,500        1,176,996                             1,176,996                                100,504            
District Network Infrastructure 5/10 451,327             451,327           449,756                                449,756                                   1,571                
District Network Infrastructure 5/12 1,800,000          1,800,000        1,367,319        423,783        1,791,102                                8,898                
Boiler Replacement Squadron Line 850,000             850,000           229,036           455,709        684,745              2,591            162,664            
District Network Infrastructure 150,000             150,000           138,549           11,451          150,000              -                       
HJMS Phase 1A 1,205,000          1,205,000        1,112,283        56,017          1,168,300                                36,700              
SHS Turf Field/Synthetic Track 910,000             910,000           226,646           597,999        5,670             830,315                                   79,685              
Squadron Line Main Office Project* 900,000             900,000           857,705           9,895            867,600                                   32,400              
District Network Infrastructure 200,000             200,000           144,019           55,645          199,664              2,520            (2,184)               
Climate Control (Phase 1 - 7 buildings) 2,150,000          950,000         3,100,000        102,922           460,841        25,683           589,446              541               2,510,013         
Central School Roof Replacement 770,000             770,000           252,599           368,005        620,604              149,396            
District Network Infrastructure 450,000         450,000           170,889        170,889              52,344          226,767            
 HJMS Renovation - Phase 2 1,950,000      1,950,000        363,624        5,000             368,624              50,020          1,531,356         

Totals   $ 97,373,625      $ 10,909,202  $ 108,282,827  $ 78,886,390    $ 8,631,481     $ 49,105         $ 87,566,976       $ 112,313      $ 20,603,538     
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EXHIBIT A-7
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
CAPITAL AND NONRECURRING EXPENDITURES FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Appropriations  
Current Designated for 

Balance Current Balance Balance Current Balance Year Specific Projects
July 1, 2016 Year June 30, 2017 July 1, 2016 Year June 30, 2017 Encumbrances June 30, 2017

Town Security Measures - 2013 $ 103,428               $ $ 103,428               $ 90,683                 $                       $ 90,683            $ $ 12,745               
School Security Measures - 2013 168,709               168,709               116,537                                     116,537          52,172               
Computer Equipment 13,000                  13,000                   13,000                                           13,000              -                           
FY13 Eng Transportation Facility Improv. 387,000                387,000                 16,557                  26,255              42,812              344,188               
Computer Software 19,000                  19,000                   15,730                  3,270                19,000              -                           
Computer Equipment 10,000                  10,000                   4,875                    4,978                9,853                147                      
Technical & Program Equipment 34,741                  34,741                   31,741                  3,000                34,741              -                           
Computer Software 45,000                  45,000                   27,036                  17,964              45,000              -                           
Boilers/HVAC 7,546                    7,546                     5,077                                             5,077                2,469                   
Modifications - HVAC 60,000                  60,000                   65,773                                           65,773              (5,773)                  
Trailer 8,500                    8,500                     8,422                                             8,422                78                        
Bldg Renovations - Exterior 10,000                  10,000                   7,319                                             7,319                2,681                   
Pick Up Truck 32,500                  32,500                   32,340                                           32,340              160                      
Parks Improvements 9,609                    9,609                     10,560                                           10,560              (951)                     
Machinery & Equipment 2,546                    2,546                     3,456                                             3,456                (910)                     
Renovations - Interior 162,500                162,500                 157,089                                         157,089            5,411                   
Ceiling/Floor Replacement 56,000                  56,000                   55,930                                           55,930              70                        
Assessor Revaluation 541,500                541,500                 536,961                38,048              575,009            (33,509)                
Police vehicles 87,000                  87,000                   87,000                                           87,000              -                           
Technical & Program Equipment 2,800                    2,800                     3,740                                             3,740                (940)                     
Machinery & Equipment 14,500                  14,500                   16,788                  1,219                18,007              (3,507)                  
Trucks 140,000                140,000                 144,070                                         144,070            (4,070)                  
Road Improvements 155,184                155,184                 155,184                                         155,184            -                           
Machinery & Equipment 5,250                    5,250                     5,250                                             5,250                -                           
Machinery & Equipment 88,000                  88,000                   94,302                                           94,302              (6,302)                  
Machinery & Equipment 75,000                  75,000                   74,999                  1                       75,000              -                           
Machinery & Equipment 3,700                    3,700                     3,938                                             3,938                (238)                     
Renovations-Interior 132,500                132,500                 132,600                                         132,600            (100)                     
Bldg Renovations-Exterior 66,000                  66,000                   46,451                  19,549              66,000              -                           
Modifications-Plumbing 23,000                  23,000                   15,960                                           15,960              7,040                   
Ceiling/Floor Replacement 46,000                  46,000                   46,000                                           46,000              -                           
Trucks 32,000                  32,000                   32,000                                           32,000              -                           
School Buses 174,000                174,000                 174,000                                         174,000            -                           
School Equip/Instruct/Non 97,000                  97,000                   47,257                  46,140              93,397              3,603                   
Computer Software 34,000                  34,000                   18,756                  13,228              31,984              2,016                   
Police vehicles 87,000                  87,000                   87,000                                           87,000              -                           
Seasonal                              -                             950                       2,155                3,105                (3,105)                  
Social Security/FICA                              -                             73                         165                   238                   (238)                     
Machinery & Equipment 40,000                  40,000                                                16,579              16,579              23,421                 
Trucks 226,500                226,500                 226,500                1,400                227,900            (1,400)                  

Expenditures
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                                                                                                                         (CONTINUED)   

EXHIBIT A-7
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
CAPITAL AND NONRECURRING EXPENDITURES FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Appropriations  
Current Designated for 

Balance Current Balance Balance Current Balance Year Specific Projects
July 1, 2016 Year June 30, 2017 July 1, 2016 Year June 30, 2017 Encumbrances June 30, 2017

Expenditures

Street Signs $ 30,000                  $ $ 30,000                   $ 30,338                  $ $ 30,338              $ $ (338)                     
Road Improvements 154,713                154,713                 156,663                                         156,663            (1,950)                  
Trucks 26,300                  26,300                   17,582                  4,919                22,501              3,799                   
Machinery & Equipment 56,000                  56,000                   55,625                                           55,625              375                      
Renovations - Interior 87,500                  87,500                                                73,594              73,594              13,906                 
Building Renovations - Exterior 38,000                  38,000                                                38,000              38,000              -                           
Modifications - Plumbing 31,000                  31,000                                                24,645              24,645              6,355                   
Ceiling/Floor Replacement 75,000                  75,000                   45,389                  29,611              75,000              -                           
School Buses 303,000                303,000                 69,294                  233,706            303,000            -                           
School Equip/Instruct/Non 36,000                  36,000                                                36,000              36,000              -                           
Police Vehicles 87,000        87,000                   87,000              87,000              -                           
Communications Equipment 20,000        20,000                   17,848              17,848              2,152                   
Technical and Program Equipment 8,000          8,000                     7,227                7,227                773                      
Small Mower 13,000        13,000                   9,900                9,900                3,100                 -                           
Pick-up Truck 32,000        32,000                                            -                        32,000               -                           
Trucks 181,500      181,500                 180,754            180,754            746                      
Road Improvements 157,504      157,504                 157,504            157,504            -                           
Renovations - Interior 70,000        70,000                   16,110              16,110              53,890                 
Building Renovations - Exterior 98,000        98,000                   31,595              31,595              66,405                 
Modifications - Plumbing 25,000        25,000                                            -                        25,000                 
Ceiling/Floor Replacement 80,000        80,000                   5,467                5,467                74,533                 
School Buses 362,000      362,000                 206,227            206,227            155,773               

Totals   $ 4,038,526             $ 1,134,004   $ 5,172,530              $ 2,986,795             $ 1,354,058         $ 4,340,853         $ 35,100               $ 796,577               
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Nonmajor 
Governmental 
Funds 
 

Special Revenue Funds 
 
Special revenue funds are used to account for proceeds of several revenue sources that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.  The Town’s special revenue funds are: 

 
Residential Rental Properties - to account for rental revenues and the maintenance and capital 
expenditures in maintaining the Town owned residential properties. 

 
Simsbury Farms Fund - to account for user revenues associated with the Simsbury Farms 
Recreation Facility and the associated expenditures.  

 
General Government Program Fund - includes the following programs: 

 
 Preservation of Historic Documents - to account for, in the Town Clerk’s office, additional 

revenues collected, grant revenues received and expenditures to preserve land records 
pursuant to Public Act No. 00-146. 

 
 LOCIP - to account for document fees collected by Town Clerk’s office to be used for 

expenditures that qualify under the State Local Capital Improvement (LOCIP) grants. 
 
 Preserve America - to account for funds received from Federal Preserve America Program, 

State of Connecticut, Commission on Culture & Tourism and Simsbury Main Street 
Partnership.  Expenditures will be made to pay for program activities associated with 
Preserve America Marketing Grant. 

 
 Ellsworth Fund - to be used for the beautification of the main streets of the Town of Simsbury, 

particularly Hopmeadow Street and/or expenses relating to the Planning Commission. 
 

Public Safety Program Fund - includes the following programs: 
 
 Narcotics Task Force - to account for state grants for narcotic enforcement.   
 
 Police Dare Program - to account for state grants for narcotic education.   
 
 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant - to account for local law enforcement block grant 

from the State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management and the United States 
Department of Justice.  Expenditures are for public safety equipment not otherwise budgeted 
for in the public safety operating budget.   

 
 Police Vehicles - to account for revenues associated with the sale of police vehicles and 

funding from the General Fund budget to be used for the purchase of new police vehicles. 
 
 Police Special Duty - to account for revenues and expenditures for police officers special 

duty for outside organizations. 
 
 DUI Enforcement - to account for revenues and expenditures for DUI check points funded 

by a DUI enforcement grant passed through the Connecticut Department of Transportation. 



 

 

Planning & Development Program Fund - to account for all financial resources of the community 
development block grant, the greenway project, the Simsbury meadow bandshell, the small cities 
community development block grant, the plan of conservation & development and the town center.   
 
Facilities Management Program Fund - includes the following programs: 

 
 Town Aid Fund - to account for state town aid road grants and related expenses to town 

roads. 
 
 Eno Memorial Hall - to account for the revenue from the settlement of the Kenessat painting 

and the expenditures for capital improvements and maintenance for the Eno Memorial Hall 
building. 

 
 Antoinette Eno Wood - to account for the distribution of Trust’s interest income to the Town 

and expenses related in maintaining Eno Memorial Hall.  Interest income is earned on assets 
with a fair value of $702,878 as of June 30, 2014.  The assets are held in a separate trust 
and are not in the Town’s name. 

 
 Horace Belden Income - to account for the distribution of Trust’s interest income to the 

Town and expenses related in maintaining town roads.  Interest income is earned on assets 
with a fair value of $1,387,456 as of June 30, 2014.  The assets are held in a separate trust 
and are not in the Town’s name. 

 
 Pease Cemetery Trust - to maintain the Pease and Shaw cemetery lots. 
 
 Hazard Mitigation - to account for grants received from the Federal Emergency 

Management Administration for maintenance and reconstruction to alleviate storm drainage 
and flooding. 

 
Health & Welfare Program Fund - includes the following programs: 

 
 Social Workers Contingency - to account for donations and gifts and associated expenses 

related for the well-being of town citizens in need of assistance.  
 
 Expanded Dial-A-Ride - to account for grant and expenditures related to an expanded dial-

a-ride service to the elderly and disabled residents of program.  
 
 Senior Center - to account for donations and expenses related to senior center programs.   
 
 Youth Services - to account for grant and expenditures related to youth services. 
 
 Julia Darling Income - to account for the distribution of Trust’s interest income to the Town 

and expenses related to the well-being of Town citizens in need of assistance.  Interest 
income is earned on assets with a fair value of $613,587 as of June 30, 2014.  The assets 
are held in a separate trust and are not in the Town’s name. 

 
 Kate Southwell Income - to account for the distribution of Trust’s interest income to the 

Town and expenses related to the well-being of Town citizens, excluding citizens of 
Tariffville, in need of assistance.  Interest income is earned on assets with a fair value of 
$334,333 as of June 30, 2014.  The assets are held in a separate trust and are not in the 
Town’s name. 

 
 Mary Schneider Memorial - to account for donations to the Town and expenses related to 

the well-being of Town citizens in need of assistance.  



 

 

Culture & Recreation Program Fund - includes the following program: 
 
 Library - to account for donations, memorial gifts and miscellaneous grants and expenses 

related to the operations of the library. 
 
 Dog Park - to account for donations and expenses related to the operations of the dog park. 
 

Board of Education Program Fund - the primary programs accounted for in this fund are as 
follows: 

 
 District Activity Fund - Created in fiscal 2013-2014 and funded by a generous donation 

from the Kathleen Magowan Revocable Trust of $479,715.  
 
 Farmington Valley Transitional Academy (FVTA) - a collaborative program, located at the 

University of Hartford, supported by the Simsbury and Farmington public schools and funded 
by tuition and fees from other participating districts. 

 
 Scholarships - Scholarships and awards for post secondary school education and training, 

funded by donations, gifts and distributions of trust income. 
 

Cafeteria - to account for the operation of all cafeterias for the public school system. 
 
State and Federal Education Grants - to account for specially financed education programs under 
grants received from the Federal Government and the State of Connecticut. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

EXHIBIT B-1

General Public Planning & Facilities
Residential Simsbury Government Safety Development Management

Rental Farms Program Program Program Program
Properties Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 263,588          $ 102,246          $ 108,311          $ 373,800          $ 342,222          $ 1,185,961       
Investments
Receivables:  

Accounts                        27,309            21,739            
Due from other governments                         

Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid expenditures 1,500              

Total Assets $ 263,588          $ 103,746          $ 108,311          $ 401,109          $ 363,961          $ 1,185,961       

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
 RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,717              $ 73,067            $ 1,125              $ $                        $                        
Due to other funds                        111,968
Due to other governments       
Unearned revenue                                               

Total liabilities 3,717              73,067            1,125              -                      -                      111,968          

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue - loans receivable 21,739            

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 1,500              
Restricted 876,157          
Committed 259,871          29,179            107,186          401,109          342,222          197,836          

Total fund balances 259,871          30,679            107,186          401,109          342,222          1,073,993       

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
 Resources and Fund Balances $ 263,588          $ 103,746          $ 108,311          $ 401,109          $ 363,961          $ 1,185,961       

Special Revenue Funds
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TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

EXHIBIT B-1

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:  

Accounts
Due from other governments  

Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid expenditures

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
 RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue - loans receivable

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed

Total fund balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
 Resources and Fund Balances

Health & Culture & Board of State and Total 
Welfare Recreation Education Federal Nonmajor
Program Program Program Education Interfund Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Cafeteria Grants Eliminations Funds

$ 262,496          $ 79,089           $ 81,041       $ 181,377         $                       $ $ 2,980,131       
851,927     851,927          

                       1,300             2,881         186                53,415            
17,026                                  151,584     43,503           48,738           260,851          

26,805                             (2,129)           24,676            
24,121           24,121            

1,500              

$ 279,522          $ 80,389           $ 1,114,238  $ 249,187         $ 48,738           $ (2,129)           $ 4,196,621       

$ 8,538              $ 3,386             $ 17,230       $ 92,236           $ 24,728           $ $ 224,027          
                                        2,129             (2,129)           111,968          

   1,642             1,642              
20,239           20,239            

8,538              3,386             17,230       92,236           48,738           (2,129)           357,876          

21,739            

24,121           25,621            
58,393            406,921     1,341,471       

212,591          77,003           690,087     132,830                               2,449,914       
270,984          77,003           1,097,008  156,951         -                    -                    3,817,006       

$ 279,522          $ 80,389           $ 1,114,238  $ 249,187         $ 48,738           $ (2,129)           $ 4,196,621       

Special Revenue Funds

92



TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

EXHIBIT B-2

General Public Planning & Facilities
Residential Simsbury Government Safety Development Management

Rental Farms Program Program Program Program
Properties Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Revenues:  
Property taxes  
Intergovernmental  $ $ $ 8,810             $ 9,183             $ 735,705         $ 418,590         
Charges for goods and services  65,288           1,685,655      29,521           250,792                              
Investment income (loss) 5                    9                     
Other  26,759                                5,359                                  94,964           

Total revenues  65,288             1,712,414        38,336             265,334           735,705           513,563           

Expenditures: 
Current operating:  

General government  33,562             
Planning and development  735,705           
Public safety  227,832           
Facility management  23,100             48,845             
Culture and recreation  1,887,972        
Health and welfare  
Education  

Capital outlay 48,551             4,342                544,349           
Debt service 8,522               

Total expenditures  31,622             1,936,523        33,562             232,174           735,705           593,194           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 over Expenditures  33,666             (224,109)          4,774               33,160             -                      (79,631)            

Other Financing Sources:  
Transfers in  191,758                                                                                   17,598             
Transfers out                           (111,968)          

Total other financing sources -                      191,758           -                      -                      -                      (94,370)            

Net Change in Fund Balances  33,666             (32,351)            4,774               33,160             -                      (174,001)          

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year  226,205           63,030             102,412           367,949           342,222           1,247,994        

Fund Balances at End of Year  $ 259,871           $ 30,679             $ 107,186           $ 401,109           $ 342,222           $ 1,073,993        

Special Revenue Funds
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TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

EXHIBIT B-2

Revenues:  
Property taxes  
Intergovernmental  
Charges for goods and services  
Investment income (loss)
Other  

Total revenues  

Expenditures: 
Current operating:  

General government  
Planning and development  
Public safety  
Facility management  
Culture and recreation  
Health and welfare  
Education  

Capital outlay
Debt service

Total expenditures  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 over Expenditures  

Other Financing Sources:  
Transfers in  
Transfers out   

Total other financing sources

Net Change in Fund Balances  

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year  

Fund Balances at End of Year  

Health & Culture & Board of  State and Total 
Welfare Recreation Education  Federal Nonmajor
Program Program Program  Education Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Cafeteria Grants Funds

$ 54,301              $ 17,817         $ 120,670       $ 352,419       $ 3,500,308          $ 5,217,803         
817,895       2,849,151         

73,284         73,298              
163,725             69,953         246,988       1,428           609,176            
218,026               87,770           440,942         1,171,742      3,500,308            8,749,428           

33,562                
735,705              
227,832              

 71,945                
121,761         2,009,733           

201,559               201,559              
336,881         1,157,609      3,500,308            4,994,798           

                            597,242              
8,522                  

201,559               121,761         336,881         1,157,609      3,500,308            8,880,898           

16,467                (33,991)          104,061         14,133           -                          (131,470)             

2,000             211,356              
(111,968)             

-                          2,000             -                    -                          99,388                

16,467                (31,991)          104,061         14,133           -                          (32,082)               

254,517               108,994         992,947         142,818                                    3,849,088           

$ 270,984               $ 77,003           $ 1,097,008      $ 156,951         $ -                          $ 3,817,006           

Special Revenue Funds
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EXHIBIT B-3
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS     
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Variance with Variance with
Final Budget Final Budget

Positive Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for goods and services   $ $ $ $ -                    $ 1,819,700  $ 1,819,700  $ 1,675,119  $ (144,581)       
Rental of town-owned property    42,060       42,060       65,288       23,228          11,000       11,000       29,520       18,520          
Local revenue -                                                        7,775 7,775            

Total revenues 42,060       42,060       65,288       23,228          1,830,700  1,830,700  1,712,414  (118,286)       

Expenditures:
Current: 

Facility management    33,538       33,538       23,100       10,438          -                    
Culture and recreation -                    1,920,665  1,920,665  1,887,972 32,693          

   Capital outlay -                                      48,551       (48,551)         
   Debt service 8,522         8,522         8,522         -                    -                    

Total expenditures 42,060       42,060       31,622       10,438          1,920,665  1,920,665  1,936,523  (15,858)         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over   
 Expenditures -                 -                 33,666       33,666          (89,965)      (89,965)      (224,109)    (134,144)       

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers from other funds    -                    90,000       90,000       191,758     (101,758)       

Excess of Revenues and Other  
 Financing Sources over Expenditures     
 and Other Financing Uses $ -                $ -               33,666     $ 33,666        $ 35            $ 35            (32,351)    $ (235,902)     

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 226,205                                                    63,030       

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 259,871   $ 30,679     

BudgetBudget

Residential Rental Properties Simsbury Farms Fund
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Internal Service  
Funds 
 

PPO/HDHP - This fund is used to account for premiums and claims relating to the self-insurance health 
coverage for those Town and Board of Education current employees who elected to receive health 
coverage under the CIGNA PPO (Preferred Provided Option Plan) or the CIGNA HDHP (High 
Deductible Health Plan).  For Town employees, that can include medical/prescription and/or dental 
coverage.  For Board of Education employees, that includes just medical/prescription coverage. 
 
Dental - This fund is used to account for premiums and claims relating to the self-insurance dental 
coverage for current Board of Education employees only who have elected to receive dental coverage 
under the MetLife Plan.  
 
HMO - This fund is used to account for premiums and claims relating to the self-insurance health 
coverage for those Town and Board of Education current employees who elected to receive health 
coverage under the CIGNA HMO (In Network Only Option) Plan.  For Town employees, that can 
include medical/prescription and/or dental coverage.  For Board of Education employees, that includes 
just medical/prescription coverage. 
 
 

  



EXHIBIT C-1
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

PPO/HDHP/HMO Dental Total

Assets:
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,381,701            $ 370,318               $ 1,752,019            
Accounts receivable, net 367                      367                      
Prepaid items 329,000               329,000               

Total current assets 1,711,068            370,318               2,081,386            

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Due to other funds 6,351                   6,351                   
Claim incurred but not reported 976,329               59,185                 1,035,514            

Total liabilities 982,680               59,185                 1,041,865            

Net Position: 
Unrestricted $ 728,388             $ 311,133             $ 1,039,521           

Internal Service Funds
Governmental Activities
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EXHIBIT C-2
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES 
IN  NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

PPO/HDHP/HMO Dental Elimination Total

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for services $ 11,220,263       $ 535,859        $ $ 11,756,122       
Other operating revenue 632,747                                  632,747             

Total operating revenues 11,853,010       535,859        -                      12,388,869       

Operating Expenses: 
Claims incurred 12,027,761       444,915        12,472,676       
Administration and stop loss insurance fees 911,252             45,730          956,982             

Total operating expenses 12,939,013       490,645        -                      13,429,658       

Operating Income (Loss) (1,086,003)        45,214          -                      (1,040,789)        

Transfers In 600,000             (600,000)         -                         
Transfers Out (600,000)       600,000          -                         

Change in Net Position (486,003)           (554,786)       -                      (1,040,789)        

Net Position at Beginning of Year 1,214,391         865,919        2,080,310         

Net Position at End of Year   $ 728,388           $ 311,133      $ -                     $ 1,039,521        

Governmental Activities
Internal Service Funds
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EXHIBIT C-3
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

PPO/HDHP/HMO Dental Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:  
Receipts from customers and users $ 11,853,010       $ 535,859            $ 12,388,869       
Payments to employees (12,836,903)      (496,778)           (13,333,681)      

 Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   (983,893)           39,081              (944,812)           

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Payments from (to) other funds 606,351            (600,000)           6,351                

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (377,542)           (560,919)           (938,461)           

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year  1,759,243         931,237            2,690,480         

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year  $ 1,381,701       $ 370,318           $ 1,752,019        

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
 to Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities: 

Operating income (loss) $ (1,086,003)        $ 45,214              $ (1,040,789)        
Change in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable   194                   194                   
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable  (3,958)               (3,958)               
Increase (decrease) in claims payable  105,874            (6,133)               99,741              

Total adjustments  102,110            (6,133)               95,977              

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities   $ (983,893)         $ 39,081             $ (944,812)          

Governmental Activities
Internal Service Funds
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Fiduciary 
Funds 

 
 
Fiduciary Fund types are used to account for assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity or as an 
agent for individuals, private organizations or others.  The Town’s Fiduciary Funds are as follows: 
 

Trust Funds: 

 Pension Trust Fund - to account for the activities of the Town’s defined benefit plans which 
accumulate resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees. 

 Other Post Employment Benefit Trust Fund - to account for the activities for both Town 
and Board of Education for other post employment benefits (e.g., health insurance, life 
insurance) which accumulate resources for other post employment benefit payments to 
qualified employees. 

Agency Funds: 

 School Activity - to account for the various student activities and clubs. 

 Flex Spending - allows employees to use payroll deductions to fund an individual flex 
spending account for dependent care or medical expenses.  Reimbursements are paid from 
the account by a third party administrator in accordance with IRS regulations. 



EXHIBIT D-1
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - TRUST FUNDS   
JUNE 30, 2017 

Other Post
Pension Employment

Trust Benefit Trust
Funds Fund Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 416,755           $ 425,370           $ 842,125           
Investments, at fair value:

Mutual funds  60,200,889      13,764,476      73,965,365      
Accounts receivable 76,784                         76,784             

Total Assets  60,694,428      14,189,846      74,884,274      

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 7,725               7,725               

Net Position $ 60,694,428    $ 14,182,121    $ 74,876,549     
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EXHIBIT D-2
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - TRUST FUNDS      
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017  

Other Post
Pension Employment

Trust Benefit Trust
Funds Fund Total

Additions:
Contributions:   

Employer $ 2,667,133     $ 1,310,930     $ 3,978,063      
Plan members 883,099        174,237        1,057,336      

Total contributions 3,550,232     1,485,167     5,035,399      

Investment earnings:
Net change in fair value of investments 5,603,934     904,959        6,508,893      
Interest 1,137,520     305,516        1,443,036      

Total investment gain 6,741,454     1,210,475     7,951,929      
Less investment expenses:

Investment management fees 81,079          29,835          110,914         
Net investment gain 6,660,375     1,180,640     7,841,015      

Total additions 10,210,607   2,665,807     12,876,414    

Deductions:
Benefits 3,812,456     1,228,579     5,041,035      
Administrative expense 96,936          96,936           

Total deductions 3,909,392     1,228,579     5,137,971      

Net Change in Net Position 6,301,215     1,437,228     7,738,443      

Net Position at Beginning of Year 54,393,213   12,744,893   67,138,106    

Net Position at End of Year $ 60,694,428 $ 14,182,121 $ 74,876,549    
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EXHIBIT E
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
AGENCY FUNDS   
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2016 Additions Deductions 2017

School Activity Fund

Assets:
Cash and short-term investments     $ 930,920   $ 2,985,630 $ 2,903,015 $ 1,013,535

Liabilities:
Due to student groups $ 882,422     $ 2,985,630  $ 2,879,193  $ 988,859     
Due to other funds 48,498       23,822       24,676       

Total Liabilities $ 930,920   $ 2,985,630 $ 2,903,015 $ 1,013,535

Flex Spending Fund

Assets:
Cash and short-term investments     $ 38,873     $ 128,584   $ 126,280    $ 41,177     

Liabilities:
Due to employees $ 38,873     $ 128,584   $ 126,280    $ 41,177     

Total

Assets:
Cash and short-term investments     $ 969,793   $ 3,114,214 $ 3,029,295 $ 1,054,712

Liabilities:
Due to student groups and others  $ 921,295     $ 3,114,214  $ 3,005,473  $ 1,030,036  
Due to other funds 48,498                         23,822       24,676       

Total Liabilities $ 969,793   $ 3,114,214 $ 3,029,295 $ 1,054,712
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SCHEDULE 1
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED, COLLECTED AND OUTSTANDING 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Grand  Balance Transfers Balance
List July 1,  Current to Adjusted Other June 30,

 Year 2016 Levy Additions Deductions Suspense Taxes Collections Interest Liens Fees 2017

2015 $ $ 84,554,861    $ 1,168,826    $ 241,594    $                 $ 85,482,093    $ 85,007,777    $ 133,604    $ 576           $ 9,075        $ 474,316       
2014 449,148      6,359           10,888      53,542     391,077         219,243         45,573      792           17,435      171,834       
2013 158,518      12,934         694           170,758         56,426           18,372      288           6,809        114,332       
2012  116,267       4,990           912           120,345         27,594           13,541      120           635           92,751         
2011 71,855        1,006                            72,861           9,033             7,288        72             225           63,828         
2010  46,772         407                               47,179           3,839             3,867        24             121           43,340         
2009  18,985        164                               19,149           3,553             4,305        24             5               15,596         
2008  17,123        244              113           17,254           4,240             5,911        24             58             13,014         
2007  16,334        1,734           138           17,930           6,625             11,218      24             269           11,305         
2006 10,966        790                               11,756           3,904             6,442        24             315           7,852           
2005  7,871           329              94             8,106             897                855           24             152           7,209           
2004  2,881           405                               3,286             405                288           51             2,881           
2003 2,783          289                               3,072             289                661           33             2,783           
2002 3,038          66                                 3,104             66                  151           43             3,038           

2001 and prior 3,683          291              1,772        2,202             291                732           31             1,911           

 $ 926,224      $ 84,554,861    $ 1,198,834    $ 256,205  $ 53,542   $ 86,370,172  $ 85,344,182    $ 252,808  $ 1,992      $ 35,257    $ 1,025,990  

Lawful Corrections 
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SCHEDULE 2
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN SEWER USER CHARGES RECEIVABLE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Grand Balance Current Balance
List July 1, Year June 30,
Year 2016 Charges Adjustments Collections 2017

2016 $ $ 2,166,062   $ 370,345      $ 2,521,121   $ 15,286        
2015 23,190        16,456        6,734          
2014 5,167          2,246          2,921          
2013  1,811          468              1,343          
2012  1,005           1,005          
2011 975             975             
2010 640                                640             
2009 640             640             
2008 640             640             
2007 620             620             
2006  580               580             
2005 400             400             
2004 400             400             
2003 400             400             

2002 & prior 856             (238)            618             

Totals $ 37,324        $ 2,166,062   $ 370,107    $ 2,540,291 $ 33,202      
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SCHEDULE 3
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN SEWER ASSESSMENT RECEIVABLE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Balance Balance
Phases July 1, 2016 Additions Principal Interest Lien Fees June 30, 2017

II $ 24,073               $ $ $ $ $ 24,073               
III 29,964               6,416                 773                    23,548               
V 3,323                 3,323                 
VI 2,938                 2,938                 

VIII 5,613                 5,613                 -                         
IX 31,345               5,556                 267                    48                      25,789               
X 40,190               4,230                 476                    35,960               
XI 43,700               2,315                 277                    41,385               
XII 287,536             35,942               4,802                 251,594             
XIV 588,333             526,522             6,319                 24                      61,811               

$ 468,682             $ 588,333           $ 586,594           $ 12,914              $ 72                    $ 470,421           
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SCHEDULE 4
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF DEBT LIMITATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Revenue from taxation for the year ended June 30, 2017:
 

Taxes $ 85,344,182    
Interest and lien fees 254,800         

Total 85,598,982    

Reimbursed for:
Tax relief for elderly 64,492           

Base $ 85,663,474  

General Urban
Purpose Schools Sewers Renewal

Debt limitation:
2-1/4 times base $ 192,742,817   $ $ $
4-1/2 times base 385,485,633  
3-3/4 times base 321,238,028    
3-1/4 times base 278,406,291  

Total debt limitation 192,742,817   385,485,633  321,238,028    278,406,291  

Indebtedness:
Bonds and loans payable 18,027,955     6,707,171      11,716,683      
Bonds authorized and unissued 6,703,079       3,090,833      

Total indebtedness 24,731,034     9,798,004      11,716,683      -                     

Debt Limitation in Excess of 
 Outstanding and Authorized Debt  $ 168,011,783 $ 375,687,629 $ 309,521,345  $ 278,406,291

Total capacity of borrowing (7 times base) $ 599,644,318  

Total present indebtedness 46,245,721    

Margin for Additional Borrowing   $ 553,398,597
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This part of the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut’s comprehensive annual report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Town’s overall financial health. 
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  TABLE 1
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Governmental Activities:
Net investment in capital assets $ 71,428,484   $ 79,465,301   $ 83,683,437     $ 85,759,693     $ 93,769,918     $ 93,069,141       $ 97,320,295    $ 100,313,724  $ 103,429,189  $ 98,938,703      
Unrestricted 18,748,699   20,119,401   22,700,437     24,577,560     28,322,298     36,628,027       21,526,646    * 20,323,545    19,400,044    20,921,393      

Total Governmental Activities Net Position $ 90,177,183   $ 99,584,702   $ 106,383,874   $ 110,337,253   $ 122,092,216   $ 129,697,168     $ 118,846,941  $ 120,637,269  $ 122,829,233  $ 119,860,096    

* Restated for GASB 68

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 2
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Expenses:  

Governmental activities:  
General government $ 3,292,873        $ 3,062,056      $ 2,842,450      $ 2,497,684      $ 6,305,823      $ 2,343,479      $ 2,205,896      $ 1,977,419      $ 2,786,959      $ 2,851,855      
Planning and development  1,384,238        1,843,702      1,552,148      1,793,475      1,079,098      960,662         596,042         1,173,028      617,505         1,363,689      
Public safety  6,057,274        6,046,297      6,191,312      6,339,007      5,891,335      5,492,049      5,007,354      5,887,147      5,437,865      5,458,475      
Facility management 7,755,390        8,081,543      8,254,369      8,687,612      8,719,270      8,934,586      8,266,613      9,017,445      10,847,069    13,455,187    
Culture and recreation 4,911,460        5,018,286      5,163,162      8,306,430      5,309,507      5,203,432      5,137,622      5,150,210      5,204,380      5,696,882      
Health and welfare 756,733           868,396         887,619         857,664         846,075          864,456         868,466         919,341         915,881         899,974         
Board of Education  86,929,937      68,363,256    72,654,089    71,194,609    76,276,064    77,356,625    84,666,310    83,402,825    84,996,362    92,918,242    
Debit service interest  1,944,234        1,722,911      1,525,754      1,514,343      1,212,643      1,199,014      1,019,312      797,900         645,311         854,362         

Total Governmental Activities Expenses   113,032,139    95,006,447    99,070,903    101,190,824  105,639,815  102,354,303  107,767,615  108,325,315  111,451,332  123,498,666  

Program Revenues:  
Governmental activities:  

Charges for services:
General government  1,525,815        688,041         809,490         958,295         805,502          799,556         760,330         762,490         882,767         904,172         
Planning and development  436,580           369,448         421,092         131,545         171,782          146,655         169,606         19,617           739,107         2,202             
Public safety  300,355           264,779         366,510         321,284         279,202          278,247         311,044         254,006         276,530         312,583         
Facility management 3,344,116        3,566,041      3,317,857      2,938,812      3,091,335      3,427,181      3,452,650      3,369,838      4,096,938      3,557,914      
Culture and recreation 1,944,369        2,033,644      2,062,964      1,783,573      1,771,554      1,710,717      1,748,704      1,797,383      1,907,459      1,733,275      
Health and welfare 101,749           182,981         172,778         16,366           19,691            14,335           8,675             2,320             2,876             1,464             
Board of Education  23,489,202      5,835,826      1,536,343      1,558,283      1,477,515      1,263,693      1,139,274      1,160,212      869,848         878,295         

Operating grants and contributions: 
General government 76,087            747,425         300,352         21,500           120,009          1,075,530      334,574         215,448         213,374         1,023,774      
Planning and development  84,894            259,341         79,055           2,116,232      282,497         110,020         135,176         361,630         898,406         
Public safety  25,604            1,621             128,765         98,309           29,856            31,083           12,173           34,435           29,229           54,129           
Facility management 193,037           1,439,409      694,959         769,341         3,016,919      262,172         193,969         226,135         212,271         250,021         
Culture and recreation 10,000            47,358           189,748          74,989           624,762         135,523         108,773         178,219         
Health and welfare 53,304            53,504           50,367           229,442         189,658          248,981         237,750         209,240         236,228         204,394         
Board of Education  8,147,441        8,413,878      14,331,851    14,171,150    15,801,559    16,125,579    17,681,269    15,783,990    17,177,726    22,786,889    

Capital grants and contributions:  
General government 287,080         
Planning and development  1,120,342      1,027,750      350,000         
Facility management 251,285           414,127         341,709          499,380         541,351         888,334         767,121         383,902         
Culture and recreation 250,000           289,664         280,797         330,514         691,666                                                                        
Health and welfare 40,000           1,024,843      
Board of Education   98,958            1,169,220      626,844         958,286          451,140                              64,872           17,128           72,604           

Total Governmental Activities Revenues 40,332,796      26,435,164    26,948,981    24,400,615    30,380,557    27,383,401    27,326,151    25,059,019    27,899,005    33,592,243    

Total Governmental Activities Net Expense   (72,699,343)     (68,571,283)   (72,121,922)   (76,790,209)   (75,259,258)   (74,970,902)   (80,441,464)   (83,266,296)   (83,552,327)   (89,906,423)   

General Revenues and Other:   
Changes in Net Position:  

Governmental activities:  
Property taxes   75,343,007      77,301,151    78,380,041    79,637,302    80,468,335    81,741,250    83,574,205    84,031,217    84,703,120    85,768,365    
Grants and contributions not restricted to   
 specific programs  411,508           396,487         396,805         491,076         332,042          315,020         333,164         307,788         197,363         195,890         
Unrestricted investment earnings  1,260,912        281,164         144,248         215,881         120,712          54,591           71,233           (22,010)          336,375         120,444         
Other general revenues, net 399,329         409,960          464,993         957,675         739,629         507,433         852,587         

Total Primary Government   77,015,427      77,978,802    78,921,094    80,743,588    81,331,049    82,575,854    84,936,277    85,056,624    85,744,291    86,937,286    

Change in Net Position:  
Total Governmental Activities  $ 4,316,084        $ 9,407,519      $ 6,799,172      $ 3,953,379      $ 6,071,791      $ 7,604,952      $ 4,494,813      $ 1,790,328      $ 2,191,964      $ (2,969,137)     

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 3
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

General Fund:  
Nonspendable $ $ $ $ $ $ 19,665         $                     $                     $                     $ 14,663         
Restricted  65,000         248,601      161,737       3,765           121,950       365,516       2,368                               
Committed  290,000       324,311       267,341       400,120                           639,000       427,598       385,000       
Assigned  534,507       215,567      120,965       351,346       510,907       374,590       21,309         183,461       1,787,133    1,542,894    
Unassigned  7,644,660    8,000,965   8,679,564    9,577,204    9,696,310    10,840,687  11,611,521  11,870,091  11,247,572  12,272,378  

Total General Fund  $ 8,244,167    $ 8,465,133  $ 9,252,266  $ 10,256,626 $ 10,596,508 $ 12,000,578  $ 11,635,198 $ 12,692,552 $ 13,462,303 $ 14,214,935

All other governmental funds:  
Nonspendable  $ 39,161         $ 31,522        $ 42,047         $ 34,420         $ 39,195         $ 55,708         $ 37,169         $ 26,056         $ 30,304         $ 26,621         
Restricted  622,116       841,806      998,223       1,009,517    1,256,034    1,387,975    1,724,023    1,454,961    1,599,957    1,341,471    
Committed 65,000         248,601      2,234,192    8,012,674    11,181,861  10,317,052  12,701,558  10,145,328  14,923,557  
Assigned  11,890,418  8,791,641   10,238,407  11,328,104  5,329,235                        
Unassigned  (175,476)     (5,539,929)  (255,602)                                             (705,063)                          

Total All Other Governmental Funds  $ 12,616,695  $ 9,738,094  $ 11,278,677 $ 14,606,233 $ 9,097,209  $ 12,369,942  $ 12,078,244 $ 14,182,575 $ 11,070,526 $ 16,291,649

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 4
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN YEARS 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Revenues:  
Property taxes  $ 75,062,589    $ 77,284,675    $ 78,212,280     $ 79,548,406     $ 80,548,378     $ 81,850,788    $ 83,460,141    $ 83,958,850    $ 84,535,118    $ 85,638,921    
Intergovernmental    31,385,988    18,695,408    18,417,973     15,798,207     23,037,449     19,910,015    19,289,241    17,879,660    19,293,730    26,100,771    
Investment income (loss) 1,260,912      281,164         119,737          215,881          120,712          54,591           71,233           (22,010)          333,675         119,016         
Charges for goods and services  4,100,337      3,854,100      4,458,581       4,345,779       4,165,901       3,970,212      3,826,011      3,766,179      3,738,193      3,637,248      
Licenses and permits  468,128         363,346         425,563          279,740          527,210          546,348         708,824         675,091         1,175,709      459,719         
Rental of town owned property  7,832             3,816             4,161              2,748              595                 163,356         171,087         151,472         137,767         132,302         
Local revenues  946,858         365,735         355,767          447,574          409,679          103,093         577,789         69,800           78,642           238,217         
Assessments  2,644,249      2,722,367      2,606,135       2,588,450       2,541,036       2,857,375      2,737,195      2,688,513      2,908,891      3,128,191      
Other  1,311,395      787,707         803,687          759,832          739,684          918,044         1,577,753      1,173,651      859,538         1,277,022      

Total revenues    117,188,288  104,358,318  105,403,884   103,986,617   112,090,644   110,373,822  112,419,274  110,341,206  113,061,263  120,731,407  

Expenditures:    
Current:    

General government  2,448,471      2,239,167      2,003,567       1,913,540       5,674,412       1,964,048      2,199,199      2,205,494      2,245,328      2,210,896      
Planning and development    1,015,444      1,517,056      1,213,872       807,450          3,177,802       844,237         704,150         491,362         551,342         1,276,962      
Public safety    4,068,623      4,177,971      4,162,967       4,156,758       4,208,408       4,426,304      4,440,427      4,366,285      4,558,452      4,735,609      
Facility management  5,122,093      5,408,842      5,543,118       5,893,233       5,975,632       5,671,060      5,862,713      5,727,133      5,690,540      5,855,240      
Culture and recreation  3,852,304      4,005,692      3,959,615       4,177,239       4,165,021       4,047,226      4,263,907      4,091,607      4,210,600      4,330,256      
Health and welfare  634,133         749,436         756,353          721,978          702,936          727,795         786,278         858,548         818,821         809,168         
Fringe benefits and insurance  4,344,674      4,399,255      4,351,456       4,675,137       4,372,802       4,675,479      4,833,766      5,080,534      4,602,175      4,871,466      
Education  84,812,623    68,976,132    71,467,509     71,649,955     73,986,774     75,661,224    78,987,017    76,446,257    78,891,667    85,375,951    
Special projects  176,813         306,883         15,000            

Capital outlay  16,039,531    6,941,175      6,835,862       3,375,755       7,701,678       6,180,583      3,440,988      6,725,454      6,925,221      10,500,504    
Debit service:    

Principal    4,472,195      6,527,597      5,709,008       5,753,087       5,871,345       5,879,971      6,453,974      6,533,165      6,043,138      6,178,314      
Interest    1,805,498      1,950,348      1,678,746       1,573,248       1,508,161       1,257,711      1,103,933      947,530         866,277         864,972         

Total expenditures    128,792,402  107,199,554  107,697,073   104,697,380   117,344,971   111,335,638  113,076,352  113,473,369  115,403,561  127,009,338  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 
Expenditures    (11,604,114)   (2,841,236)     (2,293,189)      (710,763)         (5,254,327)      (961,816)        (657,078)        (3,132,163)     (2,342,298)     (6,277,931)     

Other Financing Sources:   
Proceeds from capital lease  
Proceeds from sales of bonds    4,090,780      4,869,506       5,000,000       5,191,969       5,638,019                            9,768,488                            12,251,686    
Payments to escrow agents (5,106,184)      (3,474,640)                                                 
Proceeds from loans  1,172,314      42,679            

Total other financing sources   5,263,094      -                     4,869,506       5,042,679       85,785            5,638,019      -                     6,293,848      -                     12,251,686    
  
Net Change in Fund Balances    (6,341,020)     (2,841,236)     2,576,317       4,331,916       (5,168,542)      4,676,203      (657,078)        3,161,685      (2,342,298)     5,973,755      

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year  27,136,882    20,795,862    17,954,626     20,530,943     24,862,859     19,694,317    24,370,520    23,713,442    26,875,127    24,532,829    

Fund Balance at End of Year  $ 20,795,862    $ 17,954,626  $ 20,530,943   $ 24,862,859   $ 19,694,317   $ 24,370,520    $ 23,713,442  $ 26,875,127  $ 24,532,829  $ 30,506,584  

Debt Service as a Percentage to Noncapital 
Expenditures  5.57% 8.46% 7.32% 7.26% 6.50% 6.63% 6.92% 6.91% 6.91% 5.79%

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 5
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Assessed
Real Property Tax Exempt Estimated Value as a

Fiscal Residential Commercial All Motor Personal Real Property Total Taxable  Actual Percentage of
Year Property Property Land Vehicles Property Excluded Assessed Value Mill Rate Taxable Value Actual Value

2008 $ 1,502,769       $ 214,362      $ 16,638           $ 172,758        $ 115,896       $ 222,290 $ 2,022,423         36.90 $ 3,961,196 51.1             %
2009 1,991,069       295,774      16,918           176,222        117,587       276,266          2,597,570         29.60       3,971,248         65.4             
2010 1,999,922       296,264      24,478           165,121        111,801       280,231          2,597,586         30.10       3,674,499         70.7             
2011 2,006,469       298,680      23,539           166,125        104,650       286,585          2,599,462         30.55       3,717,024         69.9             
2012 2,009,423       300,156      21,457           171,793        96,697         298,661          2,599,526         30.86       3,617,413         71.9             
2013 2,012,384       301,240      21,030           182,668        82,147         289,240          2,599,468         31.37       3,505,330         74.2             
2014 1,697,766       260,396      17,465           179,800        79,240         301,195          2,234,667         37.29       3,481,281         64.2             
2015 1,708,581       259,276      16,637           179,800        79,240         304,761          2,251,625         37.14       3,577,008         62.9             
2016 1,714,665       258,610      15,617           184,456        95,823         300,668          2,268,971         37.00       3,586,050         63.3             
2017 1,731,800       253,823      24,984           184,785        97,023         324,211          2,292,415         37.12       3,600,147         63.7             

Source:  Town of Simsbury Assessor and State of Connecticut, Office of Policy and Management.

Note:   Except for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004, the estimated actual taxable is the Equalized Net Grand List as determined by the State of Connecticut, Office of Policy and 
 Management.  Properties in town are reassessed every five years per state statute.  The last completed revaluation was for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.  

For the fiscal year ending 2014, the estimated actual taxable value is the sum of the real estate assessments divided 63.5%, plus the motor vehicle and personal property 
assessments divided by 70%.

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

(in Thousands of Dollars)
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TABLE 6

2017 2008
Percentage Percentage

of Gross of Gross
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Value Rank Grand List Value Rank Grand List

Hartford Life and Accident Ins. Company $ 42,226,760 1      1.84 % $ 22,530,180      2      1.11 %
Connecticut Light & Power 29,546,160 2      1.29 15,378,170      4      0.76
E and A/I and I and G Commons LP 23,450,000 3      1.02 13,022,000      5      0.64
Executive Risk Indemnity Inc. 17,247,680 4      0.75 16,950,654      3      0.84
Eastpointe Dorset Crossing Owner LLC 13,571,198 4      0.59
Hoffman  Enterprises Limited Partnership 10,613,400 6      0.46
Mill Commons LLC 9,642,420 7      0.42
Simsbury Commons North E&A LLC 8,864,800 8      0.39 8,024,310        9      0.40
Simsbury Hopmeadow Street LLC 8,498,970 9      0.37
Woodgreen Simsbury LLC 8,464,400 10    0.37
Simsbury Assoc. Limited Partnership 37,800,000      1      1.87
Dyno Nobel Inc. 8,448,188        8      0.04
Ensign-Bickford Realty Corporation 10,139,710      6      0.50
Powder Forest Homes LLC 9,869,983        7      0.49
McLean George P Estate 6,536,990        10    0.32

$ 172,125,788   7.50 % $ 148,700,185   6.97 %

Source:  Town Assessor’s office

TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
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TABLE 7

Taxes
Levied Collections in

Fiscal for the Percentage Subsequent Percentage
Year Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

2008 $ 75,006 $ 74,473 $ 99.29 % $ 526 $ 74,999 99.99 %
2009 76,960 76,505 99.41 444 76,949 99.99
2010 78,145 77,567 99.26 565 78,132 99.98
2011 79,341 78,850 99.38 476 79,326 99.98
2012 80,215 79,748 99.42 424 80,171 99.95
2013 81,566 81,090 99.42 413 81,502 99.92
2014 83,294 82,961 99.60 241 83,202 99.89
2015 83,747 83,403 99.59 229 83,632 99.86
2016 84,404 83,955 99.47 277 84,232 99.80
2017 85,482 85,008 99.45 85,008 99.45

Source:  Town Tax Collector office and Finance office

(In Thousands)

TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections to Date

Total
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TABLE 8
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO
ASSESSED VALUE AND NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA     
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS     

State of CT Clean Total Percentage of Percentage of
Fiscal General Project Water Fund Primary Actual Taxable Personal Per
Year Purpose Schools Loan Loan Government Value of Property (1) Income (2) Capita

2008 $ 13,230,969  $ 25,422,000    $ 128,217       $ 21,037,216 $ 59,818,402 1.51% 1.51% 2.57
2009 11,435,616  22,341,000    120,950       19,331,886 53,229,452 1.34% 1.34% 2.29
2010 11,792,263  21,975,000    113,610       18,445,218 52,326,091 1.42% 1.32% 2.25
2011 14,349,499  19,550,000    106,197       17,540,653 51,546,349 1.40% 1.30% 2.22
2012 12,168,024  16,815,000    98,709         16,617,830 45,699,563 1.23% 1.15% 1.95
2013 14,833,377  14,795,000    91,146         15,676,381 45,395,904 1.25% 1.14% 1.93
2014 12,448,221  11,800,279    83,507         14,715,929 39,047,936 1.11% 0.90% 1.66
2015 17,271,364  8,722,936      75,791         13,736,091 39,806,182 1.11% 0.90% 1.65
2016 13,807,003  5,888,215      67,997         12,736,475 32,499,690 0.88% 0.58% 1.30
2017 19,858,209  6,707,171      60,126         11,716,683 38,342,189 0.88% 0.58% 1.30

(1) See Table 5 for taxable property value data.
(2) See Table 11 for personal income and population data.   

General Bonded Debt
General Obligation Bonds
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TABLE 9
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Simsbury
Fire

District

Debt Total
Fiscal Operating Service Town
Year Millage Millage * Millage Millage ** Total

2008 34.34        2.56          36.90      1.30             38.20            

2009 27.42        2.18          29.60      1.05             30.65            

2010 27.96        2.14          30.10      1.05             31.15            

2011 28.22        2.33          30.55      1.03             31.58            

2012 28.54        2.32          30.86      1.02             31.88            

2013 29.21        2.16          31.37      1.03             32.40            

2014 34.69        2.60          37.29      1.22             38.51            

2015 34.62        2.52          37.14      1.19             38.33            

2016 34.89        2.23          37.12      1.19             38.31            

2017 34.52        2.60          37.12      1.23             38.35            

* Debt service millage based on debt expenditures to total appropriations.

Town millage set as one number

** The Simsbury Fire District has no debt

Town of Simsbury                    
General Fund

114



TABLE 10
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Debt limit $ 529,348,036  $ 543,238,654  $ 550,545,555  $ 560,196,175  $ 564,044,593  $ 573,743,814  $ 585,105,962  $ 587,668,774  $ 592,572,134  $ 599,644,318  

Total net debt applicable to limit 72,902,911    62,661,314    65,228,306    51,560,382    56,811,356    48,887,461    47,507,359    40,378,199    40,073,073    46,245,721    

Legal Debt Margin $ 456,445,125  $ 480,577,340  $ 485,317,249  $ 508,635,793  $ 507,233,237  $ 524,856,353  $ 537,598,603  $ 547,290,575  $ 552,499,061  $ 553,398,597  

Total net debt applicable to the limit

  as a percentage of debt limit 13.77% 11.53% 11.85% 9.20% 10.07% 8.52% 8.12% 6.87% 6.87% 7.71%

Note: The State of Connecticut General Statutes require that in no event shall the total debt of the Town exceed 

         seven (7) times the annual receipts from taxation.  The calculation of the 2016 debt limit can be found on 

         Schedule 4 of this report.

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 11

 
Personal
Income Per Capita High School Bachelor’s

Fiscal (Thousands Personal Median Graduate Degree School Unemployment
Year Population (1) of Dollars) (1) Income (1) Age (1) or Higher or Higher Enrollment (2) Rate (3)

2008 23,234               $ 922,622        $ 39,710       39.6        94.5           61.4            4,917             4.1 %
2009 23,234               922,622        39,710       39.6        94.5           61.4            4,908             5.5
2010 23,234               922,622        39,710       39.6        94.5           61.4            4,838             6.2
2011 23,234               922,622        39,710       39.6        94.5           61.4            4,731             6.1
2012 23,438               930,723        39,710       41.0        96.9           60.0            4,657             6.6
2013 23,498               933,106        39,710       41.0        96.9           60.0            4,501             5.4
2014 23,535               1,018,570     43,279       43.3        95.7           62.7            4,330             4.8
2015 23,535               1,018,570     43,279       43.0        96.9           60.0            4,254             3.2
2016 24,348               1,328,013     54,543       43.8        97.5           65.3            4,133             3.6
2017 23,844               1,328,013     53,329       44.3        97.5           65.0            4,110             3.2

Sources:  Population, personal income, median age and education level provided by Town of Simsbury
(1)  U. S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey (ACS), 5-Year Estimates.
(2)  Simsbury, Board of Education.
(3)  State of Connecticut, Department of Labor.

Percentage of

Education Level in Years 
of Schooling (1)

TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

116



TABLE 12

2017 2008
Percentage

of Total
Town

Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank

Simsbury Board of Education 654           1    6.91 %  667             2    5.92 %
McLean Home Care 500-999 2    7.93 565             3    5.02
Ensign-Bickford Companies 500-999 3    7.93 300             5    2.66
Chubb-Executive Risk, Inc. 250-499 4    3.96 553             4    4.91
Hoffman Auto Group  250-499 5    3.96
Super Stop & Shop 100-249 6    1.85
Town of Simsbury 164           7    1.73 146             7    1.30
Mitchell of Simsbury 100-249 8    1.85 130             9    1.15
Hopmeadow Country Club 100-249 9    1.85
Veeder-Root Company 100-249 10  1.85 135             8    1.20
Dyno Nobel 220             6    1.95
The Hartford Life Insurance Co.  3,000          1    26.64
Wagner, Ford, Nissan  92               10  0.82

2718-4810 39.83 % 5,808 51.57 %

Source:  2017 data: Connecticut Department of Labor and Connecticut Economic Resources Center, Inc.
               2008 data: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census 1990 and 2000.

TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Employment

Percentage
of Total
Town
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TABLE 13
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

General government:
  Central administration 5.0 5.5 5.5 5.5 4.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
  Finance 3.0  3.0  3.0  3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0
 Tax collector 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

  Assessor's 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.5 2.0 2.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
  Town clerk 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
  Data Processing 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

Public safety:
    Officers 38.0 38.0 36.0 36.0 36.0 35.0 35.0 35.0 36.0 35.0
    Civilians 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 10.0 10.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 10.0

Planning and development:
    Community development 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
    Planning 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
    Building 3.0 3.0 2.5 2.5 2.0 2.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
    Engineering 2.8 1.8 1.5 1.5 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 3.0

Facilities management:
    Public works 4.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.0
    Buildings & maintenance 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0
    Highway 20.0 20.0 19.0 19.0 19.0 18.0 19.0 19.0 19.0 19.0
    Sewer treatment plant 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0

Social services 4.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.0 3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

Public libraries*** 24.0 24.0 24.0 23.5 13.0 13.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 13.0

Parks and recreation 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 15.0 15.0 17.0 17.0 18.0 16.0

Board of Education:
    Certified 391.6 390.2 390.9 400.7 401.0 405.0 399.0 408.0 416.0 416.0
    Non-certified 262.3 259.5 252.2 247.8 248.0 249.0 271.0 247.0 250.0 251.0

Total 817.6 811.0 799.6 804.0 788.0 791.0 816.0 801.0 815.0 810.0

Source:  Town of Simsbury and Simsbury Board of Education
*** Library Staff misstated 2013 and prior

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 14
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

General Government
  Birth certificates issued 181 202 164 171 162 172 159 180            191             174              
  Death certificates issued 185 168 215 196 195 196 230 207            169             188              
  Marriage licenses issued 269 241 303 281 305 274 265 259            222             184              

Boards and Agencies
  Registered voters 16,404 16,103 15,773 15,859 15,997 16,411 16,899       16,236       16,601        16,560         

Planning and Development
  Building permits issued 719 877 861 676              681            766              573            575            483             495              
  Building department fees 369,966 1,121,573 606,216 651,959       497,889     485,902       247,760     394,080     334,404      435,721       
  Value of building permits (in thousand of dollars)    24,055 64,448 42,281 35,637         31,908       34,851         15,193       15,415       21,760        19,255         

Public Safety
  Part I crimes 173 147 151 169 189 188 136            151            214             236              
  Motor vehicle accidents 622 584 615 651 510 625 723            661            724             756              
  Medical calls 1,659 1,669 1,559 1,544 1,430 1,444 1,370         1,300         1,216          1,129           
  Motor vehicle enforcement 3,767 3,985 3,757 2,980 3,167 3,940 4,394         4,740         5,242          4,949           
  Alarm responses 801 915 865 789 810 879 840            837            866             797              
  Total incidents 37,122 33,912 32,183 31,256 36,171 33,311 29,890       28,139       28,055        25,703         

Facility Management
  Miles of roads maintained 164 164 164 164 164 164 163            163            163             163              

Public Libraries
  Volumes in collection 136,436 150,553 152,567 147,540 153,179 152,592 154,307     145,078     156,000      145,759       
   Items circulated 376,364 389,691 396,836 426,575 461,477 477,650 479,791     462,232     461,113      330,825       
   Attendance 381,907 375,523 361,357 314,928 254,745 249,750 256,060     268,100     256,000      191,704       
   Events 1,447 1,631 1,573 1,100 1,010 1,117 1,061         954            708             420              

Human Services
  Dial-a-ride passengers 8,576 9,275 9,704 9,405 9,768 10,525 9,352 7,848         8,625          8,322           
  Dial-a-ride traveled miles 44,864 46,195 49,066 48,799 50,342 52,537 47,827 43,014       45,101        43,932         

Education
  Elementary schools 5 5 5 5 5 5 5                5                5                5                 
  Middle schools 1 1 1 1 1 1 1                1                1                1                 
  High schools 1 1 1 1 1 1 1                1                1                1                 

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 15
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Facility Management
  Miles of town roads 164         164         164         164         164        164        163        163        163        163        
  Miles of sidewalks 8             8             8             8             8            8            8            8            8            8            
  Sanitary sewers (miles) 81           81           81           81           81          81          81          81          81          81          
  Storm sewers (miles) 55           55           55           55           55          55          55          55          55          55          
  Treatment capacity (thousands of gallons)  3,800      3,800      3,800      3,800      3,800     3,800     3,800     3,800     3,800     3,800     

Parks and Recreation
  Acreage 5,815      5,815      5,815      5,815      5,815     5,815     5,815     5,815     5,815     5,815     
  Neighborhood parks 11           11           11           11           11          11          11          11          11          11          
  Playgrounds (including schools) 12           12           12           12           12          12          12          12          12          12          
  Swimming pools 6             6             6             6             6            6            6            6            6            6            
  Ice skating facilities 1             1             1             1             1            1            1            1            1            1            
  Public golf course 1             1             1             1             1            1            1            1            1            1            
  Tennis courts 17           17           17           17           17          17          17          17          17          17          
  Baseball fields 14           14           14           14           14          14          14          14          14          14          
  Basketball courts 2             2             2             2             2            2            2            2            2            2            
  Soccer fields 21           21           21           21           21          21          21          21          21          20          
  Football fields 2             2             2             2             2            2            2            2            2            2            

Health and Welfare
  Community center 1             1             1             1             1            1            1            1            1            1            
  Dial-a-ride buses 2             2             2             2             2            2            2            2            2            2            

Source(s):  Various Town Departments

FISCAL YEAR
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